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NODEALER, BROKER, SALESPERSON OR OTHER PERSON HASBEEN AUTHORIZED BY
THE SCHOOL DISTRICT TO GIVE ANY INFORMATION OR TO MAKE ANY REPRESENTATION
WITH RESPECT TO THE SERIES C BONDS, OTHER THAN AS CONTAINED IN THIS OFFICIAL
STATEMENT, AND IF GIVEN OR MADE, ANY SUCH INFORMATION OR REPRESENTATION
MUST NOT BE RELIED UPON ASHAVING BEEN AUTHORIZED BY THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OR
THEUNDERWRITER. THISOFFICIAL STATEMENT DOESNOT CONSTITUTEAN OFFEROFANY
SECURITIES OTHER THAN THOSE DESCRIBED ON THE COVER PAGE OR AN OFFER TO SELL
ORA SOLICITATION OF AN OFFER TOBUY NOR SHALL THEREBE ANY SALE OF THEBONDS
BY ANY PERSON IN ANY JURISDICTION IN WHICH IT ISUNLAWFUL TO MAKE SUCH OFFER,
SOLICITATION OR SALE. THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT IS NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A
CONTRACT WITH THE PURCHASERS OF THE BONDS.

Statements contained in this Official Statement which involve time estimates, forecasts or matters
of opinion, whether or not expressly so described herein, are intended solely as such and are not to be
construed as representations of fact. The information set forth herein has been furnished by the School
Digtrict, or other sources which are believed to be reliable, but it is not guaranteed as to accuracy or
completeness. TheUnderwriter has provided thefollowing sentencefor inclusioninthisOfficial Statement.
The Underwriter has reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as part of,
itsresponsibilitiesto investors under the federal securitieslaws as applied to the facts and circumstances of
this transaction, but the Underwriter does not guarantee the accuracy or compl eteness of such information.
The information and expressions of opinion herein are subject to change without notice and neither the
delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create any
implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the School District since the date hereof.

This Official Statement is submitted in connection with the sale of securities referred to herein and
may not be reproduced or be used, as awhole or in part, for any other purpose.

IN CONNECTION WITH OFFERING THE SERIES C BONDS, THE UNDERWRITER
MAY OVERALLOT OR EFFECT TRANSACTIONSWHICH STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE
MARKET PRICES OF THE SERIES C BONDS AT A LEVEL ABOVE THAT WHICH MIGHT
OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THE OPEN MARKET. SUCH STABILIZING, IF COMMENCED,
MAY BEDISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME. THEUNDERWRITERMAY OFFERAND SELL THE
SERIES C BONDS TO CERTAIN DEALERS AND DEALER BANKS AND BANKSACTING AS
AGENT AND OTHERSAT PRICESLOWER THAN THE PUBLIC OFFERING PRICESSTATED
ONTHE COVER PAGE HEREOF AND SAID PUBLIC OFFERING PRICESMAY BE CHANGED
FROM TIME TO TIME BY THE UNDERWRITER.

THE SERIESCBONDSHAVENOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIESACT OF
1933, AS AMENDED, IN RELIANCE UPON AN EXEMPTION CONTAINED IN SUCH ACT. THE
BONDSHAVENOT BEEN REGISTERED OR QUALIFIED UNDER THE SECURITIESLAWSOFANY
STATE.
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$3,698,553.90
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OF
SCHOOL FACILITIESIMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2002-1 OF THE
POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT, 2002 ELECTION, SERIESC
(SAN DIEGO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA)

INTRODUCTION

Thisintroduction is not a summary of this Official Statement. It isonly a brief description of and
guide to, and is qualified by, more complete and detailed information contained in the entire Official
Satement, including the cover page and appendices hereto, and the documents summarized or described
herein. A full review should be made of the entire Official Satement. The offering of Series C Bonds to
potential investorsis made only by means of the entire Official Statement.

ThisOfficia Statement, whichincludesthe cover page and appendiceshereto, providesinformation
in connection with the sale of General Obligation Bonds of School Facilities Improvement District
No. 2002-1 of the Poway Unified School District, 2002 Election, Series C, in the principal amount of
$3,698,553.90 (the “ Series C Bonds”).

The School District and the mprovement District

The Poway Unified School District (the “ School District”) islocated northeast of the City of San
Diego (the” City”). The School District wasoriginally formedin 1962. The School District currently covers
approximately 100 square miles in the central portion of the County of San Diego (the “County”) and
includesthe City of Poway and portions of the City and the County, including the communities of 4SRanch,
Black Mountain Ranch, Carmel Mountain Ranch, Del Sur, Poway, Rancho Bernardo, Rancho Pefiasquitos,
Sabre Springs, Santa Fe Valley, Santaluz and Torrey Highlands. The School District currently operates
twenty-five (25) elementary schools, six (6) middle schools, four (4) comprehensive high schools, one (1)
continuation high school and one (1) adult school. The School District reported 33,282 students enrolled
during Fiscal Year 2007-08 and estimates approximately 33,306 students enrolled during Fiscal Y ear
2008-09.

The Board of Education (the “Board”) of the School District has formed School Facilities
Improvement District No. 2002-1 of the Poway Unified School District (the “Improvement District”)
consisting of all of theterritory located within the boundaries of the School District except the noncontiguous
territory located within the boundaries of certain existing Mello-Roos community facilities districts formed
by the School District. The lmprovement District encompasses approximately 65 square miles, representing
approximately 66% of the territory of the School District. There were approximately 66,217 housing units
in the entire School District of which approximately 44,529 were within the Improvement District in Fiscal
Year 2008-09. Approximately 22,220 of the School District’s students reside within the Improvement
District while enrollment within the entire School District was approximately 33,306. The Improvement
District was formed following a public hearing on August 6, 2002, pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 2
of Part 10 of Division 1 of Title 1 of the California Education Code (commencing with Section 15300
thereof) (the“Act”) and proceedings taken by the School District. On November 5, 2002, the el ectors of the
Improvement District voted on a question whether $198,000,000 in bonds should be issued on behalf of the
Improvement District. More than the requisite 55% of the el ectors voting on the proposition voted in favor
of such issuance. The General Obligation Bonds of School Facilities Improvement District No. 2002-1 of
the Poway Unified School District, 2002 Election, Series A (the “ Series A Bonds”) represented the first
series of Bonds within the Authorization (as defined bel ow) and wereissued on June 5, 2003, in the original
par amount of $75,000,000. The Genera Obligation Bonds of School Facilities Improvement District
No. 2002-1 of the Poway Unified School District, 2002 Election, SeriesB (the" SeriesB Bonds") represented
the second series of Bonds within the Authorization and were issued on November 2, 2006, in the original
par amount of $119,300,766. After the Series C Bonds are issued, no further material portion of the bond
authorizations is expected to be issued. See “THE SERIES C BONDS — Authority for Issuance,” “THE
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT,” “THE SCHOOL DISTRICT” and “DISTRICT FINANCIAL
INFORMATION” herein.



Sour ces of Payment for the Series C Bonds

The Series C Bonds are general obligation bonds of the School District, on behalf of the
Improvement District, payable solely from ad valorem property taxes levied and collected by the County
pursuant to law. The Board of Supervisors of the County is obligated to annually levy ad val oremtaxes for
the payment of the Accreted Va ue of the Series C Bonds upon all property within the Improvement District
subject to taxation by the School District without limitation of rate or amount (except certain personal
property which istaxable at limited rates). See “THE SERIES C BONDS — Security” herein.

Purpose of Issue

Thenet proceedsof the Series C Bondsare authorized for construction, rehabilitation, moderni zation
or replacement of school facilities, including the furnishing and equipping of school facilities or the
acquisition or lease of real property for schools. A portion of the Series C Bond proceeds may be used to
reimburse the School District for eligible costs previously incurred.

Description of the Series C Bonds
The Capital Appreciation Bonds. The Series C Bondswill beissued ascapital appreciation SeriesC

Bonds (the “ Capital Appreciation Series C Bonds’). The Capital Appreciation Series C Bonds mature on
August 1 in the years indicated on the cover page hereof.

The Capital Appreciation Series C Bonds are payable only at maturity and will not accrete interest
on acurrent basis. The maturity value of each Capital Appreciation Series C Bond is equal to its Accreted
Value at maturity, being comprised of its initial principal (“denominational”) amount and the accreted
interest between the delivery date and its respective maturity date.

Registration. The Series C Bondswill beissuedinfully-registeredformonly, registeredinthe name
of Cede & Co., asnhominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC”), and will be
availableto actual purchasersof the Series C Bonds (the“Beneficial Owners’) inthe denominations set forth
on the cover page hereof, under the book-entry-only system maintained by DTC, only through brokers and
dealerswho are or act through DT C Participants asdescribed herein. Beneficial Ownerswill not be entitled
to receive physical delivery of the Series C Bonds. See APPENDIX E —“BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM.” In
the event that the book-entry-only system described below is no longer used with respect to the Series C
Bonds, the Series C Bonds will be registered in accordance with the Resolutions (as defined below). See
“THE SERIES C BONDS — Regiistration, Transfer and Exchange of Series C Bonds.”

Denominations. Individual purchases of interests in the Series C Bonds will be available to
purchasers of the Series C Bonds in the denominations of $5,000 maturity amount or integral multiples
thereof in the case of Capital Appreciation Bonds, provided that one Capital Appreciation Bond may be
issued in an odd maturity amount.

No Redemption Prior to Maturity. The Capital Appreciation Series C Bonds are not subject to
redemption prior to maturity.

Payments. Each Capital Appreciation Series C Bond accretes in value from its initial principal
amount on the date of delivery to its maturity value on the maturity thereof at the appropriate yields per
annum set forth on the cover page hereof, compounded semiannually on February 1 and August 1 of each
year, commencing February 1, 2009, and is payable only at maturity as shown on the cover hereof.

Tax Matters

In the opinion of Bowie, Arneson, Wiles & Giannone, Newport Beach, California, Bond Counsel,
based upon an analysis of existing statutes, regulations, rulings, and court decisions and assuming, among
other things, compliance with certain covenants, interest on the Series C Bonds is excluded from gross
income for federal income tax purposes and is exempt from State of California personal income taxes. In
the opinion of Bond Counsel, such interest is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the federal
individual or corporate alternative minimum taxes, although Bond Counsel observes that it isincluded in



adjusted current earnings in calculating corporate aternative minimum taxable income. Bond Counsel
expresses no opinion regarding any other tax consequences related to the ownership or disposition of the
Series C Bonds or the accrual or receipt of suchinterest. See“LEGAL MATTERS - Tax Matters’ herein.

Offering and Delivery of the Series C Bonds

The Series C Bonds are offered when, asand if issued, subject to the approval asto their legality by
Bowie, Arneson, Wiles & Giannone, Bond Counsel. It is anticipated that the Series C Bonds will be
available for delivery in New York, New Y ork on or about January 27, 2009.

Continuing Disclosur e

The School District will covenant for the benefit of bondowners to make avail able certain financial
information and operating datarelating to the School District and the Improvement District and to provide
notices of the occurrence of certain enumerated events, if material, in compliance with S.E.C. Rule 15c2-
12(b)(5). The specific nature of the information to be made available and of the notices of material events
is set forthin APPENDIX D —“FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT.”

Professionals Involved in the Bond Offering

Several professional firms have provided servicesto the School District with respect to the sale and
delivery of the Series C Bonds. Bowie, Arneson, Wiles & Giannone, Newport Beach, California, Bond
Counsdl, will deliver its legal opinion in substantially the form set forth in Appendix C. McFarlin &
Anderson LLP, Lake Forest, California, has served as special disclosure counsel to the School District with
respect to the Series C Bonds. Bowie, Arneson, Wiles & Giannone, Newport Beach, California, is acting
as counsel to the School District on matters related to the Series C Bonds. The Treasurer-Tax Collector of
the County will act as Paying Agent with respect to the Series C Bonds. The payment of fees and expenses
of such firmsand the County with respect to the Series C Bondsis contingent on the sale and delivery of the
Series C Bonds. The School District’ s financial statementsfor the Fiscal Y ear ended June 30, 2008, which
areincluded as Appendix A, have been audited by Wilkinson Hadley King & Co. LLP, El Cgjon, California.

Other Information

This Official Statement speaks only as of its date, and the information contained herein is subject
to change. Copies of documents referred to herein and information concerning the Series C Bonds are
available from the Deputy Superintendent of the Poway Unified School District, 13626 Twin Peaks Road,
Poway, California92064-3034, telephone number (858) 679-2517. The School District may imposeacharge
for copying, mailing and handling.

This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract with the purchasers of the Series C
Bonds. Statements contained in this Official Statement which involve estimates, forecasts or matters of
opinion, whether or not expressly so described herein, areintended solely as such and are not to be construed
asrepresentationsof fact. Thesummariesand referencesto documents, statutesand constitutional provisions
referred to herein do not purport to be comprehensive or definitive, and are qualified in their entireties by
reference to each of such documents, statutes and constitutional provisions.

Theinformation from sources other than the School District set forth herein has been obtained from
sources which are believed to bereliable but it is not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness, and is not
to be construed as a representation by the School District. The information and expressions of opinions
herein are subj ect to change without notice and neither delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made
hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no changeinthe affairs
of the School District sincethe date hereof. ThisOfficial Statement issubmitted in connection with the sale
of the Series C Bondsreferred to herein and may not be reproduced or used, inwholeor in part, for any other
purpose.



THE SERIES C BONDS
Authority for Issuance

The Series C Bonds are issued pursuant to the provisions of Article 5 of Chapter 2 of Part 10 of
Division 1 of Title 1 of the Education Code of the State of California, Article XIlI A of the California
Consgtitution, and other applicable law (the “Act”), and pursuant to resolutions adopted by the Board of
Education of the School District on October 13, 2008, and by the Board of Supervisors of the County on
October 28, 2008 (collectively, the* Resolutions”). The School District received authorization at an election
held on November 5, 2002, by an affirmative votein excess of 55% of the votescast by eligiblevoterswithin
the Improvement District (the “ Authorization™) to issue not to exceed $198,000,000 of general obligation
bonds (the “Bonds’). The election was held pursuant to the provisions of the “ Safer Schools, Smaller
Classes and Financial Accountability Act” (also known as “Proposition 39") and related State legidlation.
The Series A Bonds represented the first series of Bonds within the Authorization and were issued on
May 20, 2003, inthe origina par amount of $75,000,000. The Series B Bonds represented the second series
of Bonds within the Authorization and were issued on November 2, 2006, in the original par amount of
$119,300,766. The Series C Bonds represent the third series of bonds within the Authorization and after the
Series C Bonds are issued, no further material portion of the bond authorizationsis expected to be issued.

Purpose of Issue

Thenet proceedsof the Series C Bondsare authorized for construction, rehabilitation, modernization
or replacement of school facilities, including the furnishing and equipping of school facilities or the
acquisition or lease of real property for schools.

Security

The Board of Supervisors of the County has power to and is obligated to annually levy ad valorem
taxesfor the payment of the Accreted Va ue of the Series C Bondsupon al property within the Improvement
District subject to taxation by the School District without limitation of rate or amount (except certain
personal property whichistaxableat limitedrates). Suchtaxeswill belevied annually inadditiontoall other
taxes during the period that the Series C Bonds are outstanding in an amount sufficient to pay the Accreted
Value of the Series C Bonds when due. Such taxes, when collected, will be deposited into the Series C
Poway Unified School District Debt Service Fund (the “Debt Service Fund”), which is maintained by the
County and is kept separate and distinct from all other District and County funds, and which isrequired by
the Act to be applied for the payment of Accreted Value of the Series C Bonds when due. Although the
County is obligated to levy an ad valorem tax for the payment of the Series C Bonds and to make timely
payment of Accreted Value of the Series C Bonds when due, and will maintain the Debt Service Fund
pledged to the repayment of the Series C Bonds, the Series C Bonds are not a debt of the County.

The moneys in the Debt Service Fund, to the extent necessary to pay the Accreted Value of the
Series C Bonds, as the same becomes due and payable, shall be transferred by the County to the Paying
Agent (as defined herein). The Paying Agent will in turn remit the funds to DTC for remittance of such
Accreted Value to its Participants (as used in Appendix F hereto) for subsequent disbursement to the
Beneficial Owners of the Series C Bonds.

The amount of the annual ad valoremtax levied by the County to repay the Series C Bondswill be
determined by the relationship between the assessed valuation of taxable property in the Improvement
District and the amount of debt service due on the Series C Bondsin any year. Fluctuations in the annual
debt service on the Series C Bonds and the assessed value of taxable property in the Improvement District
may cause the annual tax rateto fluctuate. Economic and other factorsbeyond the School District’ s control,
such as general market decline in land values, reclassification of property to a class exempt from taxation,
whether by ownership or use (such as exemptions for property owned by the State and local agencies and
property used for qualified educational, hospital, charitable or religious purposes), or the complete or partial
destruction of taxable property caused by anatural or manmade disaster, such as earthquake, flood, or toxic
contamination, could cause areduction in the assessed val ue of taxable property within the School District
and necessitate acorresponding increaseinthe annual tax rate. Infutureyears, the School District may issue
additional series of Bonds for refunding purposes. For further information regarding the Improvement



District’ s assessed val uation, tax rates, overlapping debt, and other matters concerning taxation, see “TAX
BASE FOR REPAYMENT OF SERIES C BONDS’ herein.

Description of the Series C Bonds

The Series C Bondswill beissuedin book-entry formonly and will beinitially issued and registered
in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC. Purchasers will not receive physical certificates
representing their interests in the Series C Bonds.

Payment of Maturity V a uewith respect to any Capital Appreciation SeriesC Bondsshall bepayable
at maturity upon surrender at the office of the Paying Agent asdesignated by the Paying Agent to the County
and the School District in writing. The Accreted Value of the Series C Bonds shall be payable in lawful
money of the United States of America.

The Capital Appreciation Series C Bonds are dated the date of delivery of the Series C Bonds. The
Capital Appreciation Series C Bonds are payable only at maturity, according to the amounts set forth in the
Accreted Value Table (see APPENDIX F—“CAPITAL APPRECIATION BONDS ACCRETED VALUE
TABLE” herein). The Capital Appreciation Series C Bonds will not bear interest on a current basis. The
Capital Appreciation Series C Bonds shall be used in any denomination of their Principal Amounts but shall
reflect denominations of $5,000 Maturity Amount or integral multiple thereof; provided that one Capital
Appreciation Bond may beissued in an odd Maturity Amount. Interest accretesin valuedaily over theterm
toitsmaturity (on the basis of a360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months), fromtheinitial principal
(denominational) amount on the date of issuance thereof to its stated maturity value at maturity thereof, on
the basis of a constant interest rate compounded semiannually (with straight-line interpolations between
Bond Payment Dates). Interest on the Capital Appreciation Series C Bonds shall be compounded
semiannually on February 1 and August 1 of each year, commencing February 1, 2009, and shall be payable
upon the maturity thereof.

See the maturity schedule on the inside cover page hereof and “DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE.”
Accreted Values

The Capital Appreciation SeriesC Bondsshall havethe Accreted V alueamounts per $5,000 payment
at maturity as shown on the cover hereof. Values of Accreted Value on each compounding date prior to
maturity areindicated on the tables set forth in Appendix F herein. Information on Accreted Valuesin this
Official Statement and the Accreted Value table in Appendix F have been provided by the Underwriter.

Book-Entry-Only System

The Depository Trust Company (“DTC"), New York, New York, will act as securities depository
for the Series C Bonds. The Series C Bonds will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the
name of Cede & Co. (DTC' spartnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized
representative of DTC. Onefully-registered Series C Bond certificate will beissued for each maturity of the
Series C Bonds, each in the aggregate principal amount of such maturity, and will be deposited with DTC.
See APPENDIX E —“BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM.”

Paying Agent

The Treasurer-Tax Collector of the County will act as the initial registrar, transfer agent,
authentication agent and paying agent for the Series C Bonds (the “ Paying Agent”). AslongasDTC isthe
registered owner of the Series C Bonds and DTC'’ s book-entry method is used for the Series C Bonds, the
Paying Agent will send any notices to owners only to DTC.

The Paying Agent, the School District, the County and the Underwriter of the Series C Bonds have
no responsibility or liability for any aspects of the records relating to or payments made on account of
beneficial ownership, or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to beneficial
ownership, of interestsin the Series C Bonds.



Payment

The Accreted Vaue of the Series C Bonds shall be payable upon maturity upon surrender at the
principal office of the Paying Agent. The Accreted Value on the Series C Bonds shall be payablein lawful
money of the United States of America. The Paying Agent is authorized to pay the Series C Bonds when
duly presented for payment at maturity, and to cancel all Series C Bonds upon payment thereof. The Series
C Bondsare obligationsof the Improvement District and do not constitute an obligation of the County except
asprovided in the Resolutions. No part of any fund of the County is pledged or obligated to the payment of
the Series C Bonds.

No Optional Redemption Prior to Maturity

TheCapital Appreciation SeriesC Bondsar enot subject tooptional redemption prior totheir
fixed maturity dates.

Defeasance

All or any portion of the outstanding maturities of the Series C Bonds may be defeased at any time
prior to maturity in the following ways:

a. Cash. By irrevocably depositing with a bank or trust company in escrow an amount of cash
which, together with amounts then on deposit in the Debt Service Fund, is sufficient to pay all
Series C Bonds outstanding and designated for defeasance, including the Accreted Vaue
thereof; or

b. Defeasance Securities. By irrevocably depositing with a bank or trust company in escrow,
noncallable Defeasance Securities (as defined below) together with cash, if required, in such
amount as will, in the opinion of an independent certified public accountant, together with
interest to accrue thereon and moneys then on deposit in the Debt Service Fund together with
the interest to accrue thereon, be fully sufficient to pay and discharge al Series C Bonds
outstanding and designated for defeasance at their maturity date;

then, notwithstanding that any of such Series C Bonds shall not have been surrendered for payment, all
obligations of the Improvement District with respect to all such designated outstanding Series C Bonds shall
cease and terminate, except only the obligation of the Paying Agent or anindependent escrow agent sel ected
by the School District to pay or cause to be paid from funds deposited pursuant to paragraphs (a) or (b)
above, to the registered owners of such designated Series C Bonds not so surrendered and paid all sums due
with respect thereto.

Defeasance Securities shall mean direct and general obligations of the United States of America
(including State and Local Government Series), or obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed as to
principal andinterest by the United Statesof America, including (inthecaseof direct and general obligations
of the United States of America) evidence of direct ownership or proportionate interests in future interest
or principal payments of such obligations. Investments in such proportionate interests must be limited to
circumstances wherein (@) a bank or trust company acts as custodian and holds the underlying Defeasance
Securities; (b) the owner of the investment is the real party in interest and has the right to proceed directly
and individualy against the obligor of the underlying Defeasance Securities; and (c) the underlying
Defeasance Securities are held in a special account, segregated from the custodian’ s general assets, and are
not availableto satisfy any claim of the custodian, any person claiming through the custodian, or any person
to whom the custodian may be obligated; provided that such obligations are rated or assessed “AAA” by
Standard & Poor’sand “Aaa’ by Moody’s Investors Service.

Registration, Transfer and Exchange of Series C Bonds

So long as any of the Series C Bonds remain outstanding, the School District will cause the Paying
Agent to maintain and keep at its principal office al books and records necessary for the registration,
exchange and transfer of the Series C Bonds as provided in the Resolutions (the “ Bond Register”). Subject
to the provisions of the Resolutions, the person in whose name a Series C Bond is registered on the Bond



Register shall be regarded as the absolute owner of that Series C Bond for all purposes of the Resolutions.
Payment of or on account of the Accreted Value of any Series C Bond shall be made only to or upon the
order of that person; neither the School District, the County nor the Paying Agent shall be affected by any
noticetothe contrary, but theregistration may be changed as provided in the Resol utions. All such payments
shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the School District’ s liability upon the Series C Bonds
to the extent of the amount or amounts so paid.

In the event that the book-entry system as described above is no longer used with respect to the
Series C Bonds, the following provisions will govern the transfer and exchange of the Series C Bonds.

Any Series C Bond may be exchanged for Series C Bonds of like tenor, maturity and principal
amount upon presentation and surrender at the principal corporate trust office of the Paying Agent, together
with arequest for exchange signed by the registered owner or by a person legally empoweredtodo soina
form satisfactory to the Paying Agent. Any Series C Bond may, in accordance with itsterms (but only if the
School District determines no longer to maintain the book-entry-only status of the Series C Bonds, DTC
determines to discontinue providing such services and no successor securities depository isnamed or DTC
requests the School District to deliver certificated securitiesto particular DTC Participants) be transferred,
upon the Bond Register by the registered owner, in person or by his or her duly authorized attorney, upon
surrender of such Series C Bond for cancellation at the office of the Paying Agent, accompanied by delivery
of awritten instrument of transfer in aform approved by the Paying Agent, duly executed. Upon exchange
or transfer, the Paying Agent shall complete, authenticate and deliver anew Series C Bond or Series C Bonds
of like tenor and of any authorized denomination or denominations requested by the registered owner equal
to the principal amount of the Series C Bond surrendered and bearing or accruing interest at the same rate
and maturing on the same date.

Inall cases of exchanged or transferred Series C Bonds, the County shall sign and the Paying Agent
shall authenticate and deliver Series C Bondsin accordance with the provisions of the Resolutions. All fees
and costs of transfer shall be paid by the requesting party. Those charges may be required to be paid before
the procedureisbegun for theexchangeor transfer. All Series C Bondsissued upon any exchangeor transfer
shall be valid obligations of the School District, evidencing the same debt, and entitled to the same security
and benefit under the Resolutions as the Series C Bonds surrendered upon that exchange or transfer.

Any SeriesC Bond surrendered to the Paying Agent for payment, retirement, exchange, replacement
or transfer shall be canceled by the Paying Agent. The School District and the County may at any time
deliver to the Paying Agent for cancellation any previously authenticated and delivered Series C Bondsthat
the School District and the County may have acquired in any manner whatsoever, and those Series C Bonds
shall be promptly canceled by the Paying Agent. Written reports of the surrender and cancellation of
Series C Bonds shall be made to the School District and the County by the Paying Agent and updated
annually. The canceled Series C Bonds shall be destroyed by the Paying Agent in accordance with its
procedures as confirmed in writing to the School District.

Neither the School District, the County nor the Paying Agent will berequired toissue or transfer any
Series C Bonds during a period beginning with the opening of business on the 15th business day next
preceding any Bond Payment Date and ending with the close of business on the Bond Payment Date.



ESTIMATED SOURCESAND USES OF FUNDS
The proceeds of the Series C Bonds are expected to be applied as follows:

Sour ces of Funds

Principal Amount of Series C Bonds $3,698,553.90
Original Premium 211,205.70

Tota Sources $3,909,759.60

Uses of Funds

Net Construction Proceeds $3,695,425.62
Costs of Issuance® 135,000.00
Underwriter’ s Discount 79,333.98

Total Uses $3,909,759.50

@ Includes, among other things, the fees and expenses of Bond Counsel, the fees and expenses of Disclosure Counsel,
fees and expenses of the Paying Agent, fees and expenses of the School District consultants, rating fees, the cost of
printing thepreliminary and final Official Satementsand other costs associated with issuing, selling and delivering
the Series C Bonds.



DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE

The following table shows the debt service schedule with respect to the Series C Bonds and the
outstanding Series A Bonds and Series B Bonds of the Improvement District (assuming no optional

redemptions).
Series C Bonds
Debt Service
Total
Y ear Compounded SeriesC SeriesB SeriesA Combined

Ending Principal Interest Total Annual Total Annual Total Annual Annual
August 1 Payment Payment® Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service
2009 - - - $6,287,687.50  $3,674,925.00 $9,962,612.50
2010 - - - 6,472,937.50 3,787,675.00 10,260,612.50
2011 - - - 6,657,437.50 3,911,675.00 10,569,112.50
2012 - - - 6,845,687.50 4,039,075.00 10,884,762.50
2013 - - - 7,031,937.50 4,179,475.00 11,211,412.50
2014 - - - 7,235,687.50 4,312,075.00 11,547,762.50
2015 $1,645,752.60  $574,247.40  $2,220,000.00 7,435,437.50 4,456,875.00 14,112,312.50
2016 2,052,801.30 857,198.70 2,910,000.00 7,640,687.50 4,608,000.00 15,158,687.50
2017 - - - 7,860,437.50 4,758,250.00 12,618,687.50
2018 - - - 8,088,187.50 4,910,500.00 12,998,687.50
2019 - - - 8,307,687.50 5,079,000.00 13,386,687.50
2020 - - - 8,538,437.50 5,252,250.00 13,790,687.50
2021 - - - 8,783,937.50 5,419,250.00 14,203,187.50
2022 - - - 9,024,087.50 5,604,500.00 14,628,587.50
2023 - - - 9,277,750.00 5,791,250.00 15,069,000.00
2024 - - . 9,530,500.00 5,988,500.00 15,519,000.00
2025 - - - 9,797,500.00 6,184,750.00 15,982,250.00
2026 - - - 10,071,750.00 6,394,000.00 16,465,750.00
2027 - - - 10,351,500.00 6,604,500.00 16,956,000.00
2028 - - - 17,465,000.00 - 17,465,000.00
2029 - - - 17,959,000.00 - 17,959,000.00
2030 - - - 18,495,750.00 - 18,495,750.00
2031 — - — 19,050,000.00 - 19,050,000.00
$3,608,553.90 $1,431,446.10  $5,130,000.00  $228,209,025.00 $94,956,525.00  $328,295,550.00

@ Represents compounded interest on the Capital Appreciation Series C Bonds.

Improvement Fund

APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS OF SERIESC BONDS

The proceedsfromthe sal e of the Series C Bonds, to the extent of the principal amount thereof, shall
be paid to the County to the credit of the fund known as the School Facilities Improvement District
No. 2002-1 of the Poway Unified School District, Series C Bonds Improvement Fund (the “Improvement
Fund”) and shall be kept separate and distinct fromall other School District and County funds. The proceeds
shall be used solely for the purpose for which the Series C Bonds are being issued and such proceeds shall
be applied solely to authorized purposes which relate to the construction, rehabilitation, modernization or
replacement of school facilities, which may include the furnishing and equipping of school facilities or the
acquisition or lease of real property for schools. Series C Bond proceeds may be used to reimburse the
School District for eligible costs previously incurred. The School District intendsto use the proceeds of the
Series C Bondsto construct, rehabilitate, modernize or replace school facilities, including thefurnishing and



equipping of school facilities or the acquisition or lease of real property for schools. Any excess proceeds
of the Series C Bonds not needed for the authorized purposes for which the Series C Bonds are being issued
shall be transferred to the Debt Service Fund and applied to the payment of the Accreted Value of the
Series C Bonds. If, after payment in full of the Series C Bonds, there remain excess proceeds, any such
excess amounts shall be transferred to the general fund of the School District. Interest earned on the
investment of moneys held in the Improvement Fund shall be retained in the Improvement Fund.

Debt Service Fund

The ad valorem property taxes levied by the County for the payment of the Series C Bonds, when
collected, will be deposited into the Debt Service Fund. The Series C Bonds shall be paid from the Debt
Service Fund. Interest earnings on theinvestment of moneysheld in the Debt Service Fund shall beretained
inthe Debt Service Fund and used by the School District to pay Accreted Vaue of the Series C Bondswhen
due.

Permitted | nvestments

The County Treasurer is authorized to invest the proceeds of the sale of the Series C Bonds and all
proceeds of taxes for payment of the Series C Bonds in the County’s Investment Pool (or other investment
poolsof the County into which the School District may lawfully invest itsfunds). Uponthewrittendirection
of the School District, the County Treasurer may invest Series C Bond proceeds or proceeds of taxes
collected for payment of the Series C Bondsin any investment permitted by law, including, but not limited
toinvestment agreementswhich comply with the requirements of each rating agency then rating the SeriesC
Bonds necessary in order to maintain the then-current rating on the Series C Bonds or in the Local Agency
Investment Fund established by the State Treasurer.

SAN DIEGO COUNTY TREASURY POOL

The following information concerning the pooled investment fund of the County (the “ Treasury
Pool” ) has been provided by the Treasurer-Tax Collector of the County (the” Treasurer” ) and has not been
confirmed or verified by the School District. No representation is made herein as to the accuracy or
adequacy of such information or as to the absence of material adverse changes in such information
subsequent to the date hereof or that the information contained or incorporated hereby by reference is
correct as of any time subsequent to its date.

In accordance with Government Code Section 53600 et seq., the Treasurer managesfundsdeposited
with it by the School District. Each county isrequired to invest such funds in accordance with California
Government Code Sections 53601 et seg. Inaddition, countiesare required to establish their own investment
policies which may impose limitations beyond those required by the Government Code.

All investments in the Treasurer’s investment portfolio conform to the statutory requirements of
Government Code Section 53601 et seg., authorities del egated by the County Board of Supervisors and the
Treasurer’ sinvestment policy.

General

Pursuant to aresolution adopted July 8, 1958, the Board of Supervisors of the County delegated to
the Treasurer the authority to invest and reinvest funds of the County. Applicablelaw limitsthisdelegation
of authority to aone-year period and must be renewed annually by action of the Board of Supervisors of the
County. Inadditionto fundsof the County (and the various departmentsin the County, such asPublic Works
and Public Administration), funds of certainlocal agencieswithinthe County, including school districts, are
required under state law to be deposited into the County treasury (“Involuntary Depositors’). In addition,
certain agencies, including community college districts, may invest their fundsin the County treasury on a
voluntary basis (“Voluntary Depositors’ and together with the Involuntary Depositors, the “ Depositors’).
Deposits made by the County and the various local agencies are commingled in a pooled investment fund
(the “Treasury Pool” or the “Pool”). No particular deposits are segregated for separate investment.
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Under the laws of the State of California, Depositors in the Pool are permitted to withdraw funds
which they have deposited on 30 days notice. The County does not expect that the Pool will encounter
liquidity shortfalls based on its current portfolio and investment guidelines or realize any significant losses
that may be required to be allocated among all Depositorsin the Pool.

The County has established an oversight committee as required by State law. The members of the
oversight committee include the Treasurer, the Chief Financial Officer, members of the public, and a
representative from a special district and aschool district. Therole of the oversight committeeisto review
and monitor the investment policy of the Treasurer.

The Treasury Pool’s Portfolio

Asof November 30, 2008, the securitiesin the Treasury Pool had amarket value of $4,622,325,479
and a book value of $4,580,354,802, for a net unrealized gain of $41,970,677. Asof November 30, 2008,
the weighted average maturity of the Pool portfolio was approximately 426 days.

As of November 30, 2008, approximately 2.74% of the total funds in the Pool were deposited by
Voluntary Depositors, such as cities and fire districts, 4.77% by non-county funds, 10.11% by community
college districts, 37.45% by the County and 44.93% by school districts.

As of September 28, 2007, Standard & Poor’s rated the Pool’s ability to meet its financial
commitments “ AAAf” (long-term) and “S1” (short-term volatility).

I nvestments of the Treasury Pool

Authorized Investments. Investments of the Pool are placed in those securities authorized by various
sections of the Government Code of the State of California, which include obligations of the United States
Treasury, agencies of the United States Government, local and State bond issues, bankers acceptances,
commercial paper of prime quality, certificates of deposit (both collateralized and negotiable), repurchase
and reverserepurchase agreements, medium term corporate notes, shares of beneficial interest in diversified
management companies (mutual funds), asset backed (including mortgage related) and pass-through
securities. Generally, investmentsin any repurchase agreement may not exceed aterm of one year and the
security underlying the agreement shall be valued at 102% or greater of the funds borrowed against the
security and the value of the repurchase agreement shall be adjusted no less than quarterly. In addition,
reverse repurchase agreement generally may not exceed 20% of the base value of the portfolio and the term
of the agreement may not exceed 92 days. Securitieslending transactionsare considered reverse repurchase
agreements for purposes of thislimitation. “BaseVaue” isdefined asthetotal cash balance excluding any
amountsborrowed (i.e., anountsobtai ned through selling securitiesby way of reverserepurchase agreements
or other similar borrowing methods).

Beginning early August 2007, the Pool halted all investmentsin asset-backed commercial paper and
has no plansto resumeinvestment in this type of security until the current credit crisis has passed. Further,
the Pool is not invested in any structured investment vehicle and has never invested in collateralized debt
obligations.

In order to limit exposure to credit risk, the Pool has limited purchases of corporate securities to
maturities less than 30 days. In afew instances, the Pool has purchased maturities beyond 30 days for the
sole purpose of duration management in the Pool’ s sub-portfalio, the Benchmark Portfolio. The Benchmark
Portfolio consists of ho more than 25% of the aggregated Pool assets at any given time. Within the
Benchmark Portfolio, the allocation to corporate securities is approximately 10% or 2.5% of the total Pool
assets.

L egidation which would modify the currently authorized investments and place restrictions on the
ability of municipalitiestoinvest invarious securitiesis considered fromtimeto time by the California State
Legidature. Therefore, there can be no assurancesthat the current investmentsin the Treasury Pool will not
vary significantly from the investments described herein.
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Thelnvestment Policy. The Treasurer’s Investment Policy (the “Investment Policy”) (which may
be modified, amended or otherwise changed at any time at the sole discretion of the Treasurer) currently
states the primary goals of the Treasurer (when investing public funds) to be as follows: the primary
objectiveisto safeguard the principal of the funds under the Treasurer’ s control, the secondary objectiveis
to meet the liquidity needs of the Pool Participants and the third objectiveisto achieve areturn on thefunds
under the control of the Treasurer within the parameters of prudent risk management. The Investment Policy
contains a goal that 50% of the Pool should be invested in securities maturing in one year or less, with the
remainder of the portfolio being invested one-to-five years on theyield curve depending on opportunitiesin
the marketplace. With respect to reverse repurchase agreements, the Investment Policy provides for a
maximum maturity of 92 days (unless the reverse repurchase agreement includes a written guarantee of a
minimum earning or spread for the entire period of such agreement) and alimitation on the total amount of
reverserepurchase agreementsto 20% of thetotal investmentsin the Pool. Thelnvestment Policy statesthat
the purpose of reverse repurchase agreementsisto supplement the yield on securities owned by the Pool or
to provide fundsfor theimmediate payment of an obligation, and that the maturity of the reverse repurchase
agreement and the maturity of the security purchased be the same.

The Investment Policy al so authorizesinvestmentsin covered call options or put options, which are
optionson the part of athird party to buy from the Pool aspecified security within afinite time at aspecified
price. Under the Investment Policy, securities subject to covered calls are not to be used for reverse
repurchase agreements, cash sufficient to pay for outstanding puts are to be invested in securities maturing
on or before the expiration date of the option, the maximum maturity of acovered call option/put optionis
to be 90 days and not more than 10% of the total investmentsin the Pool could have options (in contrast to
“derivatives’) written against them at any one time.

The County from time to time has engaged in securities lending transactions. Generally, these
transactionsinvolvethetransfer by the governmental entity, through an agent, of securitiesto certain broker-
dealers and financial institutions or other entitiesin exchange for collateral, and this collateral may be cash
or securities. Most commonly, these transactions provide for the return of the collateral to the securities
borrower upon receipt of the same securities at a later date. Presently, the County has suspended its
securities lending transactions program, but may decide to enter into a securities lending agreement with
another custodian in the future. Any such securitieslending transactions are considered reverse repurchase
agreements under the Investment Policy and, accordingly, the total principal amount of reverse repurchase
agreements and securities lending agreements may not exceed 20% of the Pool. Since the inception of the
County’s securities lending program in 1987, there has not been any loss of principal to the Pool resulting
from these securities lending transactions or the investment of the related collateral.

Pool Benchmark. Beginningin early 2007, the Pool was managed astwo portfolios; onepositioned
to meet liquidity needs and the other positioned to achieve incremental yield. All reporting with respect to
the Pool will be on a combined portfolio basis to facilitate financial transparency from the perspective of
Pool participants. The change was instituted after the development of a benchmark portfolio, which is
comprised of 60% U.S. Treasury securities, 30% U.S. Government Agency securities and 10% corporate
securities. It hasaduration of approximately 1.6 years and reflects an appropriate risk/return profile for the
portion of the Poal that is not anticipated to be needed for liquidity purposes. While the “benchmarked”
portion of theportfolioisavailablefor liquidity needs, it ispositioned to achievelongtermincremental yield.
The combined portfolios will continue to comply with all California State Code and the Pool’ s Investment
Policy.

Certain Information Relating to the Pool

The following table reflects information with respect to the Pool as of November 30, 2008. As
described above, a wide range of investments is authorized by state law. Therefore, there can be no
assurancesthat theinvestmentsin the Pool will not vary significantly from theinvestments described bel ow.
In addition, the value of the various investments in the Pool will fluctuate on adaily basis as aresult of a
multitude of factors, including generally prevailing interest ratesand other economic conditions. Therefore,
there can be no assurance that the values of the various investments in the Pool will not vary significantly
from the values described below. In addition, the values specified in the following tables were based upon
estimates of market values provided to the County by athird party. Accordingly, there can be no assurance
that if these securities had been sold on November 30, 2008, the Pool necessarily would have received the
values specified.
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The School District has made neither an independent investigation of the investmentsin the
Pool nor an assessment of thecurrent County I nvestment Policy. Thevalueof thevariousinvestments
in the Pool will fluctuate on a daily basis as a result of a multitude of factors, including generally
prevailing interest rates and other economic conditions. Additionally, the County Treasurer may
changethelnvestment Policy at any time. Ther efore, there can be no assurancethat thevaluesof the
variousinvestmentsin the Pool will not vary significantly from the values described herein.

CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY PROVISIONS
AFFECTING DISTRICT REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS

Accreted Value of the Series C Bonds ar e payabl e fromthe proceeds of an ad valoremtax levied by
the County for the payment thereof. (See“ THE SERIES C BONDS— Security” herein.) Articles XIIIA,
XIB, XI1C and XI11D of the Constitution, Propositions 98, 111, 218 and 39, and certain other provisions
of law discussed below, are included in this Section to describe the potential effect of these Constitutional
and statutory measures on the ability of the County to levy taxes and of the School District to spend tax
proceedsfor operating and other purposes, and it should not beinferred fromtheinclusion of such materials
that these laws impose any limitation on the ability of the County to levy taxes for payment of the Series C
Bonds. The tax levied by the County for payment of the Series C Bonds was approved by the School
Digtrict’ s votersin compliance with Article XII1A, Article XIl1C, and all applicable laws.

Article XI11A of the California Constitution

On June 6, 1978, California voters approved Proposition 13 (“Proposition 13"), which added
ArticleXI11A tothe CaliforniaConstitution (“Article XI1HA™). Article XI1IA, asamended, limitstheamount
of any ad valoremtaxes on real property to 1% of the “full cash value,” and provides that such tax shall be
collected by the counties and apportioned according to Statelaw. Section 1(b) of Article XI11A providesthat
the 1% limitation does not apply to ad valorem taxes levied to pay interest and redemption charges on
(i) indebtedness approved by the votersprior to July 1, 1978, or (ii) bonded indebtedness for the acquisition
or improvement of real property approved on or after July 1, 1978, by two-thirds or more of the votes cast
on the proposition, or (iii) bonded indebtedness incurred by a school district or community college district
for the construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation or replacement of school facilities or the acquisition or
lease of real property for school facilities, approved by 55% of the voters of the School District, but only if
certain accountability measures are included in the proposition as provided by Proposition 39. Thetax for
payment of the Series C Bonds falls within the exception for bonds approved by a55% vote. Article XI1IA
defines full cash value to mean “the county assessor’ s valuation of real property as shown on the 1975-76
tax bill under “full cash value,” or thereafter, the appraised value of real property when purchased, newly
constructed, or achangein ownership has occurred after the 1975 assessment.” Thisfull cash value may be
increased at arate not to exceed 2% per year until new construction or a change of ownership occurs.

Article XI11A has subsegquently been amended to permit reduction of “full cash valug” in the event
of declining property values caused by substantial damage, destruction or other factors, to provide that there
would be no increasein “full cash value” in the event of reconstruction of property damaged or destroyed
in adisaster, and in various other minor or technical ways.

Legidation Implementing Article XI111A

L egidation has been enacted and amended anumber of times since 1978 to implement Article XI11A.
Under current law, local agencies are ho longer permitted to levy directly any property tax (except to pay
voter-approved indebtedness). The 1% property tax is automatically levied by the County and distributed
according to aformulaamong taxing agencies. The formulaapportionsthe tax roughly in proportion to the
relative shares of taxes levied prior to 1979.

That portion of annual property tax revenuesgenerated by increasesin assessed val uationswithin each
tax rate areawithin a county, subject to redevelopment agency claims on tax increment, if any, and subject
to changesin organizations, if any of affected jurisdictions, isallocateto each jurisdiction within thetax rate
areain the same proportion that the total property tax revenue from the tax rate area for the prior year was
allocate to such jurisdictions.
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Increases of assessed val uation resulting fromreapprai sal sof property dueto new construction, change
in ownership or from the annual adjustment not to exceed 2% are allocated among the variousjurisdictions
in the “taxing area’ based upon their respective “situs.” Any such allocation made to a local agency
continues as part of itsalocation in future years.

All taxable property is shown at 100% of assessed value on the tax rolls. Consequently, the tax rate
isexpressed as $1 per $100 of taxable value. All taxable property valueincluded in this Official Statement
is shown at 100% of taxable value (unless noted differently) and all tax rates reflect the $1 per $100 of
taxable value.

Taxation of State-Assessed Utility Property

A portion of property tax revenue of the School District is derived from utility property subject to
assessment by the State Board of Equalization (“SBE”). State-assessed property, or “unitary property,” is
property of a utility system with components located in many taxing jurisdictions that are assessed as part
of a“going concern” rather than as individual pieces of real or personal property. The assessed value of
unitary and certain other state-assessed property is alocated to the counties by the SBE, taxed at special
county-wide rates, and the tax revenues distributed to taxing jurisdictions (including the School District)
according to statutory formulae generally based on the distribution of taxesin the prior year.

Changesin the Californiaeectric utility industry structure and in the way in which components of
the industry are regulated and owned, including the sale of electric generation assetsto largely unregul ated,
non-utility companies, may affect how utility assets are assessed in the future, and which local agenciesare
to receive the property taxes. The School District is unable to predict the impact of these changes on its
utility property tax revenues, or whether legislation or litigation may affect ownership of utility assetsor the
State’ s methods of ng utility property and the allocation of assessed value to local taxing agencies,
including the School District. Because the School District isnot abasic aid district, taxes lost through any
reduction in assessed valuation will be compensated by the State as equali zation aid under the States’ school
financing formula.

Article X111B of the Califor nia Constitution

An initiative to amend the California Constitution entitled “Limitation of Government
Appropriations,” was approved on November 6, 1979, thereby adding Article XIIIB to the California
Consgtitution (“Article X111B”). Under Article XI1IB State and local governmental entities have an annual
“appropriationslimit” and arenot permitted to spend certain moneyswhich arecalled* appropri ati ons subj ect
tolimitation” (consisting of tax revenues, state subventionsand certain other funds) inan amount higher than
the “appropriations limit.” Article XI11B does not affect the appropriation of moneys which are excluded
from the definition of “appropriations subject to limitation,” including appropriations for debt service on
indebtedness existing or authorized as of January 1, 1979, or bonded indebtedness subsequently approved
by the voters. In general terms, the appropriations limit was originally to be based on certain Fiscal Y ear
1978-79 expenditures, and adjusted annually to reflect changesin consumer prices, popul ations, and services
provided by these entities. Among other provisions of Article XIIIB, if these entities' revenues in any
consecutive two-year period exceed the amounts permitted to be spent, the excesswould have to be returned
by revising tax rates or fee schedules over the subsequent two years.

Inthe event the School District receivesany proceeds of taxesin excess of theallowablelimitin any
fiscal year, the School District may implement a statutory procedure to concurrently increase the School
District’s appropriations limit and decrease the State’s allowable limit, thus nullifying the need for any
return. Certainfeaturesof Article XI11B weremodified by Proposition 111in 1990 (see* —Proposition 111"
below).

The District’ sappropriations from “ proceeds of taxes’ (sometimesreferred to asthe “ Gann limit™)
for the 2006-07 Fiscal Year were equal to the allowable limit of $164,214,519 and for the 2007-08 Fiscal
Y ear were equal to the allowablelimit of $172,844,584. The District currently estimates an appropriations
limit for 2008-09 of $180,493,954. Any proceeds of taxesreceived by the District in excessof the allowable
limit are absorbed into the State’ s allowable limit.
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Proposition 98

On November 8, 1988, California voters approved Proposition 98, a combined initiative
constitutional amendment and statute called the “ Classroom Instructional Improvement and Accountability
Act” (the* Accountability Act”). Certain provisionsof the Accountability Act, have, however, been modified
by Proposition 111, discussed below, the provisions of which became effective on July 1, 1990. The
Accountability Act changes State funding of public education below the university level and the operation
of the State’ sappropriationslimit. The Accountability Act guarantees Statefunding for K-12 school districts
and community college districts (hereinafter referred to collectively as “K-14 school districts’) at alevel
equal to the greater of (a) the same percentage of General Fund revenues as the percentage appropriated to
such districtsin 1986-87 or (b) the amount actually appropriated to such districtsfrom the State general fund
in the previous fiscal year, adjusted for increases in enrollment and changes in the cost of living. The
Accountability Act permitsthe Legislatureto suspend thisformulafor aone-year period. The current level
of guaranteed funding pursuant to Proposition 98 is approximately 35% of the State general fund.

The Accountability Act also changes how tax revenues in excess of the State appropriations limit
aredistributed. Any excess State tax revenues up to a specified amount would, instead of being returned to
taxpayers, be transferred to K-14 school districts. Any such transfer to K-14 school districts would be
excluded from the appropriations limit for K-14 school districts and the K-14 school district appropriations
limit for the next year would automatically be increased by the amount of such transfer. These additional
moneys would enter the base funding calculation for K-14 school districts for subsequent years, creating
further pressure on other portions of the State budget, particularly if revenuesdeclinein ayear following an
Article XI11B surplus. The maximum amount of excess tax revenues which could be transferred to K-14
school districtsis 4% of the minimum State spending for education mandated by the Accountability Act.

Since the Accountability Act is unclear in some details, there can be no assurances that the
Legidature or a court might not interpret the Accountability Act to require a different percentage of State
general fund revenues to be allocated to K-14 school districts, or to apply the relevant percentage to the
State’ s budgets in a different way than is proposed in the Governor’s Budget. In any event, the Governor
and other fiscal observers expect the Accountability Act to place increasing pressure on the State’' s budget
over future years, potentially reducing resources available for other State programs, especialy to the extent
the Article XI11B spending limit would restrain the State’s ability to fund such other programs by raising
taxes. (See “EFFECT OF STATE BUDGET ON REVENUES' and “DISTRICT FINANCIAL
INFORMATION.")

Proposition 111

On June 5, 1990, the voters of California approved the “ Traffic Congestion Relief and Spending
Limitation Act of 1990” (“Proposition 111"), which modified the State Constitution to alter the Article X111B
spending limit and the education funding provisions of Proposition 98. Proposition 111 took effect onJuly 1,
1990.

The most significant provisions of Proposition 111 are summarized as follows:

a.  Annua Adjustmentsto Spending Limit. The annual adjustmentsto the Article XI11B spending
limit wereliberalized to be more closely linked to therate of economic growth. Instead of being
tied to the Consumer Price Index, the “change in the cost of living” is how measured by the
change in California per capita personal income. The definition of “change in population”
specifiesthat aportion of the State’ s spending limit isto be adjusted to reflect changesin school
attendance.

b. Treatment of Excess Tax Revenues. “Excess’ tax revenues with respect to Article XI1IB are
now determined based on a two-year cycle, so that the State can avoid having to return to
taxpayers excess tax revenuesin one year if its appropriations in the next fiscal year are under
itslimit. Inaddition, the Proposition 98 provision regarding excesstax revenues was modified.
After any two-year period, if there are excess State tax revenues, 50% of the excess is to be
transferred to K-14 school districts with the balance returned to taxpayers; under prior law,
100% of excess State tax revenues went to K-14 school districts, but only up to a maximum of

16



4% of the schools’ minimum funding level. Also, reversing prior law, any excess State tax
revenues transferred to K-14 school districts are not built into the school districts’ base
expenditures for calculating their entitlement for State aid in the next year, and the State’s
appropriations limit is not to be increased by this amount.

c. Exclusionsfrom Spending Limit. Two new exceptions have been added to the calculation of
appropriations which are subject to the Article X111B spending limit. First, excluded are all
appropriations for “qualified capital outlay projects’ as defined by the Legislature. Second,
excluded are any increases in gasoline taxes above the current nine cents per gallon level, sales
and usetaxes on such increment in gasolinetaxes, and increasesin recei ptsfrom vehicle weight
fees above the levelsin effect on January 1, 1990.

d. Recalculation of AppropriationsLimit. The Article XI11B appropriationslimit for each unit of
government, including the State, is to be recalculated beginning in Fiscal Year 1990-91. Itis
based on the actual limit for Fisca Year 1986-87, adjusted forward to 1990-91 as if
Proposition 111 had been in effect.

e. School Funding Guarantee. There is a complex adjustment in the formula enacted in
Proposition 98 which guarantees K-14 school districts a certain amount of State general fund
revenues. Under prior law, K-14 school districts were guaranteed the greater of (1) a certain
percentage of State general fund revenues (the“first test”) or (2) the amount appropriated in the
prior year adjusted for changesin the cost of living (measured asin Article X111B by reference
to per capita persona income) and enrollment (the “second test”). Under Proposition 111,
schoolswill receivethe greater of (1) thefirst test, (2) the second test, or (3) athird test (defined
below), which will replace the second test in any year when growth in per capita State general
fund revenuesfromtheprior year islessthan theannual growth in Californiaper capita personal
income. Under the third test, schools will receive the amount appropriated in the prior year
adjusted for changein enrollment and per capita State general fund revenues, plus an additional
small adjustment factor (the “third test”). If the third test is used in any year, the difference
between the third test and the second test will become a*“ credit” to schools which will be paid
in future years when State general fund revenue growth exceeds personal income growth.

Proposition 218

An initiative measure entitled “Right to Vote on Taxes Act,” also known as Proposition 218 (the
“Initiative”), was approved by Californiavoters at the November 5, 1996, state-wide general election, and
became effective on November 6, 1996. The Initiative added Articles X111C and XI11D to the California
Consgtitution, and all references herein to Articles X111C and XI11D are referencesto the text as set forthin
the Initiative.

Among other things, Article X I11C establishesthat every tax imposed by alocal government iseither
a “general tax” (imposed for general governmental purposes) or a “specia tax” (imposed for specific
purposes), and prohibits specia purpose government agencies such as school districtsfrom levying general
taxes.

Article XI11C aso provides that the initiative power shall not be limited in matters of reducing or
repealing local taxes, assessments, feesand charges. Theinitiative power is, however, limited by the United
States Constitution’s prohibition against state or local laws “impairing the obligation of contracts.” The
Series C Bondsrepresent acontract between the School District and the bondhol der secured by the collection
of ad valorem property taxes. Whilenot freefrom doubt, itislikely that, oncethe Series C Bonds areissued,
the taxes securing them would not be subject to reduction or repeal. Legislation adopted in 1997 provides
that Article X111C shall not be construed to mean that any owner or beneficial owner of amunicipal security
assumestherisk of or consentsto any initiative measurewhichwoul d constitute an impairment of contractual
rights under the contracts clause of the United States Constitution.
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Article X111D deal swith assessments and property-related feesand charges. Article X111D explicitly
provides that nothing in Article XI11C or XI1ID shall be construed to affect existing laws relating to the
imposition of fees or charges as a condition of property development; however, it is not clear whether the
initiative power is therefore unavailable to repeal or reduce developer and mitigation fees imposed by the
School District. No devel oper feesimposed by the School District are pledged or expected to be used to pay
the Series C Bonds.

The interpretation and application of the Initiative and the United States Constitution’s contracts
clause will ultimately be determined by the courts with respect to a number of the matters discussed above,
and it is not possible at this time to predict with certainty the outcome of such determination.

Proposition 39

On November 7, 2000, California voters approved an amendment (commonly known as
“Proposition 39") tothe CaliforniaConstitution. Thisamendment (1) allowsschool facilities' bond measures
to be approved by 55% (rather than two-thirds) of the votersinlocal elections and permits property taxesto
exceed the current 1% limit in order to repay the bonds and (2) changes existing statutory law regarding
charter school facilities. Asadopted, the constitutional amendmentsmay be changed only withanother State-
wide vote of the people. The statutory provisions could be changed by amgjority vote of both houses of the
Legidature and approved by the Governor, but only to further the purposes of the proposition. The local
school jurisdictions affected by this proposition are K-12 school districts, including the School District,
community college districts and county offices of education. As noted above, the California Constitution
previoudly limited property taxesto 1% of the value of property. Property taxes may only exceed thislimit
to pay for (1) any local government debts approved by the voters prior to July 1, 1978 or (2) bondsto buy
or improve real property that receive two-thirds voter approval after July 1, 1978.

The 55% vote requirement would apply only if the local bond measure presented to the voters
includes: (1) arequirement that the bond funds can be used only for construction, rehabilitation, equipping
of school facilitiesor the acquisition or |ease of real property for school facilities; (2) aspecificlist of school
projects to be funded and certification that the school board has evaluated safety, class size reduction and
information technology needs in developing the list; and (3) a requirement that the school board conduct
annual, independent financial and performance audits until all bond funds have been spent to ensurethat the
bond funds have been used only for the projects listed in the measure. Legislation approved in June 2000
places certain limitations on local school bonds to be approved by 55% of the voters. These provisions
require that the tax rate levied as the result of any single el ection be no more than $60 (for a unified school
district), $30 (for ahigh school or elementary school district), or $25 (for acommunity college district), per
$100,000 of taxable property value. These requirementsare not part of this proposition and can be changed
with amagjority vote of both houses of the Legislature and approval by the Governor.

Applications of Constitutional and Statutory Provisions

The application of Proposition 98 and other statutory regulations has becomeincreasingly difficult
to predict accurately in recent years. For a discussion of how the provisions of Proposition 98 have been
applied to school funding, see* — Proposition 98" and “ — Proposition 111" above.

Future I nitiatives and L egidation

The Initiative was adopted pursuant to a measure qualified for the ballot pursuant to California’ s
constitutional initiative processand the State L egid ature hasin the past enacted | egislation which hasaltered
the spending limitations or established minimum funding provisions for particular activities. Fromtimeto
time, other initiative measures could be adopted by California voters or legidation enacted by the State
Legidature. The adoption of any such initiative or enactment of legidation might place limitations on the
ability of the State, the County, the City, the School District or loca districts to increase revenues or to
increase appropriations or on the ability of a property owner to complete the devel opment of the property.
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EFFECT OF STATE BUDGET ON REVENUES

Most public school districts in California are dependent on revenues from the State for a large
portion of their operating budgets. In the aggregate, the State General Fund provides approximately 58%
of the estimated total statewide expendituresfor K-12 education programs. The primary source of funding
for school districts isthe revenue limit, which isacombination of State funds and local property taxes (see
“DISTRICT FINANCIAL INFORMATION — State Funding of Education” herein). State fundstypically
make up the majority of adistrict’ srevenuelimit. School districtsal so receive substantial funding fromthe
State for various categorical programs. See “DISTRICT FINANCIAL INFORMATION — Financial
Statements” hereinfor information regarding revenuesreceived by the School District fromall State sources.

Theavailability of Statefundsfor public educationisafunction of constitutional provisionsaffecting
school district revenues and expenditures (see “CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY PROVISIONS
AFFECTING DISTRICT REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS"), the condition of the State economy
(which affects total revenue available to the State general fund), and the annual State budget process.

Cdlifornia Teachers' Association v. Gould. During several years in the early 1990s, the State
realized less tax receipts than it had previously budgeted, so that in each of those years public education
received morein funding than its minimum entitlement under Proposition 98. (See“CONSTITUTIONAL
AND STATUTORY PROVISIONS AFFECTING DISTRICT REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS —
Proposition 98”). The State legislature characterized the overfunded amounts as “loans’ to be repaid from
the Proposition 98 entitlement infutureyears. Theaggregateamount of theseloanswas approximately $1.76
billion. The validity of the loan characterization and repayment mechanism were chalenged by the
Cdlifornia Teachers Association (“CTA”), which sought to void the obligation to repay the loan amounts.

On April 26, 1994, a Sacramento County superior court entered a judgment that K-14 districts are
not obligated to repay theinter-year loans. Thedecisionwas appealed by the State, and pending such appeal
the CTA and the State reached a settlement which becamefinal on April 12, 1996. Pursuant tothe settlement
agreement, no new inter-year loans will be created; the existing loans were required to be repaid over an
elght-year period, with K-14 schools contributing $825 million from funds allocated to education under
Proposition 98, and the State contributing the balance of $938 million. The schools' contribution of $825
million was counted toward the Proposition 98 guarantee in future years.

Education Provisions of the California State Budget. The Governor is required by the State
Constitution to propose a budget to the State L egislature no later than January 10 of each year, and afina
budget must be adopted by a 2/3 vote of each house of the Legidature no later than June 15, although this
deadline is routinely breached. The budget becomes law upon the signature of the Governor, who retains
veto power over specific items of expenditure. State income tax, salestax, and other receipts can fluctuate
significantly from year to year depending on economic conditions in the State and the nation. Because
funding for K-12 education is closely related to overal State income, funding levels can also vary
significantly from year to year, even in the absence of significant education policy changes. The School
District cannot predict how Stateincome or State education funding will vary over the entiretermto maturity
of the Bonds, and the School District takes no responsibility for informing owners of the Bonds as to any
such annual fluctuations. Information about the State budgeting process, the State Budget and State spending
for educationisavailableat various State-maintai ned websites, including (i) the State’ swebsite, whererecent
official statementsfor State bondsare posted, (ii) the California State Treasurer’ s Internet home pagewhich
includes the State’ s audited financial statements, various State of California Official Statements, many of
which contain a summary of the current State Budget, past State Budgets, and the impact of those budgets
on school districtsin the State, the State’ s Rule 15¢2-12 filings for State bond issues, financial information
which includes an overview of the State economy and government, State finances, State indebtedness,
liti gation and discussion of the State budget and itsimpact on school districts; (iii) the California Department
of Finance' s internet home page which includes the text of the budget and information regarding the State
budget, and (iv) the State L egidative Analysts' soffice which prepares analyses of the proposed and adopted
State budgets. The Sate has not entered into any contractual commitment with the School District, the
County, the underwriter or the owners of the Series C Bonds to provide Sate budget information to the
School District or the owners of the Series C Bonds. Although the State sour ces of information listed above
are believed to be reliable, neither the School District nor the underwriter assumes any responsibility for
the accuracy of the state budget information set forth or referred to therein.
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_ Recent Developments Regarding State Finances. Since early 2001 the State has faced si%nificant
financial challenges, with an economic recession in 2001 and a sluggish recovery in 2002 and 2003 (with
reatest impacts in the high technology, internet and telecommunications sectors, especially in Northern
alifornia); weakened exports; and most particul ar(ljy, large stock market declines between 2000 and 2002
(with attendant declines in stock option values an ital gains realizations). These adverse fiscal and
economic factors resulted in an erosion of State general fundtax revenues. Thethreelargest State general
fund tax sources are personal income, sales and use, and corporate taxes. The bulk of the revenue declines
were from personal income taxes, principally from reduced capital gains realizations and stock option
income. Thisrevenuedrop resulted in ashortfall between State revenues and anticipated spending demands
during three Fiscal Y earsfrom 2001-02 to 2003-04 resulting in atotal accumul ated deficit of approximately
$22 hillion. In Fiscal Years 2004-05 and 2005-06, finances improved but concerns remain regardin
structural imbalancesintheannual State budget. InFiscal Y ears2006-07 and 2007-08, financesdeteriorat
%tnd me:j scal Y ears 2007-08 and 2008-09, the State struggled with the structural imbalances in the annual
ate budget.

2008-09 State Budget. Governor S(_:hwartzenegdger introduced the progosed 2008-09 State Budget
on January 10, 2008. Total 2008-09 Proposition 98 funding was proposed at $55.7 billion, which reflected
no increase over therevised estimate of $55.7 billion for Fiscal Y ear 2007-08. Total 2006-07 Proposition 98
funding was $55.1 billion, of which the General Fund share was approximately $41.4 billion. The proposed
Fiscal Y ear 2008-09 |evel of fundlgg alsoreflected $4 billion in Proposition 98 spending below thelevel that
otherwise would have been required by the Proposition 98 guarantee for Fiscal Y ear 2008-09. The General
Fund comprises approximately $39.6 billion of total proposed Proposition 98 funding. Thesetotalsinclude
funding for K-12 and community colleges.

~ OnMay 14, 2008, the Governor presented the May Revision to the Governor’s Budget. The May
Revision maintained education as a high priority and provided more funding than was contemplated in the
QI‘I?I nal Governor’sBudget. The 2008-09 Budget was enacted by the Governor on September 23, 2008, and
included $58.1 billion in Proposition 98 funding of which $41.9 billion would be paid from the State’s
General Fund. Due to deterloratlnP State finances since adoption of the 2008-09 State Budget, on
December 1, 2008, the Governor called two immediate special legislative sessions to address the urgent
budget situation. On Januar¥(8, 20009, the Governor declared afiscal emergency and rel eased the Governor’s
proposed budget for Fiscal Y ear 2009-10.

It should not beinferred from theinclusion of thisinformation in this Official Statement that
the Accreted Value of the Series C Bondsis payablefrom thegeneral fund of the School District. The
Series C Bonds are payable from the proceeds of an ad valorem tax reﬂm red to be levied by the County in
ﬁn amount sufficient for the payment of the Series C Bonds. See “THE SERIES C BONDS — Security”

erein.

Future Budg(ets. The School District cannot predict what actions will be taken in the future by the
State Legislature and the Governor to deal with the projected State budget deficit and the changing State
revenuesand expenditures. Future State Budgetswill be affected by national and State economic conditions
and other factors. However, the obligation of the County to Iev)( ad valoremtaxes upon all taxable property
within the School District for the payment of the Bonds would not be impaired. The Governor and the
Legidature have not always met the statutory deadline for approval of the State Budget.

. TheSeriesCBondsaregeneral obligation bondsof the School District onbehalf of the Improvement
District secured t%;t/ ad valorem taxes levied and collected pursuant to the Authorization, the California
Constitution and State law and do not constitute an obligation of the County except to provide for the levy
and collection of the ad valorem taxes and payment of funds to the Paying Agent as set forth in the
Resolutions. No part of any fund of the County ispledged or obligated to the payment of the Series C Bonds.

THE IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
General Information

The Improvement District wasformed on August 6, 2002, pursuant to the provisions of the Act and
proceedings taken by the School District. The Improvement District includes all of the territory located
within the boundaries of the School District excepting only noncontiguous territory located within the
boundaries of certain Mello-Roos community facilities districts formed by the School District. The areaof
the Improvement District is about 65 square miles, representing approximately 66% of the territory of the
School District. There were approximately 66,217 housing units in the entire School District of which
approximately 44,529 were within the Improvement District in Fiscal Y ear 2008-09. Approximately 22,220
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of the School District’s students reside within the Improvement District while enrollment within the entire
School District was approximately 33,306. All of the necessary filings under State Law connected with
formation of the Improvement District have been made with the State Board of Equalization.

The Series C Bonds are general obligation bonds of the School District, on behalf of the
Improvement District, payable from ad valorem taxes levied on taxable parcels within the Improvement
District.

TAX BASE FOR REPAYMENT OF SERIES C BONDS

TheinformationinthisSection describesad val oremproperty taxati on, assessed val uation and other
measures of the tax base of the Improvement District. The Series C Bonds are payable solely from ad
valorem taxes levied and collected by the County on taxable property in the Improvement District. The
School District’s general fund is not a source for the repayment of the Series C Bonds.

Ad Valorem Property Taxation

Taxes are levied by the County for each fiscal year on taxable real and personal property which is
situated in the County as of the preceding January 1. For assessment and collection purposes, property is
classified either as “secured” or “unsecured” and is listed accordingly on separate parts of the assessment
roll. The“securedroll” isthat part of the assessment roll containing State-assessed public utilities property
and real property having atax lien which is sufficient, in the opinion of the County Assessor, to secure
payment of thetaxes. Other property isassessed on the“unsecured roll.” Boatsand airplanes are examples
of unsecured property.

Property taxesonthe secured roll are duein two installments, on November 1 and February 1 of each
fiscal year. If unpaid, such taxes become delinquent on December 10 and April 10, respectively, and a10%
penalty attaches to any delinquent payment. Property on the secured roll with respect to which taxes are
delinquent becomes tax defaulted on or about June 30 of the fiscal year. Such property may thereafter be
redeemed by payment of delinquent taxes and the delinquency penalty, plus costs and redemption penalty
of one and one-half percent per month to the time of redemption. If taxes are unpaid for a period of five
years or more, the property is subject to sale by the County Treasurer.

Property taxes on the unsecured roll are due as of the January 1 lien date and become delinquent, if
unpaid, on August 31. A 10% penalty attachesto delinguent taxes on property on the unsecured roll and an
additional penalty of one and one-half percent per month begins to accrue on November 1. The taxing
authority has four ways of collecting delinquent unsecured personal property taxes. (1) bringing a civil
action against the taxpayer; (2) filing a certificate in the office of the County Clerk specifying certain facts
in order to obtain alien on certain property of the taxpayer; (3) filing a certificate of delinquency for record
in the County Clerk and County Recorder’s office in order to obtain a lien on certain property of the
taxpayer; and (4) seizing and selling personal property, improvements, or possessory interests belonging or
assessed to the assessee.

Future assessed valuation growth allowed under Article XIIIA (new construction, certain changes
of ownership, 2% inflation) will be allocated on the basis of “situs’ among the jurisdictions that serve the
tax rate areawithin which the growth occurs. Local agenciesand school districts sharethe growth of “base”
revenues from the tax rate area. Each year’s growth allocation becomes part of each agency’ sallocationin
thefollowing year. Theavailability of revenue from growth in tax basesto such entities may be affected by
theestablishment of redevel opment agencieswhich, under certain circumstances, may beentitledtorevenues
resulting from the increase in certain property values.

Assessed Valuations
The assessed valuation of property in the Improvement District is established by the County
Assessor, except for public utility property which is assessed by the State Board of Equalization. Assessed

valuations are reported at 100% of the “full value” of the property, as defined in Article XIIIA of the
California Constitution. Prior to 1981-82, assessed valuations were reported at 25% of the full value of
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property. For a discussion of how properties currently are assessed, see “CONSTITUTIONAL AND
STATUTORY PROVISIONS AFFECTING DISTRICT REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS.”

Certain classes of property, such as churches, colleges, not-for-profit hospitals, and charitable
institutions, areexempt from property taxation and do not appear on thetax rolls. Noreimbursement ismade
by the State for such exemptions.

Property within the Improvement District had a net taxable assessed valuation for Fiscal Year
2008-09 of $20,314,161,525, representing about 70.1% of thetotal assessed val uation of the School District.
Shown in the following table are the assessed valuations for the Improvement District for the last several
years. Information regarding the assessed valuations for the School District for thelast 5 yearsare set forth
under the caption “DISTRICT FINANCIAL INFORMATION — Assessed Valuations.”

ASSESSED VALUATION OF PROPERTIESWITHIN
SCHOOL FACILITIESIMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2002-1 OF THE
POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
FISCAL YEARS 2004-05 TO 2008-09

Loca Secured Utility Unsecured Total
2004-05 $14,552,963,584 $1,079,418 $568,793,031 $15,122,836,033
2005-06 16,002,145,044 1,079,418 585,748,210 16,588,972,672
2006-07 17,616,006,274 1,079,418 746,503,415 18,363,589,107
2007-08 19,108,356,412 1,079,418 669,384,439 19,778,820,269
2008-09 19,688,293,373 1,079,418 624,788,734 20,314,161,525

Source: California Municipal Satistics, Inc.

Economic and other factors beyond the District’s control, such as general market decline in land
values, reclassification of property to a class exempt from taxation, whether by ownership or use (such as
exemptions for property owned by the State and |ocal agencies and property used for qualified educations,
hospital, charitable or religious purposes), or the complete or partial destruction of taxable property caused
by anatural or manmade disaster, such as earthquake, flood, or toxic contamination, could cause areduction
in the assessed value of taxable property within the District and necessitate a corresponding increasein the
annual tax rate.

Tax Leviesand Delinquencies

Information regarding the secured tax charges and delinquencies for all taxes collected in the
Improvement District is not available from the County. As described below, the County has implemented
an alternative method for the distribution of secured property taxesto local agencies, known asthe “ Teeter
Plan™ pursuant to which a participating local agency receives annually 100% of the secured property tax
levies to which it is otherwise entitled, regardless of whether the County has actually collected the levies.
The Teeter Plan may be discontinued under certain circumstances.

Alternative Method of Tax Distribution —* Teeter Plan”
The following information has been provided by the County for inclusion in this Official Satement.

The County hasimplemented an alternative method for the distribution of secured property taxesto
local agencies, known asthe “ Teeter Plan.” The Teeter Plan provisions are now set forth in Sections 4701
to 4717 of the California Revenue and Taxation Code. Upon adoption and implementation of this method
by acounty board of supervisors, local agenciesfor which the county actsas* bank” and certain other public
agencies and taxing areas located in the county receive annually the full amount of their share of property
taxeson the securedroll, including delinquent property taxeswhich haveyet to be collected. Whileacounty
benefits from the penalties associated with these delinquent taxes when they are paid, the Teeter Plan
provides participating local agencies with stable cash flow and the elimination of collection risk.
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To implement a Teeter Plan, the board of supervisors of a county generally must elect to do so by
July 15 of thefiscal year inwhichitisto apply. Asaseparate €l ection, acounty may elect to havethe Teeter
Plan procedures also apply to assessments on the secured roll. The County Board of Supervisors adopted
the Teeter Plan on June 29, 1993. The County’ s Teeter Plan appliesto the School District andtothe SeriesC
Bonds.

The ad val orem property tax to belevied to pay the Accreted Vaue of the Series C Bondsis subject
to the Teeter Plan. The School District will receive 100% of the ad val orem property tax levied to pay the
Series C Bondsirrespective of actual delinguenciesin the collection of the tax by the County.

Once adopted, a county’s Teeter Plan will remain in effect in perpetuity unless the board of
supervisors orders its discontinuance or unless prior to the commencement of a fiscal year a petition for
discontinuance is received and joined in by resol utions of the governing bodies of not less than two-thirds
of the participating districtsin the county. An electing county may, however, opt to discontinue the Teeter
Plan with respect to any levying agency in the county if the board of supervisors, by action taken not later
than July 15 of afiscal year, electsto discontinue the procedure with respect to such levying agency and the
rate of secured tax delinquencies in that agency in any year exceeds 3% of the total of all taxes and
assessments levied on the secured roll by that agency. The County has never discontinued the Teeter Plan
with respect to any levying agency.

Upon making aTeeter Plan €l ection, acounty must initially provide aparticipatinglocal agency with
95% of the estimated amount of the then-accumulated tax delinquencies (excluding penalties) for that
agency. In the case of the initial year distribution of assessments (if a county has elected to include
assessments), 100% of the assessment delinguencies (excluding penalties) are to be apportioned to the
participatinglocal agency whichleviedthe assessment. After theinitial distribution, each participatinglocal
agency receivesannually 100% of the secured property tax leviesto whichitisotherwise entitled, regardless
of whether the county has actually collected the levies.

If any tax or assessment which was distributed to a Teeter Plan participant is subsequently changed
by correction, cancellation or refund, a pro rata adjustment for the amount of the change is made on the
records of the treasurer and auditor of the county. Such adjustment for a decrease in the tax or assessment
istreated by the County as an interest-free offset against future advances of tax levies under the Teeter Plan.

Tax Rates

Thereare atotal of approximately 248 tax rate areas in the Improvement District. The table below
provides representative total ad valorem tax rates levied by all taxing entities in Tax Rate Areas 8-262
(located inthe City representing approximately $10,616,296,218 of assessed val ue or approximately 52.26%
of the total assessed value of $20,314,161,525 in the Improvement District) and 17-030 (located in the
unincorporated area of the County representing approximately $682,227,476 of assessed value or
approximately 3.36% of thetotal assessed valueof $20,314,161,525inthelmprovement District). Thetables
below show the tax rates for each Tax Rate Area.
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SCHOOL FACILITIESIMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2002-1 OF THE
POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Typical Tax Rates (TRA8-262)™
2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09

General 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000  1.00000
City of San Diego .00670 .00645  .00624 .00619 .00608
Palomar Community College District - - - .00984 .01322
Poway Unified School District SFID No. .04723 04256  .04627 .04460 .04704
2002-1
Palomar Pomerado Healthcare District - .01775 .01775 .01775 .01775
Metropolitan Water District .00580 .00520 _.00470 .00450 .00430
1.05973 1.07196 1.07496 1.08288  1.08839
Typical Tax Rates (TRA 17-030)®
2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08  2008-09
General 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000  1.00000
City of Poway .00720 .00690 - - -
Palomar Community College District - - - .00984 .01322
Poway Unified School District SFID No. 04723 04256  .04627 .04460 .04704
2002-1
Palomar Pomerado Healthcare District - 01775  .01775 01775 01775
Metropolitan Water District .00580 .00520 _.00470 .00450 .00430

106023 1.07241 106872 1.07669  1.08231

1 52 26% of total school district valuation.
@ 3.36% of total school district valuation.

Source: California Municipal Satistics, Inc.
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Largest Property Owners

Thefollowing table shows the 20 largest owners of taxable property in the Improvement District as
determined by secured assessed valuation in Fiscal Y ear 2008-09.

LARGEST LOCAL SECURED PROPERTY OWNERS
SCHOOL FACILITIESIMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2002-1 OF THE
POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Largest 2008-09 Local Secured Taxpayers

Primary 2008-09 % of

Property Owner Land Use Assessed Valuation  Total®

1. M.S RidtoTheLakesCALLC Residential Properties $ 193,957,752 0.99%
2. Sorrento West Properties Inc. Industrial 173,192,432 0.88
3.  Kilroy Readlty LP Office Building 159,430,718 0.81
4.  Hewlett-Packard Co. Industrial 143,047,658 0.73
5. CymerInc. Office Building 130,951,567 0.67
6. Bernardo Summit LLC Industrial 110,775,000 0.56
7.  Point Office Partners LLC Office Building 91,800,000 0.47
8.  Sony ElectronicsInc. Industrial 90,736,825 0.46
9. SloughPoway | & Il LLC Office Building 77,736,916 0.39
10. Bernardo Technology Partners LLC Office Building 76,944,994 0.39
11. BAE Systems Mission Solutions Inc. Industrial 73,505,120 0.37
12. PDP Pomerado LLC Office Building 69,558,551 0.35
13. Apple Seven Hospitality Ownership Inc. Hotel 68,493,000 0.35
14. Arden Realty LP Office Building 67,120,742 0.34
15. TeradataU.S. Inc. Office Building 62,628,018 0.32
16. Rreef American REIT |1 Portfolio LP Office Building 60,236,108 0.31
17. CCC Retirement Communities| LP Rest Home 58,599,037 0.30
18. Milazzo ResidencesLLC Apartments 53,804,641 0.27
19. West Bernardo VenturesLLC Industria 40,800,000 0.21
20. Goldentop Road LLC Industrial 37,740,000 0.19

$1,841,059,079 9.35%

1 2008-09 Loca Secured Assessed Valuation: $19,688,293,373.

Source: California Municipal Satistics, Inc.

Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt

‘Set forth below isadirect and overlapping debt report (the “ Debt Report”) prej?ared in September
2008 with respect to the Improvement Area by California Municipal Statistics, Inc. The Debt Report is
included for general information purposes only. The School District has not reviewed the Debt Report for
completeness or accuracy and makes no representation in connection therewith.

~ TheDebt Report generally includeslong-term obligationssoldinthe public credit marketsby public
agencies whose boundaries overlap the boundaries of the Improvement District in whole or in part. Such
long-term obligations generally are not payable from revenues of the School District ﬁexcept as indicated)
nor are they necessarily obligations secured by land within the Improvement District. 1n many cases, long-
terkr)rll_ obligationsissued by apublic agency are payable only from the general fund or other revenues of suc
public agency.

~ The contents of the Debt Report are as follows: %) the first column indicates the public agencies
which have outstanding debt as of the date of the Debt Report and whose territory overlaps the School
District; éZ) the second column shows the percentage of the assessed valuation of the overIaBpl ng public
ency identified in column 1 which is represented by property located within the School District; and
ag) the third column is an apportionment of the dollar amount of each public agency’s outstanding debt
which amount is not shown in the table) to property in the School District, as determined by multiplying
the total outstanding debt of each agency by the percentage of the School District’s assessed valuation
represented in column 2.
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STATEMENT OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING BONDED DEBT
SCHOOL FACILITIESIMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2002-1 OF THE
POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

General Obligation Bonds

2008-09 Assessed Valuation: $20,314,161,525
Incremental Valuation 3,812,849,826
Adjusted Assessed Valuation: $16,501,311,699
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT: % Applicable® Debt 10/1/08
Metropolitan Water District 0.904% $ 2,958,024
Palomar Community College District 20.258 32,007,640
San Diego Community College District 0.003 14,961
Poway Unified School District School Facilities | mprovement District No. 2002-1 100. 175,620,766 @
Padre Dam Municipal Water District, 1.D. No. C 0.002 2
City of San Diego 6.960 439,524
City of San Diego Open Space Park District 6.960 487,896
Palomar Pomerado Healthcare District 29.762 91,836,103
City of Poway Community Facilities District No. 88-1 100. 19,840,000
South Poway Community Facilities District No. 1 100. 5,700,000
Rancho Santa Fe Community Services District Community Facilities District No. 1 0.683 326,542
1915 Act Bonds Various 951,341
TOTAL GROSS DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT $330,182,799
Less: City of San Diego Open Space Park District (100% self-supporting) 487,896
TOTAL NET DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT $329,694,903
OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND DEBT:
San Diego County General Fund Obligations 4673%  $ 16,513,214
San Diego County Pension Obligations 4.673 46,107,459
San Diego County Superintendent of Schools General Fund Obligations 4.673 801,186
Palomar Community College District Certificates of Participation 20.258 1,492,002
Poway Unified School District Certificates of Participation 57.838 73,723,490
City of Poway Certificates of Participation 99.670 50,413,086
City of San Diego General Fund Obligations 6.960 32,087,340
City of Santee General Fund Obligations 0.005
TOTAL OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND DEBT $221,137,867
GROSS COMBINED TOTAL DEBT $551,320,666 ©
NET COMBINED TOTAL DEBT $550,832,770

@ Based on 2007-08 ratios.

@ Excludes issue to be sold.

®  Excludes tax and revenue anticipation notes, enterprise revenue, mortgage revenue and tax allocation bonds and non-bonded capital
lease obligations.

Ratios to 2008-09 Assessed Valuation:

Direct Debt ($175,620,766) . . . ... vvvt e 0.86%

Total Gross Direct and Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt . ............. 1.63%

Total Net Direct and Overlapping Tax and AssessmentDebt ............... 1.62%
Ratios to Adjusted Assessed Valuation:

GrossCombined Total Debt . ...........cci i i 3.34%

Net Combined Total Debt . . ... e 3.34%

STATE SCHOOL BUILDING AID REPAYABLE AS OF 6/30/08: $0

Source: California Municipal Satistics, Inc.
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THE SCHOOL DISTRICT

The information in this Section concerning the School District is provided as supplementary
information only, and it should not be inferred from the inclusion of this information in this Official
Satement that the Accreted Value of the Series C Bonds is payable from the general fund of the School
District. The Series C Bonds are payabl e from the proceeds of an ad valoremtax required to be levied by
the County in an amount sufficient for the payment thereof. See* THE SERIESC BONDS— Security” herein.

General Information

The Poway Unified School District (the“ School District”) islocated north of the City of San Diego
(the “City”). The School District was originally formed in 1962. The School District currently covers
approximately 100 square miles in the central portion of the County of San Diego (the “County”) and
includesthe City of Poway and portions of the City and the County, including the communities of 4SRanch,
Black Mountain Ranch, Carmel Mountain Ranch, Del Sur, Poway, Rancho Bernardo, Rancho Pefiasquitos,
Sabre Springs, Santa Fe Valley, Santaluz and Torrey Highlands. The School District currently operates
twenty-five (25) elementary schools, six (6) middle schools, four (4) high schools, one (1) continuation high
school and one (1) adult school. The School District had approximately 33,282 students enrolled during
Fiscal Year 2007-08 and estimates approximately 33,306 of students enrolled during Fiscal Y ear 2008-09.

Administration

The School District isgoverned by the Board of Education (the“Board”). Thefive Board members
are elected to four-year terms in alternate slates of three and two in elections held every two years. If a
vacancy arises during any term, the vacancy isfilled by an appointment by amajority vote of the remaining
Board members and, if there is no majority, by a special election. Current members of the Board, together
with their office and the date their term expires, are listed bel ow:

Board Member Office Current Term Expires
Andy Patapow President December 1, 2012
Todd Gutschow Vice-President December 1, 2012
Penny Ranftle Clerk December 1, 2010
Jeff Mangum Member December 1, 2010
Linda Vanderveen Member December 1, 2010

The administrative staff of the School District includes Donald A. Phillips, Ed.D., Superintendent,
John P. Callins, Ed. D., Deputy Superintendent, and Malliga Tholandi, Chief Financial Officer.

The Superintendent of the School District is responsible for administering the affairs of the School
District in accordance with the policies of the Board. The School District also employs a Deputy
Superintendent, a Chief Financial Officer, an Associate Superintendent and, two Assistant Superintendents
for Learning Support Services.

Enrollment
From Fiscal Year 2003-04 through Fiscal Y ear 2007-08 the School District’s enrollment has been

stable. See the table in “DISTRICT FINANCIAL INFORMATION — State Funding of Education” for
information concerning enrollment for these years.
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Labor Relations

Asof September 1, 2008, the School District employed approximately 1,908 certificated employees
and approximately 1,838 classified employees. The certificated employees, except management and some
part-time employees, are represented by the bargaining units as noted below:

Poway Unified School District
District Employees

Approximate

Number of Contract
Employees Expiration
Labor Organization In Organization Date
Poway Federation of Teachers (PFT), Local 2357 1,687 6/30/09
Service Employees International Union 493 6/30/10
California School Employees Association 1,266 6/30/09

Source: School District.
Retirement Programs

The School District participatesin the State of California Teachers' Retirement System (“STRS").
Thisplan coverscertificated employees. The School District’ scontributionto STRSfor Fiscal Y ear 2004-05
was $9,450,619, inFiscal Y ear 2005-06 was $10,013,458, in Fiscal Y ear 2006-07 was $10,869,404, in Fiscal
Y ear 2007-08 was $11,418,456 and the Fiscal Y ear 2008-09 budget was $11,192,021. In order to receive
STRS benefits, an employee must be at least 55 years old and have provided five years of service to
Cdiforniapublic schools. At ameetingin September 2006, the Board of STRS approved guiding principles
for proposed legisiation to address a long-term funding gap, which include the possibility of increasing
contributions among members, school districts and the State incrementally over time.

The School District also participates in the State of California Public Employees’ Retirement
Systems (“PERS"). This plan covers certificated employeeswho elect and all classified personnel who are
employed 1,000 or more hours per fiscal year. The School District’s contribution to PERS for Fiscal Y ear
2004-05 was $4,856,272, in Fiscal Y ear 2005-06 was $4,867,201, in Fiscal Y ear 2006-07 was $4,430,814,
in Fiscal Year 2007-08 was $4,798,874 and the Fiscal Y ear 2008-09 budget was $5,078,343.

Contribution ratesto these two retirement systems vary annually depending on changesin actuarial
assumptions and other factors, such as changesin retirement benefits. The contribution rates are based on
state-wide rates set by the STRS and PERS retirement boards. STRS has a substantial state-wide unfunded
liability. Sincethisliability has not been broken down by each school district, it isimpossibleto determine
the School District’s share.

The School District offerspost retirement benefitsfor employeesuptoage65. The School District’s
contribution for these benefits for the Fiscal Y ear ending June 30, 2005, was $651,520, for the Fiscal Y ear
ending June 30, 2006, was $758,340, for the Fiscal Y ear ending June 30, 2007, was $942,340, for the Fiscal
Y ear ending June 30, 2008, was $1,134,471, and the School District budgeted approximately $1,158,386 for
Fiscal Year 2008-09. The program is operated on a pay-as-you go basis and budgets the current costs each
year with an increase based on actual health and welfare increases. See “DISTRICT FINANCIAL
INFORMATION — District Obligations — Other Post Employment Benefits.”

Insurance
The School District maintainscommercial insurance or self-insurancefor property damage, general

liability and workers' compensation in such amounts and with such retentions and other terms as the School
District believes to be adequate based on actual risk exposures and as may be required by statute.

28



In 1998, the State of California authorized the School District to operate a Self-Insured Workers'
Compensation Plan to finance liabilities arising from employee industrial injuries. The School District
responded by implementing such aplan on July 1, 1998. Effective July 1, 2005, the School District joined
afully insured workers' compensation Joint Powers Authority (“JPA”) known as the Protected Insurance
Programfor Schools (“PIPS’). The School District retainsresponsibility for all previousself-insured claims
and will managethemuntil they close. Keenan & Associatesisthe claimsadministrator for both self-insured
and PIPS claims.

The School District operates a self-insurance program to cover general liability claim losses up to
alimit of $50,000 per claim, and for property losses up to $5,000 per claim. Lower self-insured retentions
apply to boiler and machinery/energy systems ($1,000 per claim) and crimelosses ($500 per claim). Excess
property and liability insurance is acquired through membership in ajoint powers authority, the Southern
Cdlifornia Regional Liability Excess Fund (“SCR”). The JPA provides general liability coverage up to
$25,000,000 per occurrence (minus the $50,000 retention) and property loss coverage up to $250,000,000
per occurrence (minus the $5,000 retention).

DISTRICT FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The information in this Section concerning the operations of the School District and the School
Digtrict’ sgeneral fund financesis provided as supplementary infor mation only, and it should not beinferred
fromtheinclusion of thisinformationin this Official Satement that the Accreted Val ue of the SeriesC Bonds
is payable fromthe general fund of the School District. The Series C Bonds are payable fromthe proceeds
of an ad valorem tax required to be levied by the County in an amount sufficient for the payment thereof.
See “ THE SERIES C BONDS— Security” herein.

Accounting Practices

Theaccounting practices of the School District conformto generally accepted accounting principles
in accordance with policies and procedures of the California School Accounting Manual. This manual,
according to Section 41010 of the California Education Code, is to be followed by al California school
districts.

The School District’s expenditures are accrued at the end of the fiscal year to reflect the receipt of
goods and servicesin that year. Revenues generally are recorded on a cash basis, except for itemsthat are
susceptible to accrual (measurable and/or available to finance operations). Current taxes are considered
susceptible to accrual. Delinguent taxes not received after the fiscal year end are not recorded as revenue
until received. Revenues from specific state and federally funded projects are recognized when qualified
expenditures have been incurred. State block grant apportionments are accrued to the extent that they are
measurable and predictable. The State Department of Education sends the School District updated
information from time to time explaining the acceptable accounting treatment of revenue and expenditure
categories.

TheSchool District’ saccounting isorganized on thebasisof fund groups, with each group consisting
of a separate set of self-balancing accounts containing assets, liabilities, fund balances, revenues and
expenditures. The major fund classification isthe General Fund which accountsfor al financial resources
not requiring aspecial type of fund. The School District’ sfiscal year beginson July 1 and ends on June 30.

Financial Statements

The School District’s general fund finances the legally authorized activities of the School District
for which restricted funds are not provided. General Fund revenues are derived from such sources as State
school fund apportionments, taxes, use of money and property, and aid from other governmental agencies.
Audited financial statementsfor the School District for the Fiscal Y ear ended June 30, 2008, and prior fiscal
years are on file with the School District and available for public inspection at the office of the Deputy
Superintendent of the Poway Unified School District, 13626 Twin Peaks Road, Poway, California
92064-3034, tel ephone number (858) 679-2552. Theaudited financial statementsfor theyear ended June 30,
2008, are included in Appendix A hereto.
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The following table shows information from the School District’s audited financial statements for

Fiscal Y ears 2004-05, 2005-06, 2006-07 and 2007-08.

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

BALANCE SHEET —GENERAL FUND

June 30, 2005

June 30, 2006  June 30, 2007  June 30, 2008

Assets
Cash in County Treasury $11,065,246 $8,300,659  $12,610,196  $10,113,387
Cash on Hand and in Banks 250,825 302,310 354,728 384,707
Cash in Revolving Fund 75,000 75,000 107,500 107,303
Cash with Fiscal Agent/Trustee 11,025,133 15,150,375 10,070,363 -
Accounts Receivable 10,728,449 17,457,806 16,543,045 16,698,924
Due from Other Funds 1,724,390 1,109,100 2,610,833 3,413,551
Stores Inventories 248,328 240,266 276,271 264,769
Prepaid Expenditures 114,384 67,053 249,561 243,285
Total Assets $35,231,755  $42,702,569  $42,822.497  $31,225,926
Liabilitiesand Fund Balance
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $4,446,646 $6,974,133 $4,730,301 $4,516,652
Due to Other Funds 2,227,540 1,568,437 1,956,060 6,026,326
Current Loans 10,825,000 15,000,000 10,000,000 -
Deferred Revenue 1,330,409 527,171 426,235 428,257
Total Liabilities $18,829,595  $24,069,741  $17,112,596  $10,971,235
Fund Balance:
Reserved Fund Balances:
Reserved for Revolving Cash $75,000 $75,000 $107,500 $107,304
Reserved for Stores Inventories 248,328 240,266 276,271 264,769
Reserved for Prepaid Items 114,384 67,053 249,561 243,285
Designated Fund Balances: 5,300,000
Designated for Economic Uncertainties 4,500,000 4,900,000 19,776,569 5,448,739
Other Designated - - - 130,000
Unreserved 11,464,448 13,350,509 19,776,569 14,060,594
Total Fund Balance $16,402,160  $18,632,828  $25,709,901  $20,254,691
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $35,231,755  $42,702569  $42,822,497  $31,225,926

Source: School District audited financial statements.
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES—-GENERAL FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30

Revenues

Revenue Limit Sources:
State Apportionments
Local Sources

Federal Revenue

Other State Revenue

Other Local Revenue

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Instruction
Instruction - Related Services
Pupil Services
Ancillary Services
Community Services
Enterprise
Genera Administration
Plant Services
Other Outgo
Debt Service:

Principal

Interest
Total Expenditures

Excess(Deficiency) of Revenue
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources

(Uses)

Operating Transfers In

Operating Transfers Out

Other Sources

Total Other Financing Sources
(Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance/Equity, July 1

Fund Balance/Equity, June 30

2005 2006 2007 2008
$70,902,741  $70,969,899 $81,832919  $81,177,029
86,479,977 94,234,657 97,394,860 106,205,478
10,688,985 9,343,363 8,974,698 8,629,280
40,975,086 45,239,944 61,161,462 51,598,543
11253537 _ 11,932,089 14,361,111 16,131,063
$220,300,326 $231,710952  $263725059  $263,741,393
$139,131,116  $145,664,507  $165417,398  $172,262,905
24,968,094 26,066,537 28,735,690 30,779,702
16,428,016 18,083,180 20,430,609 22,049,908
3,578,959 3,337,477 3,515,448 3,774,769
350,914 101 - 386,051

- 383,005 375,414 -

10,230,582 11,085,339 11,396,421 12,221,175
20,655,753 22,094,912 25,829,173 25,946,511
513,702 1,366,706 682,229 1,192,764
519,222 49,614 560,071 459,387
61,253 18,353 141,289 4,859
$216437,601 $228,149.731  $257,083.742  $269,078,031
3,862,725 3,561,221 6,641,317 (5,336,638)
139,840 1,685,703 1,829,722 3,310,354
(2,356,718)  (3,016,257) (3,568,976) (3,428,926)

- - 2,175,010 _
($2,216,878)  ($1,330,554) $435,756 $(118,572)
1,645,847 2,230,667 7,077,073 (5,455,210)
14,756,313  _16,402,161 18,632,828 25,709,901
$16402,160  $18,632,828 $25709.901  $20,254,691

@ Accounted for as “Instructions’ in previous years.

Source: School District audited financial statements.
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Budget Process

The School District is required by provisions of the State Education Code to maintain a balanced
budget each year, in which the sum of expenditures and the ending fund balance cannot exceed the sum of
revenues and the carry-over fund balance from the previous year. The State Department of Education
imposes a uniform budgeting and accounting format for school districts. The budget process for school
districts was substantially amended by Assembly Bill 1200 (“AB 1200"), which became State law on
October 14, 1991. Portions of AB 1200 are summarized below.

School districts must adopt abudget on or before July 1 of eachyear. The budget must be submitted
to the county superintendent within five days of adoption or by July 1, whichever occursfirst. A district may
be on either adual or single budget cycle. The dual budget option requires arevised and readopted budget
by September 1 that is subject to State-mandated standards and criteria. The revised budget must reflect
changes in projected income and expenses subsequent to July 1. The single budget is only readopted if it
is disapproved by the county office of education, or as needed.

For both dual and single budgets submitted on July 1, the county superintendent will examine the
adopted budget for compliance with the standards and criteria adopted by the State Board of Education and
identify technical corrections necessary to bring the budget into compliance, will determine if the budget
allowsthe School District to meet its current obligations and will determineif the budget is consistent with
afinancia plan that will enable the School District to meet its multi-year financial commitments. On or
before August 15, the county superintendent will approve or disapprove the adopted budget for each school
district. Budgetswill be disapproved if they fail the above standards. The district board must be notified
by August 15 of the county superintendent’s recommendations for revision and reasons for the
recommendations. The county superintendent may assign afiscal advisor or appoint acommitteeto examine
and comment on the superintendent’ srecommendations. Thecommitteemust report itsfindingsno later than
August 20. Any recommendations made by the county superintendent must be made avail able by thedistrict
for public inspection. The law does not provide for conditional approvals, budgets must be either approved
or disapproved. Nolater than September 22, the county superintendent must notify the State Superintendent
of Public Instruction of al school districts whose budget has been disapproved.

Each dual budget option district and each single and dual budget option district whose budget has
been disapproved must revise and readopt its budget by September 8, refl ecting changesin projected income
and expensesinceJuly 1, including responding to the county superintendent’ srecommendations. Thecounty
superintendent must determine if the budget conforms with the standards and criteria applicable to final
district budgets and not later than October 8, will approve or disapprove the revised budgets. If the budget
isdisapproved, the county superintendent will call for the formation of abudget review committee pursuant
to Education Code Section 42127.1. Until adistrict’s budget is approved, the district will operate on the
lesser of its proposed budget for the current fiscal year or the last budget adopted and reviewed for the prior
fiscal year.

Under the provisions of AB 1200, each school district isrequired to file interim certifications with
the county office of education astoitsability to meet itsfinancial obligationsfor the remainder of the then-
current fiscal year and, based on current forecasts, for the subsequent two fiscal years. The county office
of education reviews the certification and issues either a positive, negative or qualified certification. A
positive certification is assigned to any school district that will meet itsfinancial obligationsfor the current
fiscal year and subsequent two fiscal years. A negative certification is assigned to any school district that
will be unableto meet itsfinancial obligationsfor the remainder of the fiscal year or subsequent fiscal year.
A qualified certification is assigned to any school district that may not meet its financial obligationsfor the
current fiscal year or subsequent two fiscal years.

The School District’ s most recent Interim Financial Reports have received “ positive” certifications
pursuant to AB 1200.
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General Fund Budget

The School District’ s General Fund budgets (audited or budgeted, asapplicable) for theFiscal Y ears
ending June 30, 2005, through June 30, 2009, are set forth bel ow:

FISCAL YEARS ENDING JUNE 30, 2005, 2006, 2007, 2008 AND 2009

Revenues

Revenue Limit Sources:
State Apportionments
Local Sources

Federal Revenue

Other State Revenue

Other Local Revenue

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Instruction
Instruction - Related Services
Pupil Services
Ancillary Services
Community Services
General Administration
Plant Services
Other Outgo
Enterprise
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sour ces (Uses)

Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers Out
Proceeds from Sale of Bonds
Other Sources

Other Uses

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Changein Fund Balance
Fund Balance/Equity, July 1
Fund Balance/Equity, June 30

@

Source: School District.

GENERAL FUND BUDGET

Audited Audited Audited Audited
Actual Actual Actual Actual Budget
2005 2006 2007 2008 2008-09Y
$70,902,741 $70,969,899 $81,832,919 $81,177,029 $73,791,650
86,479,977 94,234,657 97,394,869 106,205,476 114,309,495
10,688,985 9,343,363 8,974,698 8,629,281 7,739,005
40,975,086 45,239,944 61,161,462 51,598,542 50,354,664
11,253,537 11,932,089 14,361,111 16,131,064 11,084,646
$220,300,326 $231,710,952  $263,725,059  $263,741,392  $257,279,460
$139,131,116 $145,664,507  $165,417,398  $172,262,905  $166,821,944
24,968,094 26,066,537 28,735,690 30,779,701 27,605,048
16,428,016 18,083,180 20,430,609 22,049,908 20,998,458
3,578,959 3,337,477 3,515,448 3,774,770 2,978,166
350,914 101 - 386,051 260,081
10,230,582 11,085,339 11,396,421 12,221,174 11,721,502
20,655,753 22,094,912 25,829,173 25,946,511 27,686,234
513,702 1,366,706 682,229 1,192,765 944,480
- 383,005 375,414 - -
519,222 49,614 560,071 459,387 -
61,253 18,353 141,289 4,859 -
$216,437,601 $228,149,731  $257,083,742  $269,078,031  $259,015,913
3,862,725 3,561,221 6,641,317 (5,336,639) (1,736,453)
139,840 1,685,703 1,829,722 3,310,354 1,651,290
(2,356,718) (3,016,257) (3,568,976) (3,428,926) (2,332,209)
- - 2,175,010 - -
($2,216,878) ($1,330,554) $435,756 ($118,572) ($680,919)
1,645,847 2,230,667 7,077,073 (5,455,211) (2,417,372)
14,756,313 16,402,161 18,632,828 25,709,902 20,254,691
$16,402,160 $18,632,828 $25,709,901 $20,254,691 $17,837,319

Fiscal Year 2008-09 Budget is the budget adopted by the Board on June 23, 2008.
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State Funding of Education

Cdlifornia school districts receive a significant portion of their funding from State appropriations.
Asaresult, changesin State revenues may affect appropriations made by the L egislature to school districts.

Annual State apportionments of basic and equalization aid to school districts are computed based
on arevenue limit per unit of average daily attendance (“A.D.A.”). Prior to Fiscal Year 1998-99, daily
attendance numbersincluded students who were absent from school for an excused absence, such asillness.
Effectivein Fiscal Y ear 1998-99, only actual attendanceiscounted inthecalculation of A.D.A. Thischange
isessentialy fiscally neutral for school districtswhich maintain the same excused absencerate. Therate per
student was recal cul ated to provide the same total funding to school districtsin the base year aswould have
been received under the old system. Inthefuture, school districtswhich canimprovetheir actual attendance
rate will receive additional funding.

The following table shows the School District’s enrollment, A.D.A. and revenue limit per A.D.A.
for the most recent five years. The School District’ s attendance rate in 2007-08 was approximately 96.7%
and the A.D.A. in 2007-08 was approximately 32,365. Enrollment for Fiscal Y ear 2008-09 is estimated to
be approximately the same and the District revenue limit per A.D.A. will be approximately $5,780.

ENROLLMENT, AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE AND REVENUE LIMIT
FISCAL YEARS 2003-04 TO 2008-09
POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

District
Average Daily Annual Change  Revenue Limit
Fiscal Y ear Enrollment Attendance inA.D.A. per A.D.A.

2003-04 33,051 31,817 - $4,624
2004-05 33,915 31,797 0.06% 4,809
2005-06 32,645 31,590 0.65% 5,125
2006-07 32,873 31,817 0.72% 5,527
2007-08 33,282 32,075 0.81% 5,780
2008-09W 33,305 32,365 - 5,780

Note: All amounts are rounded to the nearest whole number.
DEstimated.

Source: California Department of Education and the School District.

Revenue limit calculations are adjusted annually in accordance with a number of factors designed
primarily to provide cost of living increases and to equalize revenues among California school districts.

Revenue Sour ces

The School District categorizesitsgeneral fund revenuesinto four sources: (1) revenuelimit sources
(consisting of amix of State and local revenues), (2) federal revenues, (3) other State revenues and (4) other
local revenues. Each of these revenue sourcesis described below.

RevenueLimit Sources. SinceFiscal Year 1973-74, Californiaschool districtshave operated under
general purposerevenuelimitsestablished by the State Legislature. Ingeneral, revenuelimitsare cal culated
for each school district by multiplyingthe A.D.A. for such district by abase revenuelimit per unit of A.D.A.
The revenue limit calculations are adjusted annually in accordance with a number of factors designated
primarily to provide cost of living increases and to equalize revenues among all California school districts
of the same type.

Funding of the School District’srevenuelimit is provided by amix of local property taxesand State
apportionments of basic and equalization aid. Generally, the State apportionments will amount to the
difference between the School District’s revenue limit and itslocal property tax revenues.
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Beginning in 1978-79, Proposition 13 and itsimplementing legislation provided for each county to
levy (except for levies to support prior voter-approved indebtedness) and collect all property taxes, and
prescribed how levies on county-wide property values are to be shared with local taxing entitieswithin each
county.

Federal Revenues. Thefederal government providesfundingfor several District programs, including
specia education programs, programs under the Educational Consolidation and Improvement Act, and
specialized programs such as Drug Free School s, Education for Economic Security, and the free and reduced
lunch program. Thefederal revenues, most of which arerestricted, comprised approximately 3.3% of general
fund revenues in 2007-08 and are budgeted to equal approximately 3.0% of such revenues in 2008-09.

Other State Revenues. Asdiscussed above, the School District receives State apportionment of basic
and equalization aid in an amount equal to the difference between the School District’s revenue limit and
itsproperty tax revenues. Inadditionto such apportionment revenue, the School District receivessubstantial
other State revenues.

These other State revenues are primarily restricted revenues funding items such as the Special
Education Master Plan, School Improvement Program, Economic Impact Aid, Class Size Reduction Program,
home-to-schooal transportation, instructional materialsand mentor teachers. Other Staterevenues, excluding
State Lottery Revenue, comprised approximately 19.6% of general fund revenues in 2007-08 and are
budgeted to equal approximately 19.6% of such revenues in 2008-09.

Other State revenuesincludethe California State L ottery (the“ Lottery”), which was established by
aconstitutional amendment approved inthe November 1984 general election. Lottery revenuesmust be used
for the education of students and cannot be used for non-instructional purposes such as real property
acquisition, facility construction, or the financing of research. Lottery revenues comprised approximately
1.7% of general fund revenuesin 2007-08 and are budgeted to equal approximately 1.6% of such revenues
in 2008-09.

Other L ocal Revenues. In addition to property taxes, the School District receives additiona local
revenues from items such as leases and rental s, interest earnings, transportation fees, interagency services,
and other local sources. Other local revenues comprised approximately 6.1% of general fund revenuesin
2007-08 and are budgeted to equal approximately 4.3% of general fund revenues in 2008-009.

District Obligations

General Obligation Bonds. The School District and the Improvement District have no outstanding
general obligation bonds other than the Series A Bonds, the Series B Bonds and the Series C Bonds,
however, the School District and School Facilities Improvement District No. 2007-1 of the Poway Unified
School District will beissuing aninitial series of bonds at the same time in the amount of $73,998,935.75.
The annual debt service for the Series C Bondsis shown in “DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE” herein.

Other Post Employment Benefits. The School District offerspost retirement benefitsfor employees
up to age 65. The School District’s contribution for these benefits was $942,340 for the Fiscal Y ear ending
June 30, 2007, and $1,134,471 for the Fiscal Y ear ending June 30, 2008, and the School District budgeted
approximately $1,158,386 for the Fiscal Y ear ending June 30, 2009. The program is operated on a pay-as-
you go basis and budgets the current costs each year with an increase based on actual health and welfare
increases. See“THE SCHOOL DISTRICT — Retirement Programs.”

Capital Leases. The School District leasesfacilities and equipment under agreements that provide
for title to pass upon expiration of the lease period. Future minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2008,
areset forthbelow. The principal component under such agreementsaggregate $5,305,116. Initsdiscretion,
the School District may use a portion of the proceeds of the Series C Bondsto prepay aportion of the leases
resulting in areduction in the lease payments from those presented bel ow.
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L ease Payments

Y ear Ending June 30 (including interest)
2008 $1,332,711
2009 1,192,672
2010 1,187,956
2011 1,040,695
2012 551,082
Tota Minimum Lease Payments $5,305,116
L ess amount representing interest (478,302)
Present Value of Net Minimum Lease Payments $4,826,814

Source: School District.

Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes. The School District entered into the San Diego Area Local
Governments 2008 Pooled Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes in the amount of $18,000,000 with an
interest rate to yield of 3.5%. The notes mature on June 30, 2009, and were sold to supplement the School
District’s cash flow.

Public Financing Authority L ease Revenue Bonds. On June 19, 2008, the Poway Unified School
District Public Financing Authority soldits Poway Unified School District Public Financing Authority L ease
Revenue Bonds, Series 2008 in the aggregate principal amount of $92,681,499.35 for the use of the real
property on which the Westview High School islocated, together with the buildings and other improvements
located on such site. The property isleased by the School District from the Poway Unified School District
Public Financing Authority (the “ Authority™) pursuant to a L ease Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2008, by
and between the School District and the Authority.

Community Facilities Districts. Development of property located within the School District has
caused a need for school facility funding. To finance these additional school facilities, the School District
has to date formed 14 community facilities districts pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act
of 1982, asamended (Section 53311 et seq. of the Government Code of the State). The following table sets
forth the formation date, the authorized debt, the amount of authorized debt issued (the “Special Tax
Bonds"), and theamount of remai ning debt authorized for each community facilitiesdistrict (“CFD”) formed
by the School District. The principal of andinterest on the special tax bondsisnot payable from the General
Fund of the District. Theannual paymentsfor the special tax bonds are secured solely by the annual special
tax levied on taxabl e property in the respective community facilities districts established by the District, and
are not debts of the District.

36



Authorized Remaining

CFD Formation Date Debt Amount Issued  Authorization®
CFD No. 1 May 26, 1987 $138,251,618°%  $85,815,835.10@ NA @
CFD No. 2 December 15, 1997 80,000,000 14,233,847 $65,766,153
CFD No. 3 September 22, 1997 13,000,000 5,485,000 7,515,000
CFD No. 4 December 15, 1997 32,000,000 11,989,000 20,011,000
CFD No. 5 August 4, 1997 5,000,000 1,670,000 3,330,000
CFD No. 6 March 24, 1998 130,000,000 107,215,000 22,785,000
CFD No. 6 Improvement Area A October 21, 2002 18,000,000 18,000,000 -0-
CFD No. 6 Improvement Area B October 21, 2002 30,000,000 30,000,000 -0-
CFD No. 6 Improvement Area C October 21, 2002 14,000,000 -0- 14,000,000
CFD No. 7 August 24, 1998 15,000,000 1,545,000 13,455,000
CFD No. 8 Improvement Area A December 17, 1998 80,000,000 -0- 80,000,000
CFD No. 8 Improvement Area B December 17, 1998 20,000,000 7,329,000 12,671,000
CFD No. 9 November 16, 1998 15,000,000 1,711,000 13,289,000
CFD No. 10 Zone 1 and 2 August 27, 2001 45,000,000 38,230,000 6,770,000
CFD No. 10 Improvement Area A August 27, 2001 13,000,000 9,700,000 3,300,000
CFD No. 10 Improvement Area B August 27, 2001 9,000,000 6,345,000 2,655,000
CFD No. 10 Improvement Area C August 27, 2001 3,000,000 3,000,000 -0-
CFD No. 10 Improvement Area D August 27, 2001 7,000,000 5,125,000 1,875,000
CFD No. 10 Improvement Area E August 27, 2001 7,500,000 5,750,000 1,750,000
CFD No. 10 Improvement Area F August 27, 2001 3,500,000 -0- 3,500,000
CFD No. 11 Zone 1,2,3and 4 January 20, 2004 60,000,000 9,000,000 51,000,000
CFD No. 11 Improvement Area A January 20, 2004 13,500,000 11,000,000 2,500,000
CFD No. 11 Improvement Area B January 20, 2004 10,900,000 9,035,000 1,865,000
CFD No. 11 Improvement Area C January 20, 2004 17,400,000 13,475,000 3,925,000
CFD No. 12 June 24, 2002 18,000,000 7,689,087 10,310,913
CFD No. 13 March 12, 2007 20,000,000 -0- 20,000,000
CFD No. 14 January 17, 2006 75,000,000 51,515,000 23,485,000
CFD No. 14 Improvement Area A January 17, 2006 75,000,000 51,495,000 23,505,000

@ The remaining authorization does not necessarily reflect amounts that may beissued dueto special tax constraints under each rate
and method of apportionment or other factors.
@ With respect to CFD No. 1, the authorized indebtedness is stated in 1986-87 dollars, which amount is subject to increase in
accordance with a specified schedule. CFD No. 1 issued $8,000,000 of bonds in October, 1991, to finance school facilities,
$80,000,000 of bonds in February 1998, to finance school facilities and to refund the 1991 Bonds, $5,815,835.10 of bonds in
February 2003, to finance school facilities, and $48,420,000 of bondsin March 2008, to finance school facilities and to refund the
1998 Bonds. CFD No. 1 has covenanted not to issue additional bonds on a parity with the outstanding bonds except to refund the
outstanding bonds.
©® Special Tax bond proceeds are to be used for the construction of facilities or the reimbursement to developers for facilities
ultimately owned and operated by other public agencies.

Source: School District.

Neither the full faith and credit nor the general taxing power of the School District or any political
subdivision thereof is pledged to the payment of the Special Tax Bonds. The Special Tax Bonds are not
general obligations of the School District or the Improvement District but are limited obligations payable
solely from the proceeds of a special tax authorized pursuant to the Mello-Roos Act.
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Assessed Valuations

The assessed valuation of property in the School District is established by the County Assessor,
except for public utility property which is assessed by the State Board of Equalization. Assessed valuations
are reported at 100% of the “full value” of the property, as defined in Article XIIIA of the California
Constitution. Prior to 1981-82, assessed val uations were reported at 25% of the full value of property. For
a discussion of how properties currently are assessed, see “CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY
PROVISIONS AFFECTING DISTRICT REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS.”

Certain classes of property, such as churches, colleges, not-for-profit hospitals, and charitable
institutions, are exempt from property taxation and do not appear onthetax rolls. No reimbursement ismade
by the State for such exemptions.

Property within the School District had a total assessed valuation after deducting redevel opment
increment for Fiscal Y ear 2008-09 of $28,978,692,054 (unegualized). Shown inthefollowingtablearethe
assessed valuations for the School District.

ASSESSED VALUATION
POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
FISCAL YEARS 2004-05 TO 2008-09

Assessed Valuations
Local Total Before Total After
Secured Utility Unsecured Rdv. Increment Rdv. Increment
2004-05 $21,858,610,379  $1,342,918  $715,721,024 $22,575,674,321  $19,720,252,688
2005-06 24,632,553,645 1,342,918 745,788,657  25,379,685,220 22,125,392,480
2006-07 27,779,533,552 1,342,918 957,228,118  28,738,104,588 25,224,594,433
2007-08 30,601,157,671 1,342,918 861,911,099 31,464,411,688 27,716,249,254
2008-09 31,890,783,900 1,342,918 899,415,062 32,791,541,880 28,978,692,054

Source: California Municipal Satistics, Inc.

Economic and other factors beyond the Improvement District’s control, such as general market
decline in land values, reclassification of property to a class exempt from taxation, whether by ownership
or use (such asexemptionsfor property owned by the State and |ocal agenciesand property used for qualified
education, hospital, charitable or religious purposes), or the complete or partial destruction of taxable
property caused by anatural or manmade disaster, such as earthquake, flood, or toxic contamination, could
cause areduction in the assessed val ue of taxable property within the Improvement District and necessitate
a corresponding increase in the annual tax rate.
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Largest Property Owners

The following table shows the 20 largest owners of taxable property in the School District as

determined by secured assessed valuation in Fiscal Year 2008-09:

LARGEST LOCAL SECURED PROPERTY OWNERS
POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Largest 2008-09 Local Secured Taxpayers

Primary 2008-09 % of

Property Owner Land Use Assessed Vauation  Total®

1. Kilroy Realty LP Office Building $ 543,438,358 1.70%
2. M. S RidtothelLakesCA LLC Residential Devel opment 193,957,752 0.61
3. Sorrento West Properties Inc. Industrial 190,415,835 0.60
4. Hewlett-Packard Co. Industrial 143,047,658 0.45
5. Cymer Inc. Office Building 130,951,567 0.41
6. Pacific Carmel Mountain HoldingsLP  Office Building 122,776,259 0.38
7. Bernardo Summit LLC Industrial 110,775,000 0.35
8. TheReserveat 4SRanchLLC Apartments 109,007,444 0.34
9. Brookfield8& 10LLC Residential Devel opment 108,202,713 0.34
10. Point Office PartnersLLC Office Building 91,800,000 0.29
11. Sony Electronics Inc. Industrial 90,736,825 0.28
12. Slough Poway | LLC Industrial 77,736,916 0.24
13. Alliancel LLC Apartments 77,197,379 0.24
14. Bernardo Technology Partners LLC Office Building 76,944,994 0.24
15. 4SRegency PartnersLLC Shopping Center 76,269,139 0.24
16. BRE Propertiesinc. Apartments 73,592,185 0.23
17. BAE Systems Mission Solutions Inc. Industrial 73,505,120 0.23
18. PDP Pomerado LLC Office Building 69,558,551 0.22
19. Apple Seven Hospitality Ownership Inc. Hotel 68,493,000 0.21
20. Arden Redty LP Office Building 67,120,742 0.21

$2,495,527,437 7.83%

M2008-09 Local Secured Assessed Valuation: $31,890,783,900.

Source: California Municipal Satistics, Inc.

LEGAL MATTERS
Tax Matters

In the opinion of Bowie, Arneson, Wiles & Giannone, Newport Beach, California, Bond Counsel,
subject, however, to the qualifications set forth bel ow, under existing law, theinterest on the Series C Bonds
isexcluded from grossincome for federal tax purposes and is not anitem of tax preference for purposes of
the federal alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals and corporations; although it should be noted
that for purposes of calculating the alternative minimum tax imposed on corporations, such interest will be
excluded as an adjustment in the calculation of alternative minimum taxable income which may affect the
aternative minimum tax liability of such corporations.

The opinions of Bond Counsel set forth in the preceding paragraph are subject to the condition that
the School District comply with all requirementsof the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 that must be satisfied
subsequent to the issuance of the Series C Bonds in order that such interest be, or continue to be, excluded
fromgrossincomefor federal incometax purposes. The School District has covenanted to comply with each
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such requirement. Failure to comply with certain of such requirements may cause the inclusion of such
interest in gross income for federal income tax purposes to be retroactive to the date of issuance of the
Series C Bonds. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding other tax consequences arising with respect
to the Series C Bonds.

In the further opinion of Bond Counsel, interest on the Series C Bonds is exempt from State of
Cdlifornia personal income taxation.

A copy of the proposed form of opinion of Bond Counsel is attached hereto as Appendix C.

Bond Counsel’s engagement with respect to the Series C Bonds ends with the issuance of the
Series C Bonds, and, unless separately engaged, Bond Counsel isnot obligated to defend the School District
or the Improvement District or the beneficial owners of the Series C Bonds regarding the tax-exempt status
of the Series C Bondsin the event of an audit examination by the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS’). Under
current procedures, parties other than the School District and its appointed counsel, including the beneficial
owners of the Series C Bonds, would havelittle, if any, right to participate in the audit examination process.
Moreover, because achieving judicial review in connection with an audit examination of tax-exempt bonds
is difficult, obtaining an independent review of IRS positions with which the School District legitimately
disagrees may not be practicable. Any action of the IRS, including but not limited to selection of the
Series C Bonds for audit, or the course or result of such audit, or an audit of bonds presenting similar tax
issues may affect the market pricefor, or the marketability of, the Series C Bonds, and may cause the School
District or the Beneficial Owners to incur significant expense.

Original I1ssue Discount; Premium Bonds

To the extent the issue price of any maturity of the Series C Bonds (e.g. the Capital Appreciation
Bonds) isless than the amount to be paid at maturity of such Series C Bonds (excluding amounts stated to
be interest and payable at |east annually over the term of such Series C Bonds), the difference constitutes
“original issue discount,” the accrual of which, to the extent properly allocable to each Owner thereof, is
treated as interest on the Series C Bonds which is excluded from gross income for federal income tax
purposes and State of California personal income taxes. For this purpose, the issue price of a particular
maturity of the Series C Bonds is the first price at which a substantial amount of such maturity of the
Series C Bonds is sold to the public (excluding bond houses, brokers, or similar persons or organizations
acting in the capacity of underwriters, placement agents or wholesalers). The original issue discount with
respect to any maturity of the Series C Bonds accrues daily over thetermto maturity of such Series C Bonds
on the basis of aconstant interest rate compounded semiannually (with straight-line interpol ations between
compounding dates). The accruing original issue discount is added to the adjusted basis of such Series C
Bonds to determine taxable gain or loss upon disposition (including sale or payment on maturity) of such
Series C Bonds. Owners of the Series C Bonds should consult their own tax advisorswith respect to the tax
consequences of ownership of the Series C Bonds with original issue discount, including the treatment of
purchasers who do not purchase such Series C Bondsin the original offering to the public at the first price
at which a substantial amount of such Series C Bondsis sold to the public.

The Series C Bonds purchased, whether at original issuance or otherwise, for an amount greater than
their principal amount payable at maturity (or, in some cases, at their earlier call date) (“Premium Bonds”)
will be treated as having amortizable bond premium. No deduction is allowable for the amortizable bond
premium in the case of bonds, like the Premium Bonds, theinterest on which is excluded from grossincome
for federa income tax purposes. However, a purchaser’s basis in a Premium Bond, and under Treasury
Regulations the amount of tax exempt interest received, will be reduced by the amount of amortizable bond
premium properly allocable to such purchaser. Owners of Premium Bonds should consult their own tax
advisorswith respect to the proper treatment of amortizable bond premiumintheir particular circumstances.

Impact of Legisative Proposals, Clarifications of the Code and Court Decisionson Tax Exemption
Future legidlative proposals, if enacted into law, clarification of the Code or court decisions may
causeinterest on the Series C Bondsto be subject, directly or indirectly, to federal income taxation or to be

subject to or exempted from state income taxation, or otherwise prevent beneficial owners of the SeriesC
Bondsfromrealizingthefull current benefit of thetax status of such interest. Theintroduction or enactment
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of any such future legislative proposals, clarification of the Code or court decisions may also affect the
market price for, or marketability of, the Series C Bonds. Prospective purchasers of the Series C Bonds
should consult their own tax advisors regarding any pending or proposed federal or state tax legislation,
regulations or litigation as to which Bond Counsel expresses no opinion.

Continuing Disclosur e

The School District has covenanted for the benefit of registered owners and Beneficial Owners of
the Series C Bondsto provide certain financia information and operating datarel ating to the School District
(the* Annual Report™) by not later than seven months following the end of the School District’ sFiscal Y ear
(which shall be February 1 of each year, so long as the School District’s Fiscal Year ends on June 30),
commencing with thereport for the 2008-09 Fiscal Y ear (which will be due not later than February 1, 2010),
and to provide notices of the occurrence of certain enumerated events, if material. The Annual Report will
befiled by the School District with each Nationally Recognized M unicipal SecuritiesInformation Repository
and with the appropriate State information depository, if any. The notices of material events will be filed
by the School District with each Nationally Recognized Municipal Securities|nformation Repository or with
the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, and with the appropriate State information depository, if any.
The specific nature of the information to be made available and to be contained in the notices of material
eventsis set forth in Appendix D —“FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT.” These
covenants have been made in order to assist the Underwriter in complying with S.E.C. Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5)
(the “Rule™). The School District has never failed to comply in al material respects with any previous
undertakings with regard to said Rule to provide annual reports or notices of material events.

Legality for Investment in California

Under provisions of the California Financial Code, the Series C Bonds are legal investments for
commercial banksin Californiato the extent that the Series C Bonds, in the informed opinion of the bank,
are prudent for the investment of funds of depositors, and under provisions of the California Government
Code, are eligible for security for deposits of public moneysin California.

Absence of Material Litigation

Nolitigationispending or threatened concerning the validity of the Series C Bonds, and acertificate
or certificatesto that effect will befurnished to purchasers at the time of the original delivery of the SeriesC
Bonds. The School District is not aware of any litigation pending or threatened questioning the political
existence of the School District or contesting the School District’s ability to receive ad valorem taxes or
contesting the School District’s ability to issue and retire the Series C Bonds.

RATINGS

Moody’s Investors Service and Standard & Poor’s have assigned ratings of “Aa3” and “AA-,"
respectively, tothe Series C Bonds. Suchratingsreflect only theviewsof such organizationsand any desired
explanation of the significance of such ratings should be obtained from the rating agencies furnishing the
same, at the following addresses: Moody’ s Investors Service, 5250 77 Center Drive, Suite 150, Charlotte,
North Carolina28217; Standard & Poor’ sRatings Group, 55 Water Street, 45th Floor, New Y ork, New Y ork
10041. Generdly, arating agency bases it rating on the information and materials furnished to it and on
investigations, studies and assumptions of itsown. Someinformation provided to the rating agencies by the
School District may not appear in this Official Statement. There isno assurance such ratings will continue
for any given period of time or that such ratings will not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by the
rating agencies, if in the judgment of such rating agencies, circumstances so warrant. Any such downward
revision or withdrawal of such ratings may have an adverse effect onthe market pricefor the Series C Bonds.
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UNDERWRITING

The Series C Bonds were purchased by Stone & Youngberg LLC (the “Underwriter”). The
Underwriter has agreed to purchase the Series C Bonds at a price of $3,695,425.62, which is equal to the
principal amount of the Series C Bonds, less Underwriter’ s discount of $79,333.98, plus a net premium of
$76,205.70 (original premiumintheamount of $211,205.70, lessthe costs of i ssuance of $135,000.00). The
Bond Purchase Contract rel ating to the Series C Bonds providesthat the Underwriter will purchase all of the
SeriesC Bondsif any are purchased, the obligation to make such purchase being subject to certain termsand
conditions set forth in said agreement, the approval of certain legal matters by counsel and certain other
conditions.

The Underwriter may offer and sell Series C Bondsto certain dealersand othersat priceslower than
the offering prices stated on the inside cover page hereof. The offering prices may be changed fromtimeto
time by the Underwriter.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

All datacontained herein regarding the School District and the Improvement District has been taken
or constructed from School District and Improvement District records. Appropriate School District and
Improvement District officials, acting in their official capacities, have reviewed this Official Statement and
havedetermined that, asof the date hereof, theinformation contained hereinis, to the best of their knowledge
and belief, trueand correct in all material respects and does not contain an untrue statement of amaterial fact
or omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements made here, in light of the
circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.

Any statementsin this Official Statement involving matters of opinion, whether or not expressly so
stated, areintended as such and not asrepresentations of fact. ThisOfficial Statement isnot to be construed
as a contract or agreement between the School District or the Improvement District and the purchasers or
Owners of any of the Series C Bonds.

Quotations from and summaries and explanations of the Series C Bonds, the Resolutions providing
forissuanceof the SeriesC Bonds, and the constitutional provisions, statutesand other documentsreferenced
herein, do not purport to be compl ete, and referenceis madeto said documents, constitutional provisionsand
statutes for full and complete statements of their provisions.

Some of the datacontai ned herein has been taken or constructed from District records. ThisOfficial
Statement has been approved by the School District Board of Education.

POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

By __/s/ John P. Callins, Ed.D.
John P. Callins, Ed.D., Deputy Superintendent
of the Poway Unified School District
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WILKINSON HADLEY KING & CO.LLP
CPA's and Advisors
250 E Douglas Ave.
El Cajon, CA 92020
Ph (619) 447-6700 Fax (619) 447-6707

Independent Auditor's Report on Financial Statements

Board of Trustees
Poway Unified School District
Poway, California 92064-2098

Members of the Board of Trustees:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Poway Unified School District as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2008, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements
as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of Poway Unified School
District's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financia! statements based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Poway Unified School District as of June 30, 2008, and the respective
changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 5,
2008, on our consideration of Poway Unified School District's internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our
audit.

The Management's Discussion and Analysis and the budgetary comparison information identified as Required
Supplemsntary Information in the table of contents are not a required part of the basic financial statements but
are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However,
we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.



Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements which collectively
comprise the Poway Unified School District's basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of
expenditures of federal awards required by U. S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Auoits
ol States, Locai Governments and Non-Profit Organizations and the combining financial statements
and supporting schedules listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and
are not a required part of the basic financial statements. This information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

wm% la.? il Ly

El Cajon, California
December 5, 2008



Poway Unified School District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year 2007-08
(Unaudited)

Profile of the District

Poway Unified School District (District) was formed in 1962 and serves the children of Poway, Rancho
Bernardo, Rancho Penasquitos, Carmel Mountain Ranch, Sabre Springs, Black Mountain Ranch, Torrey
Highlands, 4S Ranch and Santa Fe Valley. It is the 3" largest district in San Diego County and the 26"
largest district in the state of California. The district covers nearly 100 square miles in north-east San
Diego County housing 33,282 students in 34 schools.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

This section of Poway Unified School District’s annual financial report presents Management’s
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of the District’s financial performance during the year ending June 30,
2008. The MD&A is required as an element of the reporting model established by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in Statement Number 34. The District implemented GASB 34 in
2001-02. Please read the MD&A in conjunction with the District’s financial statements, which follow
this section.

Comparisons to the Previous Fiscal Year 2006-07

o In 2007-08, the district’s Net Assets is $202.9 million compared to $206.2 million in 2006-07.

e In 2007-08, overall revenues were $360.2 million and expenses were $363.8 million. The
district’s revenue is less than expenses by $3.6 million. In 2006-07 the district’s overall revenues
were $ 360.6 mitlion and expenses were $ 384.6 million.

e In 2007-08, Expenses exceeded revenues by $3.5 million.

e The District enrollment in October 2007 was 33,282. This is an increase of 409 students from
October 2006 when the enrollment was at 32,873,

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic financial
statements. The District’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide
financial statements; 2) fund financial statements; and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report
also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themseives.



Poway Unified School District, Management Discussion & Analysis cont’d

Government-wide financial statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
District’s finances, tn a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the assets and liabilities of the District, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the net assets of the District changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g.,
uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). The government-wide financial statements can
be found on pages 14-15 of this report.

Fund financial statements

A fund is a group of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The District, like other state and local governments, uses
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of
the funds of the District can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds.

» Governmental funds Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However,
unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus
on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable
resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating the
government’s near-term financing requirements. Because the focus of governmental funds is
narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the
information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may
better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both
the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison
between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The District maintains thirteen individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund, the capital projects
fund, and the Extended School Services enterprise fund (ESS), each of which are considered to be
major funds. Data from the other ten governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation. Individual data for each of these non-major funds is provided in the form of
combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The District adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison
statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget on
page 46 of this report.
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¢ Proprietary funds The District maintains two proprietary fund types; internal service funds and
one enterprise fund.

Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally
among the District’s various functions. The District uses three internal service funds to account
for services provided to all the other funds of the District: workers’ compensation, employee
benefits, and property and liability insurance. The internal service funds have been included
within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. The three internal
service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial
statements.

Enterprise funds are operated in a manner similar to private business where the determination of
revenues earned, costs incurred and net income is necessary for management accountability. The
District uses one enterprise fund to account for business activities of the Extended Student
Services and Preschool programs.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 24-26 of this report.

e Fiduciary funds Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the governmental entity. The District maintains an agency fund for associated student
body funds. The basic agency fund financial statements can be found on pages 27-28 of this
report.

Notes to the financial statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential for a full understanding of the data provided in
the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found
on pages 29-45 of this report.

Other information

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds are
presented on pages 48-55 of this report.
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Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s stability and
financial position. The district’s assets exceeded liabilities by $202.9 million at the close of 2007-08.

POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
2007-08 NET ASSETS

{In Millions of Dollars)
Governmental  Business Total . Total
Activities Activities District - Percentage
Current and Other Assets $306.1 ($0.4) $305.7 29.0%
Capital Assets $745.4 $3.3 $748.7 71.0%
Total Assets $1,051.5 $3.0 $1,054.5 100.0%
Long-Term Debt Outstanding $792.4 $0.0 - $792.4 93.3%
-Other Liabilities $56.2 $0.4 $56.6 6.7%
Total Liabilities $848.6 $0.4 $849.0 100.0%
‘Net Assets:
invested in Capital Assets, o
Net of Related Debt $131.4 $0.0 $131.4 63.9%
Restricted $30.9 $0.0 $30.9 15.0%
Unrestricted $40.6 $2.6 $43.2 21.0%

Total Net Assets $202.9 $2.6 $205.5 100.0%

e 63.9 percent of the District’s net assets are invested in Capital Assets. 15.0 percent represents
resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used and 21.0 percent are
unrestricted.

At the end of the 2007-08, the District is able to report positive balances in both categories of net assets.
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Governmental activities. The key elements of the District’s net assets for the year ended June 30, 2008
are as follows:

POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

2007-08 . % of Total
Revenues
Program Rewenues
Charges for senices $ 13,507,631 3.75%
Operating grants and contributions 56,492,106 15.68%
Capital grants and contributions 20,118,703 5.59%
General Revenues
Property taxes 147,302,765 40.90%
Federal and state aid not restncted to specific purposes 99,574,334 27.65%
Interest and investment earnings 3,218,836 0.89%
Interagency revenues 643,949 0.18%
Miscellaneous 19,329,195 5.37%
Special and extraordinary items - 0.00%
Total Revenues $ 360,187,519 100.00%
Expenditures by Function '
Govemmental Activities
Instruction $ 216,333,390 59.47%
Pupil services 30,472,489 8.38%
General administration 13,388,240 3.68%
Plant senices 46,334,359 = 12.74%
Ancillary senices 3,802,073 1.05%
Community senices 395,679 0.11%
Enterprise activities : 925,468 0.25%
Interest on long-term debt 32,749,909 9.00%
Cther outgo 6,533,192 1.80%
Business-type Activities
Enterprise activities 12,818,968 3.52%
Total Expenditures $ 363,753,767 100.00%
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets $ (3,566,248)
Net Assets - Beginning $ 209,103,580
Net Assets - Ending $ 205,537,332

e The district’s total revenue this year is less from $360.6 million in FY 2006-07 to $360.2 million
in FY 2007-08.

e State aid COLA (cost of living adjustment) in 2007-08 is 4.53 percent which is 1.39 percent less
from last year. State aid is based primarily on average daily attendance (ADA) and other
appropriations. If a student is in attendance for 180 days, the state awards the District one ADA.
The state guarantees that if local taxes do not provide money equal to the base revenue limit
guarantee it will make up the difference with state funding.

¢ The value of the base revenue limit during the year ended June 30, 2008 is § 5,780.97.

Expenses related to educating and caring for students (see Figure A-2) is 67.85 percent of the
district’s total expenditures.

¢ The administrative activities of the district are 3.68 percent of total expenditures.
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8 YEAR REVENUE LIMIT TABLE

Poway % Increase State Average Difference
2000-01 $4,413 3.23% $4,486 ($73)
2001-02 $4,597 4.19% $4,660 {563}
2002-03 $4,680 1.79% $4,753 {$73)-
2003-04 $4,768 1.88% $4,841 ($73}
2004-05 $4,914 3.07% $4,958 ($44)
2005-06 $5,125 4.30% $5,195 ($70)
2006-07 $5,529 7.87% $5,568 ($39)
2007-08 $5,781 4.56% $5,821 {$40)

e 2007-08 Revenue by Source

Figure A-1 ' Government-wide Activities
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Figure A-2 2007-08 Expenditures by Function
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Financial Analysis of the District’s Funds

As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compiiance with finance-
related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the District’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-
term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
District’s financing requirements. As the District completed the year, its governmental funds reported a
combined fund balance of $202.9 million, $3.3 million less than last year’s fund balance. In addition, the
following fund balances should be noted:

Governmental funds report the differences between their assets and liabilities as fund balance, which is
divided into reserved and unreserved portions. Reservations indicate the portion of the District’s fund
balances that are not available for appropriation. The unreserved fund balance is, in turn, subdivided
between designated and undesignated portions. Designations reflect limitations on the use of otherwise
available expendable financial resources in governmental funds. The limitations include federal, state,
donor-authorized and District self-imposed. Fund balances of debt service, capital projects, and other
governmental funds are restricted by state law to be spent for the purpose of the fund and are not available
for spending at the District’s discretion. The $ 17 million fund balance is primarily designated for the
following purposes:

Designation for economic uncertainty reserve As required by state law, the District has
established an undistributed reserve within the general fund. This reserve is required to be at
least 2% of general fund expenditures set aside for contingencies or possible reductions in state
funding and is not to be used in the negotiation or settlement of contract salaries. As of June
2008, $ 5.45 million held in reserve meets the 2% requirement. The maintenance of a sufficient
reserve is a key credit consideration in garnering excellent short-term and long-term bond ratings.

Restricted reserve for revolving cash fund The District maintains $ 108,553 revolving cash fund
for expediting emergency and small purchase reimbursement to employees.

Restricted reserve for stores inventories Three departments maintain perpetual inventories to
expedite and reduce cost through volume purchasing. The valuation as of June 30, 2008 was
$613,805.

Restricted reserve for prepaid expense The District Prepaid Expense as of June 30, 2008 was
$243,285.

Designations for restricted balance State, federal and donor authorized funding restrictions
mandate that carryover balances of funds are restricted for those purposes in the next fiscal year.
There was $ 10.6 million in restricted balances as of June 30, 2008.



Poway Unified School District, Management Discussion & Analysis cont’d

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

During the year, the Board revised the District’s budget. Budget amendments were to reflect changes in
programs and related funding. The difference between the original budget and the final amended budget
was an increase of $ 32.8 million or 12.9 % in total general fund expenditures budget.

e During the year, final budgeted revenues exceeded original budgetary estimates by $ 13.8 million
or 5.4 %, to account for increases in federal and state aid and local donations.

e The actual expenditures were $ 15.1 million below final budgeted amounts.

e Variances primarily result from expenditure-driven federal and state grants that are included in
the budgets at their full amounts. Such grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying
expenditures have been incurred and all other grant requirements have been met; unspent grant
amounts are carried forward and included in the succeeding year’s budget. Therefore, actual
grant revenues and expenditures are normally less than the amounts budgeted.

s For comparative purposes, the following table is presented to show General Fund actuals by
Standardized Account Code Structure (SACS) functions and changes from fiscal year 2006-07 to

2007-08.
POWAY UNKFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
GENERAL FUND - MAJOR FUND

Expenditures by Function % of Total 200708 Change % 2006-07
General Education Grades K-12 4954% $ 135,011,251 $ 2615731 2.0% $ 132,395,520
Special Education 13.67% 37,251,654 4229779 12.8% 33,021,875
Instruction Related Services 5.54% 15,091,028 929,142 6.6% 14,161,886
School Administration 5.76% 15,688,674 1,114,870 7.6% 14,573,805
Pupil Services 4.37% 11,919,438 506,934 4.4% 11,412,504
Transportation 3.72% 10,130,470 1,112,363 12.3% 9,018,107
Ancillary, Cocumicular & Athletics 1.39% 3,774,769 259,321 7.4% 3,515,448
Community Services 0.14% 386,051 10,637 2.8% 375,414
General Administration 3.43% 9,348,046 447,324 5.0% 8,900,722
Central Data Processing 1.05% 2,873,129 377,429 15.1% 2,485,699
Maintenance & Operations 9.37% 25,524,049 662,011 2.7% 24,862,039
Facility Acquisition & Construction 0.00% 1,733 (524,767) -99.7% 526,500
Facility Rents and Leases 0.15% 420,729 (19,906) -4.5% 440,635
Other Outgo 1.87% 5,085,937 133,372 2.7% 4,952,565
Toial 100.00% g 272,506,958 11,854,240 $ 260,652,718
Final October CBEDS Enrollment 33,282 409 32,873
Expenditures per Student = $ 818782 § 258.74 33% § 7,929.08

Note: Expenses for Cafeteria, Adult Ed., Construction, Preschool and Child Care Services are recorded
in separate funds. Theyare notinduded in the above figures.

¢ The expenditure per student went up 3.3 % from $ 7,929.08 to $ 8,187.82.

10



Poway Unified School District, Management Discussion & Analysis cont’d

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets. The state school facility fund is used to account for the costs incurred in acquiring and
improving sites, constructing and remodeling facilities, and procuring equipment necessary for providing
educational programs for all students within the District. Renovation and modernization of older schools
funded from the proceeds of the General Obligation Bond are still ongoing.

Capital assets at June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2007 are outlined below:

POWAY UNFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

CAPITAL ASSETS NET OF DEPRECIATION
Govemmental Activities

June 30, 2008 June 30, 2007 _Total Change

Land $ 69,003,074 $ 66,851,733 $ 2,151,341
Improvement of Sites 19,974,930 16,195,219 3,779,711
Buildings 320,775,965 265,546,200 55,229,765
Equipment 9,537,956 10,498,549 {960,593)
Work in Progress 326,154,997 192,809,404 133,345,593
Total Capital Assets $ 745446921 $ 551,901,105 $193,545,816

Additional information on the District’s capital assets can be found in Note E to the basic financial
statements.

Debt Administration. The District has General Obligation Bonds. This is a voter-approved $198
million bond specifically for the purpose of renovating 24 of the District’s older schools.

In May 2004, the District’s Board of Education approved a plan to accelerate the completion of
Proposition U building projects from the year 2015 to a date as early as 2009. This plan provides an
interim financing program that will be paid back from the final Proposition U Bond sales scheduled for
2009 and 2013. This interim financing will bridge the gap between the bond sales date and the
accelerated construction program.

As of June 30, 2008, the district has two General Obligation Bonds the $75 million General Obligation
Bonds, Series A and the General Obligation Bonds, Series B for $119 million.

The District has formed various CFDs to secure school facilities for students that will be generated from
new housing developments. These bonds are not obligations of the general fund of the District and are
secured by taxes generated by home owners and developers. There are twenty-one bonds under the
Community Facilities Districts (CFD) as of June 30, 2008.

11



Poway Unified School District, Management Discussion & Analysis cont’d

CFD #1 issued $80 million in debt in February of 1998 for construction of school facilities. CFD #10
issued $16.045 million in October of 2001 with the District as the lead agency for capital infrastructure
improvement areas A and B. There were 6 bonds issued by the CFD in 2002-03. CFD # 1 issued $ 5.82
million, CFD # 6 issued $ $25 million, CFD # 10E issued $5.75 million, CFD # 10D issued $ 5.12
million, CFD # 6 A issued $ 18 million, and the Public Financing Authority (PFA) issued $21.335
million. In addition, there were 3 bonds issued by the CFD in 2003-04. CFD # 10 1 A issued series C
bonds for $ 3 million, CFD # 11 Zone 1 issued bonds for $ 9 million and CFD # 11 1A issued series A
bonds for $ 11 million.

Two additional bonds have been issued in 2004-05 fiscal year: CFD # 11 Improvement Area B for $ 9
million and CFD # 11 Improvement Area C for $ 13.5 million.

In 2005-06, two bonds were issued by CFD # 6 (4s Ranch), Special Tax Bonds, Series 2005 for $44.3
million and Improvement Area B, 2005 Special Tax Bonds for $30 million, During this year, a new CFD
was formed CFD # 14 (Del Sur). CFD # 14 issued two bonds; 2006 Special Tax Bonds for 51.5 million
and Improvement Area A 2006 Special Tax Bonds for 51.5 million.

In 2006-07, Public Financing Authority (PFA), Series 2007 for $69.9 million was issued.

In 2007-08, CFD #1 has issued Series 2008 Special Tax Refunding Bonds for $48.4 million. CED # 1
1998 Bonds were fully refunded and 2003 Bonds were partially refunded. During this year, CFD # 6 (4s
Ranch) issued Special Tax Bonds, Series 2007 for $37.9 million.

Two Lease Revenue Bonds were issued in 2007-08 fiscal year, Series 2007 for 34.8 million and Series

2008 for 92.7 million. Part of the proceeds of Series 2008 was used to fully refund 2004 COP
(Certificates of Participation).

Additional information on the District’s long-term debt can be found in Note H to the basic financial
statements.
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Poway Unified School District, Management Discussion & Analysis cont’d

Changing Enrollment within the District

The demographics of the District reflect an increasing trend in the high school population and a
decreasing trend in the elementary and middle school population. Experience shows that the east side of
the District is nearly built out and the west and south areas are busy with developments and new families.
California voters approved Proposition 13 that not only limits the tax rate on property, but gives an
incentive for owners to occupy longer resulting in slower turnover of homes to new families. This
impacts the east side with declining enrollment. The District however has offsetting growth on the west
side.

POWAY UNIRED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Changes in CBEDS for Three Years
Grade Oct 2005 Chg _ Oct2006 Chg Qct 2007

K 2,268 9 2,217 216 2,493

1 2,351 {99 2,52 11 2,263

2 2,343 74 2,47 (72) 2,345

3 2322 106 2,428 78 2506

4 2,432 (51) 2,381 136 2517

5 2424 36 2,460 (21) 2439

6 2481 34 2,515 19 2534

7 2,557 (28) 2,529 74 2603

8 2676 (50 2,626 {31} 2,595

9 2,613 104 2,717 @ 2710

10 2,795 (168 2,627 132 2759

11 2,755 44 2,899 (162} 2,647

12 2,628 217 2,845 26 2,871

TOTAL 32&45 228 32,873 409 33%82

2005-06 Cl'lg__ 200607 Cl'g 2007-08

Elementary K-5 14,140 75 14,215 348 14,563

Middle 6-8 7.714 {44) 7,670 62 7,732

High School 912 10,781 197 10,988 {1) 10,987
TOTAL 32,645 228 32,873 409 33,282

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Poway Unified School District’s
finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional
financial information should be addressed to the Office of the Deputy Superintendent, Business Support
Services, Poway Unified School District, 13626 Twin Peaks Road, Poway, CA 92064.
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POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2008

ASSETS:
Cash in County Treasury
Cash on Hand and in Banks
Cash in Revolving Fund
Cash with a Fiscal Agent/Trustee
Accounts Receivable
Internal Balances
Stores Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Capital Assets:
Land
Improvements
Buildings
Equipment
Work in Progress
L.ess accumulated depreciation
Total Assets

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable
Deferred Revenues
Long term liabilities:
Due Within One Year
Due in More Than One Year
Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS:

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt

Restricted for:
Capital Projects
Debt Service
Educational Programs
Unrestricted
Total Net Assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

EXHIBIT A~

Govemmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
$ 37,092,836 $ 305,716 $ 37,398,552
838,925 56,576 895,501
108,553 - 108,553
202,631,562 - 202,631,562
42,978,446 234,226 43,212,672
960,411 (960,411) -
613,804 - 613,804
19,235,158 - 19,235,158
69,003,074 - 69,003,074
33,752,698 - 33,752,698
386,681,317 4,767,384 391,448,701
30,022,735 8,170 30,030,905
326,154,997 - 326,154,997
{100,167,901) (1,433,133) (101,601,034)
1,049,906,615 2,978,528 1,052,885,143
54,460,191 299,338 54,759,529
55,169 85,636 140,805
13,672,783 - 13,672,783
778,774,694 - 778,774,694
846,962,837 384,974 847,347 811
131,439,909 3,345,339 134,785,248
8,000,000 - 8,000,000
12,000,000 - 12,000,000
10,861,996 - 10,861,996
40,641,873 (751,785) 39,890,088
$ 202,943,778 $ 2,593,554 $ 205,537,332
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POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Program Revenues

Cperating Capital
Charges for Grants and Granis and

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT:
Government Activities:
Instruction $ 183,153,158 § 251,228 § 31,215679 $& 20,118,703
Instruction-Related Services 33,180,232 719,200 7,221,764 -
Pupii Services 30,472,489 7,346,212 6,716,513 -
Ancillary Services 3,802,073 2,094,601 183,082 -
Community Services 395,679 - 96,471 -
General Administration 13,388,240 245,810 615,032 -
Plant Services 46,334,359 1,167,170 4,745,373 -
Enterprise Activities 925,468 - - -
Interest on Long-Term Debt 32,749,909 - - -
Gther Outgo 6,633,192 1,683,410 5,698,192 -

Total Governmental Activities 350,934,799 13,507,631 56,492,106 20,118,703
Businass-type Activities:
Enterprising Activities 12,818,968 - - -
Total Primary Government $ 363,753,767 $ 13507631 $ 56492106 ¢ 20,118,703

General Revenues:

Taxes and Subventions
Federal and State Aid Not Restricted to Specific Purposes
Interest and Investment Eamings

Interagency Revenues

Misceilaneous

Total General Revenues
Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - Beginning
Net Assets - Ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Governmental
Activities

Business-type

Activities Total

$ (131,567,548)

$ (131,567,548)

(25,239,268) (25,238,268)
(16,409,764) (16,409,764)
{1,524,390) {1,524,390)
{299,208) {299,208)
(12,527,398) {12,527,398)
(40,421,816) (40,421,816)
(925,468) {925,468)
(32,749,909) {32,749,909)
848,410 848,410
(260,816,359) {260,816,359)
$ (12,818,968)
(260,816,359) (12,818,968) (273,635,327)
147,302,765 - 147,302,765
99,574,334 - 99,574,334
3,186,235 32,601 3,218,836
643,949 - 643,949
6,818,726 12,510,469 19,329,195
257,526,005 12,543,070 270,069,079
(3,290,350} (275,898) (3,566,248)
206,234,128 2,869,452 209,103,580

$ 202943778 &

2,593,554 $_ 205,637,332
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POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2008

ASSETS:

Cash in County Treasury $

Cash on Hand and in Banks
Cash in Revolving Fund

Cash with a Fiscal Agent/Trustee
Accounts Receivable

Due from Other Funds

Stores Inventories

Prepaid Expenditures

Total Assets $ 31,225,926

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE:

Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $
Due to Other Funds
Deferred Revenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balance:

Reserved Fund Balances:
Reserve for Revolving Cash
Reserve for Stores Inventories
Reserve for Prepaid Items

Designated Fund Balances:
Designated for Economic Uncertainties
Other Designated

Unreserved

Unreserved, reported in nonmajor;
Special Revenue Funds
Debt Service Funds
Capital Projects Funds

Total Fund Balance

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

General
Fund

10,113,387
384,707
107,303

16,608,924
3,413,551
264,769
243,285

4,516,652
6,026,326
428,257

~ 10,971,235

107,304
264,769
243,285

5,448,739
130,000
14,060,594

20,254,691

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 5 31,225,926
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24,982,662

48,223,757

$

Building
Fund

443,488

72,565,314
119,002
78,615

73,206,419

24,040,692
941,970

48,223,757

73,206,419

County School
Facilities

Fund

433,198

14,053,447

14,486,645

11,294,082
3

11,294,085

3,192,560

3,192,560

$

14,486,645



Capital Project
Fund For Blended
Component Units

129,735,891
11,168,367

Debt Service Fund
For Blended
Component Units

140,904,258

1,420,000

1,420,000

139,484,258

139,484,258

140,904,258
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$

$

3

4,198,606

22,602,964

$

Cther
Governmental
Funds

18,933,249
185,085
1,250
839,618
6,493,333
349,035

26,801,570

462,874
3,735,732

1,250
348,035

7,070,069
6,118,572
9,064,038

__ 26,801,570

$

$

$

EXHIBIT A-3

Total
Governmental
Funds

29,923,322
569,792
108,553

202,301,205
42,879,358
9,985,499
613,804
243,285

286,624,818

41,734,300
10,704,031
428,257

52,866,588

108,554
613,804
243,285

5,448,739
130,000
204,961,169

7,070,069
6,118,572
9,064,038

233,758,220

$

286,624,818
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POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONGILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2008

Total fund balances - govemmental funds balance sheet

Amounts reported for assets and liabilities for governmental activities in the statement of net
assets are different from amounts reported in governmental funds because:

Capital assets: In governmental funds, only current assets are reported. In the statement of net
assets, all assets are reported, including capital assets and accumulated depreciation.

Capital assets relating to governmental activities, at historical cost 845,585,125
Accumulated depreciation (100,147,114)

Net

Unamortized costs: In governmental funds, debt issue costs are recognized as expenditures in
the period they are incurred. In the government-wide statements, debt issue costs are amertized
over the lite of the debt. Unamortized debt issue costs included in prepaid expense on the
statement of net assets are:

Unmatured interest on long-term debt: In governmental funds, interest on long-term debt is not
recognized until the period in which it matures and is paid. in the govemment-wide statement
of activities, it is recognized in the period that it is incurred. The additional liability for
unmatured interest owing at the end of the period was:

Detferred recognition of eamed but unavailable revenues: In governmental funds, revenue is
recognized only to the extent that it is "available”, meaning it will be collected soon enough
after the end of the period to finance expenditures of that period. Receivables for revenues that
are eamned but unavailable are deferred until the period in which the revenues become
available. In the govemment-wide statements, revenue is recognized when eamed, regardiess
of availability. The amount of unavailable revenues that were deferred as a liability in
governmental funds, but are recognized in the government-wide statements, is:

Long-term liabilities: In governmental funds, only current liabilities are reported. In the
statement of net assets, all liabilities, including long-term liabilities are reported. Long-term
liabilities relating to governmental activities consist of:

General obligation bonds payable 176,685,766

Net OPEB obligation 3,471,170

Compensated absences payable 3,969,219

Capital leases payable 3,628,665

Lease revenue bonds payable 34,783,091

Other general long-term debt 569,908,666
Total

Internal service funds: Internal service funds are used to conduct certain activities for which
costs are charged to other funds on a full cost-recovery basis. Because internal service funds are
presumed to operate for the benefit of governmental activities, assets and liabilities of intemal
service funds are reported with governmental activities in the statement of net assets. Net assets
for internal service funds are:

Net assets of governmental activities - statement of net assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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$ 233,758,230

745,438,011

18,408,125

(11,079,386)

373,090

(792,447 477)

8,493,185

$_ 202,943,778



POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Revenues:

Revenue Limit Sources:
State Apportionments $
Local Sources

Federal Revenue

Other State Revenue

Other Local Revenue
Total Revenues

Expenditures:

Instruction
{nstruction - Related Services
Pupil Services
Ancillary Services
Community Services
General Administration
Plant Services
Other Outgo
Debt Service:

Principal

Interest

Total Expenditures

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Cther Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers In
Transfers Qut
Proceeds From Sale of Bonds
Other Sources
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance, July 1
Fund Balance, June 30 $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

General
Fund

81,177,029
106,205,476
8,620,281
51,698,542
16,131,064

263,741,392

172,262,905
30,779,701
22,049,908

3,774,770
386,051
12,221,174
25,946,511
1,192,765

459,387
4,859

269,078,031

(5,336,639)

3,310,354
(3,428,926)

{(118,572)

{5,455,211)

25,709,902

20,254,691

20

Building
Fund

804,526
804,526

80,935,652
3,197,754

19,309,534
547,934

103,990,874

(103,186,348)

34,988,130

(3,833,314}

92,681,499
283,800

124,120,215

20,933,867

27,289,890

48,223,757

County School
Facilities

Fund

20,056,105
62,597

20,118,702

17,018,375

17,018,375

3,100,327

1,645,000
(4,108,654}

(2,463,654)

$

636,673

2,555,887

T 3.192,560



Capital Project
Fund For Blended
Component Units

41,285,656

41,285,656

119,521,270
4,495,742

124,017,012

(82,731,356)

{109,355,265)
121,113,991
2,042,724

13,801,450

(68,929,906}

208,414,164

139,484,258

Debt Service Fund
For Blended
Component Units

56,215,835
23,494,136

79,709,971

(79,709,971)

79,709,971

79,709,971
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Other
Governmental
Funds

1,820,546
2,896,237
16,852,303

__ 21,569,086

1,356,949
531,419
7,335,591

285,637
6,241,627

2,724,228
8,687,022

27,162,473

(5,593,387)

6,312,178
(6,074,539)

237,579

(5.355,808)

27,958,772

22,602,964

$

EXHIBIT A-5

Total
Governmental
Funds

81,177,029
106,205,476
10,449,827
74,550,884
75,136,146

347,519,362

173,619,854
31,311,120
29,385,499

3,774,770
386,051
12,506,811
249,663,435
8,886,261

78,708,984
32,733,951

620,976,736

(273,457,374)

125,965,633
(126,800,758)
213,795,490

2,326,624

215,286,989

$

(58,170,385)

291,928,615

233,758,230



EXHIBIT A-6
POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ (58,170,385)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different from
amounts reported in governmental funds because:

Capital outlay: In governmental funds, the costs of capital assets are reported as expenditures
in the period when the assets are acquired. In the statement of activities, costs of capital
assets are allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. The difference
between capital outlay expenditures and depreciation expense for the period is:

Expenditures for capital outlay 204,451,473
Depreciation expense (10,982,702)
Net 193,468,771

Debt service: In governmental funds, repayments of long-term debt are reported as
expenditures. In the government-wide statements, repayments of long-term debt are reported
as reductions of liabilities. Expenditures for repayment of the principal portion of long-term
debt were: 78,708,983

Debt proceeds: In governmental funds, proceeds from debt are recognized as Other Financing
Sources. In the govermment-wide statements, proceeds from debt are reported as increases to
liabilities, Amounts recognized in governmental funds as proceeds from debt, net of issue
premium or discount, were: (218,269,321)

Debt issue costs: In governmental funds, debt issue costs are recognized as expenditures in
the period they are incurred. In the government-wide statements, issue costs are amortized
over the fife of the debt. The difference between debt issue costs recognized in the current
period and issue costs amortized for the period is:

Issue costs incurred during the period 7,693,496
Issue costs amortized for the period (3,193,220)
Net 4,500,276

Donated capital assets: In govemmental funds, donated capital assets are not reported
because they do not affect current financial resources. In the government-wide statements,
donated capital assets are reported as revenue and as increases to capital assets, at their fair
market value on the date of donation. The fair market value of capital assets donaied was: 223,449

Gain or loss from disposal of capital assets: In governmental funds, the entire proceeds from
disposal of capital assets are reported as revenue. In the statement of activities, only the
resulting gain or loss is reported. The difference between the proceeds from disposal of
capital assets and the resulting gain or loss is: (14,051)

Earned but unavailable revenues: In governmental funds, revenues are recognized only to
the extent that they are "available’, meaning they will be collected socon enough after the
end of the period to finance expenditures of that period. In the government-wide statements,
revenue is recognized when earned, regardless of availability. The amount of earned but
unavailable revenues relating to the current period, less revenues that became available in
the current period but related to a prior period, is: (98,364)

Unmatured interest on long-term debt: In governmental funds, interest on longterm debt is
recognized in the period that it becomes due. In the govermnment-wide statement of activities,
it is recognized in the period that it is incurred. Unmatured interest owing at the end of the
period, less matured interest paid during the period but owing from the prior period, was: (60,414)
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Compensated absences: In governmental funds, compensated absences are measured by the
amounts paid during the period. In the statement of activities, compensated absences are
measured by the amounts earned. The difference between compensated absences paid and
compensated absences earned was: (65,812)

Postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB): In governmental funds, OPEB costs
are recognized when employer contributions are made. In the statement of activities, OPEB
costs are recognized cn the accrual basis. This year, the difference between OPEB costs and
actual employer contributions was: {3.471,170)

Cost write-off for canceled capital projects: If a planned capital project is canceled and wiil
not be completed, costs previously capitalized as Work in Progress must be written off to
expense, Costs written off for canceled projects were: (126,414)

Amortization of debt issue premium or discount: In governmental funds, if debt is issued at a
premium or at a discount, the premium or discount is recognized as an Other Financing
Source or an Other Financing Use in the period it is incurred. In the government-wide
statements, the premium or discount is amortized as interest over the life of the debt,
Amortization of premium or discount for the period is: 44,457

Internal Service Funds: Internal service funds are used to conduct certain activities for which
costs are charged to other funds on a full cost-recovery basis. Because internal service funds
are presumed to benefit governmental activities, internal service activities are reported as
governmental for the statement of activities. The net increase or decrease in internal service

funds was: 39,645
Change in net assets of governmental activities - statement of activities $ (3,290,350)

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of this statement.
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POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2008

ASSETS:
Current Assets:
Cash in County Treasury
Cash on Hand and in Banks
Cash with a Fiscal Agent/Trustee
Accounts Receivable
Due from Other Funds
Prepaid Expenditures
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Fixed Assets-
Buildings and Improvements
Accumulated Depreciation - Buildings
Equipment
Accumulated Depreciation - Equipment
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Due to Other Funds
Deferred Revenue
Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS:

Restricted Net Assets

Unrestricted Net Assets
Total Net Assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

Nonmajor
Enterprise
Fund

Enterprise
Fund

305,716
56,576
234,226
65,450

661,968

1,410,835

24

4,767,384

(1,430,215)
8,170
(2,918)

3,342 421

4,004,389

299,338
1,025,861
85,636
1,410,835

2,593,554

2,593,554

Nonmajor

Internal Service

Fund

Self-Insurance

Fund

7,169,514
269,133
330,357

99,088

1,783,264

583,748

10,235,104

29,696
(20,787)
8,909

10,244,013

1,646,505
104,323

1,750,828
1,750,828

583,748
7,909,437

8,493,185

EXHIBIT A-7



POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Operating Revenues:
Local Revenue
Total Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Certificated Personnel Salaries
Crassified Personnel Salaries
Employee Benefits
Books and Supplies
Services and Other Operating Expenses
Capital Quttay
Total Expenses

Income (Loss) before Contributions and Transfers
Interfund Transfers In
Interfund Transfers Out

Change in Net Assets

Total Net Assets - Beginning
Total Net Assets - Ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

12,543,070

12,818,968

(275,898)
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Nonmajor
Enterprise
Fund

Enterprise
Fund

12,543,070

1,117,876
7,144,699
2,255,601
752,584
1,441,089
107,109

(275,898)

2,869,452

2593554

Nonmajor

Internal Service

Fund

Self-Insurance

Fund

8,601,314

8,601,314

212,219
76,783
10,045

9,091,808
5,939

9,396,794

(795,480)
1,679,564

(844,439)
39,645

8,453,540

8,493,185

EXHIBIT A-8



POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Cash Received from Customers

Cash Payments to Employees for Services

Cash Payments to Other Suppliers for Goods and Services
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from investing Activities:
Interest and Dividends on Investments
Net Cash Provided (Used) for Investing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating Income (Loss}
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities
Depreciation
Change in Assets and Liabilities:
Decrease (Increase) in Receivables
Decrease (Increase) in Due from other funds
Decrease (Increase) in Prepaid Expenses
Increase {Decrease) in Accounts Payable
increase {Decrease) in Due to other funds
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Revenue
Total Adjustments
Net Cash Provided {Used) by Operating Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Nonmajor
Entemrise
Fund

Enterprise
Fund

12,391,401
(8,262,577)
(4,220,664)

{91,840)

32,601

32,601

(59,239)
421531

362,292

(275,898)

107,108

(140,768)
(5,910)

47,575
181,043
27,610

216,659

(59,239}

EXHIBIT A-9

Nonmajor

Internal Service

Fund

Seif-Insurance
Fund

10,133,687
(212,219
{9,973,533)

(52,065)

282,073

282,073

230,008
7,538,996

7,769,004

39,645

5,939

25,510
109,372
(13,148)
142,389
(79,699)

190,363

230,008




POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2008

ASSETS:
Cash in County Treasury
Cash on Hand and in Banks
Accounts Receivable

Total Assets

LIABILITIES:

Accounts Payable

Bue to Student Groups
Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS:
Held in Trust
Total Net Assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

Private-Purpose
Trust
Fund

Foundation
Private-Purpose

Trust Fund

$ 717,804

6,335

s 724,139

$ 19,618

19,618

704,521

3 704,521
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Agency
Fund

Student
Body
Fund

2,947,194

Y VIARTY

2,947,194

2,947,194

EXHIBIT A-10



EXHIBIT A-11
POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
Private-Purpose

Trust
Fund
Foundation
Private-Purpose
Trust Fund
Additions:
Investment Income $ 36,507
Total Additions 36,507
Deductions:
Administrative Expenses 73,114
Total Deductions 73,114
Change in Net Assets (36,607)
Net Assets-Beginning of the Year 741,128
Net Assets-End of the Year $ 704,521

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

ignifi A in ici

Poway Unified School District (District) accounts for its financial transactions in accordance with the policies and
procedures of the Department of Education's “California School Accounting Manual'. The accounting policies of the
District conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as prescribed by

the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
{AICPA).

1.

Hepeorting Entity

The District's combined financial statements include the accounts of all its cperations, The District evaluated
whether any other entity should be included in these financial statements. The criteria for including

organizations as component units within the District's reporting entity, as set forth in GASB Statement No. 14,
“The Financial Reporting Entity,” include whether:

- the organization is legally separate (can sue and be sued in its name)

- the District holds the corporate powers of the organization

- the District appoints a voting majority of the organization's board

- lhe District is able to impose its will on the organization

- the organization has the potential to impose a financial benefitburden on the District
- there is fiscal dependency by the organization on the District

The District also evaluated each legally separate, tax-exempt organization whose resources are used principally
to provide support to the District to determine if its omission from the reporting entity would result in financial
statements which are misleading or incomplete. GASB Statement No. 14 requires inclusion of such an
organization as a component unit when: 1) The economic resources received or held by the organization are
entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the District, its component units or its constituents; and 2) The
District or its component units is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise access, a majority of the economic
resources received or held by the organization; and 3) Such economic resources are significant to the District.

Based on these criteria, the District has two component units, the Community Facilities Districts (CFD) and the
Public Financing Authority. In addition, the District is not a component unit of any other reporting entity as
defined by the GASB statement.

f A ntin
a. i Presen

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net assets and the statement of activities include the
financial activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made
to minimize the double-counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the
govemmental and business-type activities of the District. Governmental activities generally are financed
through taxes, intergovemmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions. Business-type activities
are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the
different business-type activities of the District and for each function of the Districts govemmental activities.
Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are
clearly identifiable to a particular function. The District does not allocate indirect expenses in the stalement
of activities. Program revenues include (a) fees, fines, and charges paid by the recipients of goods or
services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program
revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.
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POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the District's funds,
with separate statements presented for each fund category. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on
major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. Al remaining
govemnmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmaijor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives
and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings,
result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities.

The District reports the foliowing major governmental funds:

General Fund. This is the District's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
District except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Building Fund. This fund is used to account for the acquisition of major governmental capital facilities
and buildings from the sale of bond proceeds.

County School Facilities Fund. This fund is used to receive apportionments from the State School
Facilites Fund authorized by the State Allecation Board for new school facility construction,
modemization projects, and facility hardship grants.

Capital Project Fund for Blended Component Units, This fund is used to account for the transactions
that are associated with the capital projects of the District's Community Facilities Districts (CFD) and the
Public Financing Authority.

Debt Service Fund for Blended Component Units. This fund is used to account for the accumulation of
resources for the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued by Mello-Roos Community Facilities
Districts and similar entities that are considered blended component units,

In addition, the District reports the following fund types:

Special Revenue Funds: These funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources
that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.

Capital Projects Funds: These funds account for the acquisition and/or construction of all major
governmental general fixed assets.

Debt Service Funds. These funds account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of
general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs.

Internal Service Funds: These funds are used to account for revenues and expenses related to services provided
to parties inside the District. These funds facilitate distribution of support cosis to the users of support
services on a cost-reimbursement basis. Because the principal users of the internal services are the
District's governmental activities, this fund type is included in the "Governmental Activities" column of the
government-wide financial statements.

Private-Purpose Trust Funds: These funds are used to report trust arrangements under which principal and
income benefit individuals, private organizations, or other governments not reported in other fiduciary fund types.

Agency Funds: These funds are used to report student activity funds and cther resources held in a purely custodial

capacity (assets equal liabilities). Agency funds typically involve only the receipt, temporary investment, and
remittance of fiduciary resources to individuals, private organizations, or other governments.

30



POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

3.

Fiduciary funds are reported in the fiduciary fund financial statements. However, because their assets are held in
a trustee or agent capacity and are therefore not available to support District programs, these funds are not
included in the government-wide statements.

b. I E i A in

Government-wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements: These financial statements are
reported using the economic resources measurement focus, The government-wide and proprietary fund
financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when
earmned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash
flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the District gives (or receives} value without directly
receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations.
On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are
levied. Revenue from grants, entitements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all
eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements: Govemmental funds are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues
are recognized when measurable and available. The District does not consider revenues collected after its
year-end to be available in the current period. Revenues from local scurces consist primarily of property
taxes. Property tax revenues and revenues received from the State are recognized under the
susceptible-to-accrual concept. Miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenue when received in cash
because they are generally not measurable until actually received. Investment eamings are recorded as
eamed, since they are both measurable and available, Expenditures are recorded when the related fund
liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and
compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General
capital asset acquisitions are reported as expendilures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general
long-tetm debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

When the District incurs an expenditure or expense for which both restricted and unrestricted resources may
be used, it is the District's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources.

Under GASB Statement No. 20, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other
Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting," all proprietary funds will continue to follow
Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") standards issued on or before November 30, 1989.
However, from that date forward, proprietary funds will have the option of either 1) choosing not to apply
future FASB standards (including amendments of earlier pronouncements), or 2) continuing to follow new
FASB pronouncements unless they conflict with GASB guidance. The District has chosen to apply future
FASB standards.

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting is used in all budgeted funds to reserve portions of applicable appropriations for which
commitments have been made. Encumbrances are recorded for purchase orders, contracts, and other
commitments when they are written. Encumbrances are liquidated when the commitments are paid. All
encumbrances are liquidated as of June 30.

Assetls, Liabilities, and Equity

a. Deposits and Investments
Cash balances held in banks and in revolving funds are insured to $100,000 by the Federal Depository
Insurance Corporation. All cash held by the financial institutions is fully insured or collateralized. For

purposes of the statement of cash flows, highly liquid investments are considered to be cash equivalents if
they have a maturity of three menths or less when purchased.
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POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the District maintains substantially all its cash in the
San Diego County Treasury. The county pools these funds with those of other districts in the county and
invests the cash. These pooled funds are carried at cost, which approximates market value. Interest earned
is deposited quarterly into participating funds, except for the Tax Override Funds, in which interest earned
is credited to the general fund. Any investment losses are proportionately shared by all funds in the pool.

The county is authorized to deposit cash and invest excess funds by California Government Code Section
53648 et seq. The funds maintained by the county are either secured by federal depository insurance or are
collateralized.

Information regarding the amount of dollars invested in derivatives with San Diego County Treasury was
not available.

b. Inventori id Ex|

Inventories are recorded using the purchases method in that the cost is recorded as an expenditure at the
time individual inventory items are purchased. Inventories are valued at average cost and consist of
expendable supplies held for consumption. Reported inventories are equally offset by a fund balance
reserve, which indicates that these amounts are not 'available for appropriation and expenditure® even
though they are a component of net current assets,

The District has the opfion of reporting an expenditure in governmental funds for prepaid items either when
purchased or during the benefiting period. The District has chosen to report the expenditure when incurred.

c. Capital Assels
Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated fixed assets
are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of the donation. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs

that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets' lives are not capitalized. A capitalization
threshold of $5,000 is used.

Capital assets are being depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Estimated

Asset Class Useful Lives
Infrastructure 30
Buildings 45
Building Improvements 20
Vehicles 5-15
Office Equipment 5-15
Other Equipment 5-15

d. Receivable and Payable Balances
The District believes that sufficient detail of receivable and payable balances is provided in the financial
statements to avoid the obscuring of significant components by aggregation. Therefore, no disclosure is provided
which disaggregates those balances,

There are no significant receivables which are not scheduled for collection within one year of year end.
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POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

e,

Compensated Absences

Accumulated unpaid employee vacation benefits are recognized as liabilities of the District. The current
portion of the liabilities is recognized in the general fund at year end.

Accumulated sick leave benefits are not recognized as liabilities of the District. The District's policy is to
record sick leave as an operating expense in the period taken since such benefits do not vest nor is payment
probable; however, unused sick leave is added to the creditable service period for calculation of retirement
benefits when the employee retires.

Deferred Revenue

Cash received for federal and state special projects and programs is recognized as revenue to the exient that
qualified expenditures have been incurred. Deferred revenue is recorded o the extent cash received on specific
projects and programs exceeds qualified expenditures.

Interfund Activity

Iinterfund activity results from loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers between funds. Loans are
reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon consolidation.
Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and expenditures or
expenses. Reimbursements occur when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund and
reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers In
and Transfers Out are netted and presented as a single "Transfers” line on the government-wide statement of
activities. Similarly, interfund receivables and payables are netted and presented as a single "Internal Balances"
line of the govermment-wide statement of net assets.

Propery Taxes

Secured property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of March 1. Taxes are payable in two
installments on November 15 and March 15. Unsecured propery taxes are payable in one instaliment on or
before August 31. The County of San Diego bills and collects the taxes for the District.

F I v i i

Reservations of the ending fund balance indicate the portions of fund batance not appropriable for expenditure
or amounts legally segregated for a specific fuiure use. The reserve for revolving fund and reserve for stores
inventory reflect the portions of fund balance represented by revolving fund cash and stores inventory,
respectively. These amounts are not available for appropriation and expenditure at the balance sheet date.

Designations of the ending fund balance indicate tentative plans for financia! resource utilization in a future
period.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the use of management's estimates.
Actuai results could differ from those estimates.

33



POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

B.

C.

1.

Finance-Related Legal and Contractual Provisions

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 38, "Cerain Financial Statement Note Disclosures," violations of finance-
related legal and contractual provisions, if any, are reported below, along with actions taken to address such violations:

Violation Action Taken
None reported Not applicable
2. Deficit Fund Balance or Fund Net Assets of Individual Funds
Following are funds having deficit fund balances or fund net assets at year end, if any, along with remarks which address
such deficits:
Deficit
Fund Name Amount Remarks
None reported Not applicable  Not applicable
E fE i . : -
As of June 30, 2008 expenditures exceeded appropriations in individual funds as follows:
Excess
Appropriations Category Expenditures
General Fund:
Community services $ 88,057
Other outgo 54,718
Debt service principal 522
Debt service interest 4,859
Inv n
1. Cashin County Treasury:

In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the District maintains substantially ali of its cash in the San
Diege County Treasury as part of the common investment pool ($38,116,356 as of June 30, 2008). The fair
value of the District's portion of this pool as of that date, as provided by the pool sponsor, was $38,116,356.
Assumptions made in determining the fair value of the pooled investment portiolios are available from the
County Treasurer.

nd, i in Bevolving F

Cash balances on hand and in banks ($3,842,695 as of June 30, 2008) and in the revolving fund ($108,553) are
insured up to $100,000 by the Federal Depository Insurance Cormporation. All cash held by the financial
institution is fully insured or collateralized.
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POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

3. |nvestments:
The District's investments at June 30, 2008 are shown below.
Fair

Inv n | n Value
Dreyfus treasury notes $ 127592212
US Treasury Certificate 8,218,906
Cash and cash equivalents 474,592
FHLEB Disc Note 37,262,213
FHLMC Disc Note 28,753,282
Guaranteed investment contract 330,357
Total Investments $ 202,631,562

4 Analysis of S ific D . | Investment Rist

GASB Statement No. 40 requires a determination as to whether the District was exposed to the following specific
investment risks at year end and if so, the reporting of centain related disclosures:

a. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. The
county is restricted by Government Code Section 53635 pursuant to Section 53601 to invest only in time
deposits, U.S. government securities, state registered warrants, notes or bonds, Siate Treasurer's investment
pool, hankers' acceptances, commercial paper, negotiable certificates of deposit, and repurchase or reverse
repurchase agreements. The ratings of securities by nationally recognized rating agencies are designed to
give an indication of credit risk. At year end, the District was not exposed to credit risk.

b. Custedial Credit Risk
Deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by depository insurance and the
deposits are uncollateralized, collateralized with securiies held by the pledging financial institution, or
collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent but not in the
District's name.
Investment securities are exposed to custodial credit risk if the securities are uninsured, are not registered in
the name of the government, and are held by either the counterparty or the counterparty's trust department
or agent but not in the District's name.
At year end, the District was not exposed to custodial credit risk.

¢.  Concentration of Credit Risk

This risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a govemment's investment in a single issuer. At year
end, the District was not exposed to concentration of credit risk.

d. Interest Rate Risk

This is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely aftect the fair value of an invesiment. At year end,
the District was not exposed to interest rate risk.

e. Foreign Currency Risk

This is the risk that exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. At year end, the
District was not exposed to foreign currency risk.
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POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

v nti li

The District is required by GASB Statement No. 31 to disclose its policy for determining which investments, if any, are
reported at amortized cost. The District's general policy is to repot money market investments and short-term
participating interest-earning investment contracts at amortized cost and to report nonparticipating interest-earning
investment contracts using a cost-based measure. However, if the fair value of an investment is significantly affected
by the impairment of the credit standing of the issuer or by other factors, it is reported at fair value. All other
investments are reported at fair value unless a legal contract exists which guarantees a higher value. The term
*short-term” refers to investments which have a remaining term of one year or less at time of purchase. The term
"nonparticipating" means that the investment's value does not vary with market interest rate changes. Nonnegotiable
certificates of deposit are exampies of nonparicipating interest-earning investment contracts.

The District's investments in external investment pools are reported at an amount determined by the fair value per
share of the pool's underlying portfolio, unless the pool is 2a7-like, in which case they are reported at share value. A
2a7-like pool is one which is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("“SEC") as an investment
company, but nevertheless has a policy that it will, and does, operate in a manner consistent with the SEC's Rule 2a7
of the Investment Company Act of 1940,

E. Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2008 was as follows:
Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 66,851,733 § 2,151,341 § $ 69,003,074
Work in progress 192,809,403 201,511,717 68,166,123 326,154,997
Total capital assets not being depreciated 259,661,136 203,663,058 68,166,123 395,158,071
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 323,532,807 63,148,510 386,681,317
Land improvements 28,682,386 5,070,312 33,752,698
Equipment 29,375,680 832,752 185,697 30,022,735
Total capital assets being depreciated 381,590,873 69,051,574 185,697 450,456,750
Less accumuiated depreciation for:
Buildings (57,986,606) (7,918,747) (65,905,353)
Land improvements {12,487,167) (1,290,602) {13,777,769)
Equipment {18,877,132) (1,779,292) (171,645) (20,484,779}
Total accumuiated depreciation {89,350,905) (10,988,641) (171,645)  (100,167,901)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 292,239,968 58,062,933 14,052 350,288,849
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 551,901,104 $ 261,725991 % 68,180,175 $ 745,446,920
Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 4,767,384 - - 4,767,384
Equipment 8,170 - - 8,170
Total capital assets being depreciated 4,775,554 - - 4,775,554
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (1,324,274} (105,941) - (1,430,215)
Equipment (1,751} (1,167) - (2,918)
Total accumulated depreciation (1,328,025) {107,108) - (1,433,133)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 3,449,529 {(107,108) . 3,342,421
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 3,449529 § {107,108) $ - $ 3,342,421
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Depreciation was charged to functions as follows:

Instruction $ 7.437 558
Instruction-Related Services 1,531,464
Pupil Services 819,645
Ancillary Services 4,846
Community Services 2,450
Enterprige 12,084
General Administration 750,699
Plant Services 429,895
Business Type Aclivities 107,108

§ 11,005,749

F.

1.

Due To and From Other Funds

Balances due to and due from other funds at June 30, 2008 consisted of the following:

Due To Fund Due From Fund Amount

General Fund General Fund $ 266,332
General Fund Adult Education Fund 335,351
General Fund Child Development Fund 5,807
General Fund Cafeteria Fund 420,613
General Fund Building Fund 806,110
General Fund Capital Facilities Fund 24,525
General Fund County Schootl Facilities Fund 3
General Fund Special Reserve Fund 424,627
General Fund Other Enterprise Fund 1,025,861
General Fund Self-Insurance Fund 104,323
Adult Education Fund General Fund 7,672
Cafeteria Fund General Fund 549
Cafeteria Fund Child Development Fund 259
Detferred Maintenance Fund General Fund 1,500,000
Special Reserve Other General Fund 791,000
Building Fund General Fund 78,615
Special Reserve Fund General Fund 1,557,994
Special Reserve Fund Building Fund 135,860
Special Reserve Fund Capital Facilities Fund 2,500,000
Other Enterprise Fund General Fund 40,900
Other Enterprise Fund Adult Education Fund 24,550
Self Insurance Fund General Fund 1,783,264

Total

All amounts due are scheduled to be repaid within one year.
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2. Transfers To and From Other Funds

Transfers to and from other funds at June 30, 2008 consisted of the following:

Transfers From Transfers To Amount
Building Fund General Fund $ 1,597,454
Building Fund Special Reserve Fund 2,235,860
Capital Facilities Fund Building Fund 3,000,000
Capital Facilities Fund Special Reserve Fund 2,500,000
Capital Projects Fund Building Fund 28,000,294
Capital Projects Fund County School Facilities Fund 1,645,000
Capital Projects Fund Debt Service Fund 79,709,971
Capital Projects Fund Special Reserve Fund 1,639,897
County School Facilities Fund  Building Fund 3,987,836
County School Facilities Fund  General Fund 120,819
Deferred Maintenance Fund General Fund 150,000
General Fund Adult Education Fund 26,318
General Fund Deferred Maintenance Fund 1,250,000
General Fund General Fund 173,044
General Fund Self-Insurance Fund 1,679,564
General Fund Special Reserve Fund 300,000
Self-Insurance Fund General Fund 844 439
Special Reserve Fund General Fund 424,599
Total $ 129,285,095

G. Shon-Term Debt Activity

The District accounts for short-term debts for maintenance purposes through the General Fund. The proceeds from
loans are shown in the financial statements as Other Resources.

Beginning Ending
Balance Issued Redeemed Balance
D -
Tax anticipation notes $ 10,000,000 $ $ 10,000,000 § -
H. -Ter igati

1. Long-Term Obligation Activity

Long-term obligations include debt and other long-term liabilities. Changes in long-term obligations for the year ended

June 30, 2008 are as follows:

Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Increases Decreases Balance One Year

G | activities:
General obligation bonds $ 178,680,766 $ - $ 1,995000 $ 176,685,766 $ 1,065,000
Capital leases 2,679,605 2,147,207 1,198,147 3,628,665 1,034,018
Certificates of participation 19,300,000 - 19,300,000 - -
Lease revenue bonds - 34,783,991 - 34,783,991 -
Special tax bonds 444,830,835 179,011,499 56,215,835 567,626,499 7,439,643
Bond premium - 2,326,624 44 457 2,282,167 164,902
OPEB - 3,471,170 - 3,471,170 -
Compensated absences * 3,903,406 65,813 - 3,969,219 3,969,220
Total governmental activities $_ 649,394,612 $_ 221,806,304 $  78,753439 $§_ 792447,477 $___ 13,672,783
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* Other long-term liabilities
The funds typically used to liquidate other long-term liabilities in the past are as follows:

Liability Activity Type Fund
Compensated absences Govemmental  General

2. Debt Service Requirements
Debt service requirements on long-term debt, net of OPEB, at June 30, 2008 are as follows;

Governmental Activities

Year i Principal interest Total

2009 13,672,781 $ 32,861,974 § 46,534,755
2010 9,559,310 32,815,340 42,374,650
2011 10,956,337 33,090,809 44,047,146
2012 11,918,571 33,023,959 44,942 530
2013 12,812,221 33,950,894 46,763,115
20142018 83,577,443 175,954,037 259,531,480
2019-2023 108,687,212 167,627,476 276,314,688
2024-2028 162,244,115 134,189,783 296,433,898
2029-2033 200,031,563 95,060,599 295,092,162
2034-2038 132,050,763 36,328,201 168,378,964
2039-2043 43,465,991 8,639,851 52,105,842
Tatals $ 788,976,307 $§ 783,542,923 $ 1,572,519,230

3. Advance Refunding of Debt

GASB Statement No. 7, "Advance Refundings Resulting in Defeasance of Debt," provides that refunded debt
and assets placed in escrow for the payment of related debt service be excluded from the financial statements.
As of June 30, 2008, outstanding balances of bond issues that have been refunded and defeased in-substance
by placing existing assets and the proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt
service payments are as follows.

Bond Issue Amount

2004 Certiticates of Participation 19,300,000
2003 Special Tax Bonds 2,970,835
Total 22,270,835

4. Capital Leases

Commitments under capitalized lease agreements for facilities and equipment provide for minimum future lease payments
as of June 30, 2008 as foliows:

Y in

2009 $ 1,192,670
2010 1,187,956
2011 ‘ 1,040,695
2012 551,084
Total Minimum Lease Payments 3,972,405
Less Amount Representing Interest (343,739)

Present Value of Net Minimum Lease Payments $ 3,628,666
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5. Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2008

In June 2008 the District issued a series of lease revenue bonds totaling $92,681,499. The bonds are secured by lease
payments from the district to the Poway Unified School District Public Financing Authority, for Westview High School. Legal
provisions in the debt include a fully-funded reserve and rental interruption insurance covering two years of lease payments
1o oftset abatement risk.

L. Joint Ventures (Joint Powers Agreements)

The District participates in two joint powers agreements (JPA) entities, the San Diego County Schools Risk
Management (SDCSRM) and the Southem Califomia Relief Property and Liabiity Insurance (SCR). The
relationship between the District and the JPA's is such that the JPA's are not a companent unit of the District.

The JPA's arrange for and provide for various types of insurances for its member districts as requested. The JPA's
are govemed by a board consisting of a representative from each member district. The board controls the operations
of the JPA's, including selection of management and approval of operating budgets, independent of any influence
by the member districts beyond their representation on the board. Each member district pays a premium
commensurate with the level of coverage requested and shares surpluses and deficits proportionate to their
participation in the JPA's.

Combined condensed unaudited financial information of the District's share of the San Diego County Schools Risk
Management JPA for the year ended June 30, 2008 is as follows:

Total Assets $ 413,567
Total Liabilities 272,474
Total Fund Balance 141,093
Total Cash Receipts 1,532,332
Total Cash Disbursements 1,385,665
Net Change in Fund Balance 136,667

Combined condensed unaudited financial information of the District's share of the Southern California Relief
Property and Liability Insurance JPA for the year ended June 30, 2008 was not available as of the date of this report.

J.  Employee Retirement Systems

Qualified employees are covered under multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans maintained by agencies of the
State of California. Certificated employees are members of the State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS), and classified
employees are members of the Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS).

PERS:

Plan Description

The District contributes to the School Employer Pool under the California Public Employees' Retirement System
(CalPERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan
administered by CalPERS. The plan provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments,
and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by state statutes, as
legislatively amended, within the Public Employees' Retirement Law. CalPERS issues a separate comprehensive
annual financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. Copies of the
CalPERS annual financial report may be cbtained from the CalPERS Executive Office, 400 P Street, Sacramento,
California 95814.
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Funding Poli
Active plan members are required to contribute 7% of their salary (7% of monthly salary over $133.33 if the member
participates in Social Security), and the District is required to confribute an actuarially determined rate. The actuarial
methods and assumptions used for determining the rate are those adopted by the CalPERS Board of Administration.
The required employer contribution rate for fiscal year 2007-08 was 9.32% of annual payroll. The contribution
requirements of the plan members are established by state statute. The District's contributions to CalPERS for the
fiscal year ending June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006 were $6,158,527, $5,598,960 and $4,867,201, respectively, and
equal 100% of the required contributions for each year. The amount contributed by the State on behalf of the District
was $0.

STRS:

Plan Description

The District contributes to the State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public
employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan administered by STRS. The plan provides refirement,
disability, and survivor benefits to beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by state statutes, as legislatively
amended, within the State Teachers' Retirement Law. STRS issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report
that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. Copies of the STRS annual financial
report may be obtained from the STRS, 7667 Folsom Boulevard, Sacramento, California 95826.

Eunding Policy

Active plan members are required to contribute 8% of their salary and the District is required to contribute an
actuarially determined rate. The actuarial methods and assumptions used for determining the rate are those adopted
by the STRS Teachers' Retirement Board. The required employer contribution rate for fiscal year 2007-08 was 8.25%
of annual payroll. The contribution requirements of the plan members are established by state statute. The District's
contributions to STRS for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006 were $11,588,843, $11,013,784 and
$10,013,458, respectively, and equal 100% of the required contributions for each year. The amount coniributed by
the State on behalf of the District was $8,856,563.

K. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pension Benefits

The Poway Unifled School District (District) provides health benefit plans to eligible retirees to age 65. The
postretirement health plans and the District's obligation vary by employee group as described below,

T
The District provides health coverage for the refiree and any eligible dependent untit the retiree reaches age 65.
Eligible coverage includes medical/Rx, dental and vision benefits. Upon reaching age 65 or Medicare eligibility,
retirees and their eligible spouses must enroll in Medicare. The District's contractual obligation is to pay for the health
coverage of the retiree only for the least expensive medical, dental and vision plan regardless of which plan the
retiree elects for coverage. The retiree is responsible for any health coverage elected for his/her eligible dependents.

To be eligible to receive retiree health coverage, the employee must be eligible for and retire under STRS/PERS
and have at least 10 years of District efigible service at retirement. Upon reaching age 65, retirees can elect Medicare
supplemental medical coverage but must pay the full cost for this coverage. Upen the death of the refiree, eligible
spouses may continue coverage by paying the full cost of coverage.

Califonia School Empl : iation (CSE2
Eligible employees can purchase retiree health coverage for themselves and their eligible dependents. Eligible
coverage includes medical/Rx, dental and vision benefits. Upon reaching age 65 or Medicare eligibility, retirees and
their eligible spouses must enroll in Medicare. To be eligible to purchase health coverage, the employee must be
eligible for and retire under STRS/PERS/PARS and have at least 10 consecutive years of District eligible service at
retirement.
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Employees with at least 5 consecutive years of benefited eligible service may be eligible for a Distrct contribution
towards their retiree health coverage to age 65. The District's contribution will be based on a percentage of the cost
for the least expensive medical plan for employee only coverage and will vary by years of District eligible service at
retirement as follows:

District
Contribution
Years of Service at Retirement Percentage
At least 15 years of service but less than 17 80%
At least 17 years of service but less than 20 90%
20 or more years of service 100%

Pan-time employees will receive 100% of the District contribution if working between 7.76 and 8 hours, 92% of the
District contribution if working between 6 and 7.75 hours and 73% of the District contribution if working between 4 and
5.99 hours.

Eligible retirees may purchase dental and vision coverage for themselves and medical, dental and vision coverage
for their dependents on a self-pay basis. Upon the death of the retiree, eligible spouses may continue coverage by
paying the full cost of coverage.

Eligible employees can purchase retiree health coverage for themseives and their eligible dependents. Eligible
coverage includes medical/Rx, dental and vision benefits. Upon reaching age 65 or Medicare eligibility, retirees and
their eligible spouses must enroll in Medicare. To be eligible to purchase health coverage, the employee must be
eligible for and retire under STRS/PERS/PARS and have at least 10 consecutive years of District eligible service at
retirement.

To be eligible to receive a District contribution for retiree health coverage, the employee must be eligible for and
retire under STRS/PERS on or after July 1, 2007 and have at least 10 consecutive years of benefited service at
retirement. The District's contribution will be based on a percentage of the cost for the least expensive medical plan
for employee only coverage and will vary by years of District eligible service at retirement as follows:

District
Contribution
Years of Service at Retirement Percentage
At least 10 years of service but less than 15 50%/$200
Atleast 15 years of service but less than 20 75%/$300
20 or more years of service 100%/$400

Part-time employees will receive 100% of the District contribution if working between 7.76 and 8 hours, 92% of the
District contribution if working between 6 and 7.75 hours and 73% of the District contribution if working between 4 and
5.99 hours.

Board Members
Eligible retired board members can elect health coverage for themselves and their eligible dependents on a self-pay
basis. Eligible coverage includes medical/Rx, dental and vision benefits.

Premium Rates

The premiums that are charged to the refiree for retiree and dependent medical coverage under age 65 are the same
as the premiums charged for active medical coverage. Thus, the District is also providing a "rate subsidy" to the
retirees by charging them a blended rate rather than a retiree only rate. GASB 45 requires that when an employer
provides benefits to both active employees and retirees through the same plan, the benefits to retirees should be
segregated and measured independently. This requires valuing any “rate subsidy' as an additional obligation to the
District.
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The following table summarizes the current ten monthly premiums and funding rates paid by the District on behalf of
retirees. All premiums are experienced rated and effective for calendar year 2008.

Health Net

Silver Network Full Network PPO Seniority Plus
Employee (EE)} Only $486.08 $617.34 $652.93 N/A
Two Party $1,037.47 $1,319.66 $1,396.21 N/A
EE Pius Family $1,435.16 $1,822.36 $1,927.38 N/A
Single - Medicare Eligible $264.80 $263.83 $373.80 $298.00
Two Party - Medicare Eligible $534.61 $532.66 $752.60 $594.86
Two Party - One Medicare $755.89 $886.17 $1,031.73 $840.19

Kaiser Other Benefits

Sr. Advantage Dental Plan Vision Plan
Employee (EE) Only $479.33 $55.00 $7.87
Two Party $932.63 $115.00 $13.60
EE Plus Family $1,277.98 $170.00 $16.04
Single - Medicare Eligible $282.61 $55.00 $7.87
Two Parly - Medicare Eligible $562.22 $115.00 $13.60
Two Party - One Medicare N/A $115.00 $13.60

Funding Pali
Beginning in the 2007-08 fiscal year, the District began to accrue the retiree health benefits in accordance with
GASE Statement No. 45. The expense is generally accrued over the working career of empioyees. Under accrual
accounting in accordance with GASB Statement No. 45 the District's expense for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008
is $4,605,641.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation: The Disfrict's annual other postemployment benefits (OPEB) cost
(expense) is based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC). The District's expense is comprised of
the present value of benefits accruing in the current year (nomal cost) plus a 30 year amortization (on a level-dollar
basis) of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (past service liability). The ARC represents a level of funding that, if
paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal costs each year and to amortize any unfunded actuaria!
liabilities {or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of
the District's annual OPEB cost for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the amount actually contributed to the plan,
and charges in the District's net OPEB obligation to the plan:

Annual required contribution $ 4,605,641
Contributions made : 1,134,471
Increase in net OPEB obligation 3,471,170

Net OPEB obligations - beginning of year -

Net OPEB obligations - end of year

$ 3,471,170

The District's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net CPEB
obligation for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 is as follows:

Percentage
Fiscal of Annual Net
Year Ended Annual OPEB OPEB cost OPEB
June 30 Costs Contributed Obligation
2008 $ 4,605,641 2463% $ 3,471,170
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As of June 30, 2008, the accrued liability for benefits was $4,605,641, of which $3,471,170 is unfunded. The
covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $198,028,878, and the ratio of
unfunded actuarial accrued liability to the covered payroll was 19.3%.

The projection of future benefit payments for an ongoing plan involves estimates of the value of reported amounts
and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions
about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts regarding the funded status of the plan
and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual resuits are compared
with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as
required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend
information about whether the actuarial value of the plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liabitities for benetits.

Assumptions

The following assumptions were made:
Retirement eligibility age: The earliest retirement age assumed for employees is age 55.

Participation rate: 100% of future active employees are assumed to elect retiree health coverage at retirement. Of
those electing coverage approximately 30% are assumed to elect coverage for their spouse. Spouses are assumed to
be the same age as the retiree.

Claim cost development: The valuation was based on the medical premiums fumished by the District. The average
annual medical cost for a single participant under age 65 was determined to be $5,119. This cost includes medical
and prescription drug. A claim cost curve was developed using an assumption for aging. This results in an expected
claim cost at every age. Sample annual medical costs are provided in the following table.

Age Annual Cost
50 $5,141
55 $5,959
60 $6,909
64 $7.776

The average annual dental and vision cost for a single paricipant was determined to be $550 for dental and $80 for
vision.

Medical trend rates: The expected rate of increase in heaithcare insurance premiums is shown in the following table

Year Trend
2009 9.0%
2010 8.0%
2011 7.0%
2012 6.0%
2013+ 5.0%

Dental and Vision trend rates: The expected rate of increase in dental and vision insurance premiums is shown below

Year Trend
2009+ 5.0%
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Actuarial Cost Method: The actuarial cost method used was Projected Unit Credit with service prorate. Under this
method, the Actuarial Accrued Liability is the present value of projected benefits multiplied by the ratio of benefit
service as of the valuation date to the projected benefit service at retirement, termination, disability or death. The
Normal Cost for a plan year is the expected increase in the Accrued Liability during the year. All employees eligible
as of the measurement date in accordance with the provisions of the plan listed in the data provided by the District
were included in the valuation.

Actuarial value of assets: Any assets of the ptan will be valued on a market value basis.

L ¢ it | | Conti .
Litigation

The District is involved in various litigation. in the opinion of management and legal counsel, the disposition of all
fitigation pending will not have a material effect on the financiat statements.

State and Federal Allowances, Awards, and Grants

The District has received state and federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to view and audit by the grantor
agencies. Although such audits could generate expenditure disallowances under terms of the grants, it is believed
that any required reimbursement will not be material.

M. BRisk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torls, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District has one seli-insurance fund (internal
Service Fund} to account for and finance its uninsured risks of loss. The Internal Service Fund provides dental and
vision coverage to employees.

All funds of the District participate in the program, but only the General Fund makes payments to the Self Insurance
Fund based on actuarial estimates of the amounts needed to pay prior and current year claims and to establish a
liability for open claims and Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) claims. The claims and liability of $1,288,232 is
included in the liabiities under accounts payable and is reported in accordance with Financial Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 10, which requires that a liability for claims be reported if information prior to the
issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the
financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasconably estimated at the end of the fiscal year. Changes
in the Internal Service Fund's claim liability in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 are indicated below:

Current Year
Begining Claims and Ending
Fiscal Year Changes in Claim Fiscal Year
Intemal Service Fund: Liability Estimates Payments Liability
Year 2007-08 $ 1,379,154 $ 383,938 $ 474,860 $ 1,288,232
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Required Supplementary Information

Required supplementary information includes financial information and disclosures required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board but not considered a part of the basic financial statements.



POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Revenues:

Revenue Limit Sources:
State Apporticnments
Local Sources

Federal Revenue

Other State Revenue

Other Local Revenue
Total Revenues

Expenditures:

Instruction
Instruction - Related Services
Pupil Services
Ancillary Services
Community Services
Enterprise
General Administration
Plant Services
Other Outgo
Debt Service:

Principal

Interest

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deliciency) of Revenues
Over {Under} Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance, July 1
Fund Balance, June 30

EXHIBIT B-1

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Criginal Final Actual {Negative)
$ 77,140,261 $ 81,177,029 $ 81,177,029 § -
108,367,001 106,205,479 106,205,476 (3}
8,143,543 9,176,941 8,629,281 {547,660)
49,173,977 51,639,819 51,598,542 (41,277)
9,541,287 16,705,499 16,131,064 (574,435)
252,366,069 264,904,767 263,741,392 {1,163,375)
161,318,797 182,690,406 172,262,905 10,427,501
27,648,510 33,010,673 30,779,701 2,230,972
20,467,304 22,317,555 22,049,908 267,647
3,189,865 4,430,836 3,774,770 656,066
316,135 297,994 386,051 (88,057)
- 1,113 - 1,113
11,753,942 12,344,091 12,221,174 122,917
26,460,643 26,835,773 25,946,511 889,262
1,046,525 1,138,047 1,192,765 (54,718)
78,350 458,865 459,387 (522)
- - 4,859 {4,859)
252,280,071 283,525,353 269,078,031 14,447,322
85,998 {18,620,586) (5,336,639) 13,283,947
2,055,387 3,310,358 3,310,354 4)
(2,539,122) (4,122,193} (3,428,926) 693,267
(483,735) {811,835) {118,572) 693,263
(397,737) (19,432,421) {5,455,211) 13,977,210
25,709,802 25,708,902 25,709,902 -
$ 25312165 $ 6277481 $ 20254691 § 13,977,210
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POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT HEALTH PROGRAM
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Actuarial Acturia! Accrued Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered Percentage of
Valuation Assets - Eniry Age (UAAL) Ratic Payroll Covered Payroll
Date (@ {b) {b-a) (a/b) {c) ((b-a)fc)
2008 $ - $ 38,297,941 § 38,207,911 - $ 198,028,878 19.3%
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Combining Statements and Budget Comparisons
as Supplementary Information

This supplementary information includes financial statements and schedules not required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, nor a part of the basic financial statements, but are presented for purposes of additional analysis.



POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2008

ASSETS:
Cash in County Treasury
Cash on Hand and in Banks
Cash in Revolving Fund
Accounts Receivable
Due from Other Funds
Stores Inventories

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE:
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Due to Other Funds
Total Liabilities

Fund Balance:

Reserved Fund Balances:
Reserve for Revolving Cash
Reserve for Stores Inventories

Unreserved, repeorted in nonmajer:;
Special Revenue Funds
Debt Service Funds
Capital Projects Funds

Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

EXHIBIT C-1

Debt
Service Total
Fund Nonmajor
Special Bond Capital Governmental
Revenue Interest Projects Funds (See
Funds & Redemption Funds Exhibit A-3)

4,989,595 & 6,118,572 § 7,825,082 § 18,933,249
185,085 - - 185,085
1,250 - - 1,250
799,624 - 39,994 839,618
2,299,479 - 4,193,854 6,493,333
349,035 - - 349,035
8,624,068 $ 6,118,572 % 12,058,930 $ 26,801,570
417134 % - $ 45740 $ 462,874
786,580 - 2,949,152 3,735,732
1,203,714 - 2,994,892 4,198,606
1,250 - - 1,250
349,035 - - 349,035
7,070,069 - - 7,070,069
- 6,118,572 - 6,118,572

- - 9,064,038 9,064,038
7,420,354 6,118,572 9,084,038 22,602,964
8,624,068 $ 6,118572 § 12,058,930 $ 26,801,570
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Revenues:
Federal Revenue
Other State Revenue
Other Local Revenue
Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Instruction
Instruction - Related Services
Pupil Services
General Administration
Plant Services
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance, July 1
Fund Balance, June 30

EXHIBIT C-2

Total
Nonmajor
Special Capital Governmental
Revenue Projects Funds (See
Funds & Redemption Funds Exhibit A-5)

1,820,546 - $ 1,820,546
2,796,545 - 2,896,237
65,488,746 1,019,598 16,852,303
11,105,837 1,019,598 21,569,086
1,356,949 - 1,356,949
531,419 - 531,419
7,335,591 - 7,335,591
260,971 24,666 285,637
2,765,911 3,475,716 6,241,627
- 729,228 2,724,228

- 129,629 8,687,022
12,250,841 4,358,239 27,162,473
{1,145,004) (3,339,841) (5,593,387)
1,576,318 4,735,860 6,312,178
(150,000) (5,924,599) (6,074,599)
1,426,318 (1,188,739) 237,579
281,314 (4,528,380) (5,355,808)
7,139,040 13,592,418 27,958,772
7,420,354 6,118,572 § 9,064,038 § 22,602,964
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POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2008

ASSETS:
Cash in County Treasury
Cash on Hand and in Banks
Cash in Revolving Fund
Accounts Receivable
Due from Other Funds
Stores Inventories

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE:
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Due to Other Funds
Total Liabilities

Fund Balance:

Reserved Fund Balances:
Reserve for Revolving Cash
Reserve for Stores Inventories

Unreserved, reported in nonmajor:
Special Revenue Funds

Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

482,514

518,179

50

Adult
Education
Fund

513,501
3,272
476,248
7,672

1,000,693

122,612
359,802

518,179

1,000,693

Child
Development
Fund

5 34,965

7,645

$ 42,610

$ 3,109
6,065
9,174

33,436
33,436

$ 42,610



EXHIBIT C-3

Total
Nonmajor
Special
Deferred Special Revenue

Cafeteria Maintenance Reserve Funds (See

Fund Fund Fund Exhihit C-1)
2,603,230 $ 1,667,618 $ 170,181 £ 4,989,595
181,813 - - 185,085
1,250 - - 1,250
278,453 35,802 1,476 799,624
807 1,500,000 791,000 2,299,479
349,035 - - 349,035
3,414,688 $ 3,203,420 ) 962,657 $ 8,624,068
259,133 5 32,280 $ - $ 417,134
420,613 - - 786,580
679,746 32,280 - 1,203,714
1,250 - - 1,250
349,035 - - 349,035
2,384,657 3,171,140 962,657 7,070,069
2,734,942 3,171,140 962,657 7,420,354
3,414,688 $ 3,203,420 $ 962,657 3 8,624,068
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POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Revenues:
Federal Revenue
Other State Revenue
Other Local Revenue
Total Revenues

Expenditures:;
Instruction
Instruction - Related Services
Pupil Services
General Administration
Plant Services
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under} Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance, July 1
Fund Balance, June 30

Adult
Education
Fund

109,952
1,092,867
480,808

1,683,627

1,747,470

(63,843)

52

1,035,734
517,393
75,616
64,944
53,783

26,318
26,318
(37,525)

555,704

518,179

Child
Development
Fund

345,405
2,270

347,675

321,215
14,026

16,300

351,541

(3,866)

(3,866)

37,302
33,436



Cafeteria
Fund

1,710,594
106,583
5,851,000

7,668,177

7,259,975
179,727
162,174

7,601,876

66,301

66,301

2,668,641

§__ 2734942

Deferred
Maintenance
Fund

1,251,690
153,192

1,404,882

2,549,954

2,549,954

(1,145,072)

1,250,000
(150,000)

1,100,000

(45,072)

3,216,212

3,171,140
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Special
Reserve
Fund

1,476
1,476

1,476

300,000

300,000

301,476

661,181

962,657

EXHIBIT C-4

Total
Nonmajor
Special
Revenue
Funds {See

Exhibit C-2)

1,820,546
2,796,545
6,488,746

11,105,837

1,356,949
531,419
7,335,501
260,971
2,765,911

12,250,841

(1,145,004)

1,576,318
{150,000}

1,426,318

281,314

7,139,040

7,420,354



POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2008

ASSETS:

Cash in County Treasury

Accounts Receivable

Due from Other Funds
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE:
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Due to Other Funds
Total Liabilities

Fund Balance:
Unreserved, reported in nonmajor:
Capital Projects Funds
Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

EXHIBIT C-5

Total
Nonmajor
Capital
Capital Special Projects
Facilities Reserve Funds (See
Fund Fund Exhibit C-1)
$ 3,482,752 4,342,330 $ 7.825,082
8,838 31,1586 39,994
- 4,193,854 4,193,854
3 3,491,590 8,567,340 % 12,058,930
$ 39,233 6,507 $ 45,740
2,524,525 424,627 2,949,152
2,563,758 431,134 2,994,892
927,832 8,136,206 9,064,038
927,832 8,136,206 9,064,038
3 3,491,590 8,567,340 $ 12,058,930
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POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Revenues:
Other Local Revenue
Total Revenues

Expenditures:
General Administration
Plant Services
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers In
Transfars Qut
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance, July 1
Fund Balance, June 30

Total
Nonmajor
Capital
Capital Special Projects
Facilities Reserve Funds (See
Fund Fund Exhibit C-2)
752,487 $ 267,111 $ 1,019,598
752,487 267,111 1,019,598
24,666 - 24,666
508,429 2,967,287 3,475,716
- 729,228 729,228
- 129,629 129,629
533,005 3,826,144 4,359,239
219,392 (3,559,033) (3,339,6841)
- 4,735,860 4,735,860
(5,500,000) (424,599) {5.924,599)
(5,500,000) 4,311,261 {1,188,739)
(5,280,608) 752,228 (4,528,380)
6,208,440 7,383,978 13,592,418
927,832 $ 8,136,206 $ 9,064,038

S5

EXHIBIT C-6
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Other Supplementary information

This section inciudes financial information and disclosures not required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board and not considered a part of the basic financial statements. It may, however, include information which is
required by other entities.
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Supplementary Information Section



POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY
ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE

JUNE 30, 2008

The Poway Unified School District was established in 1962 and is comprised of an area of approximately 100
square miles in San Diego County. There were no changes in the boundaries during the current year. The district is
currently operating twenty three elementary schools, six middle schools, four comprehensive high schools, and
one continuation high school. The district also maintains twenty three preschools, one New Directions program and

one Adult School.
Govemning Board
Name Office Term and Term Expiration
Linda Vanderveen President Four Year Term
Expires December 2012
Andy Patapow Vice President Four Year Term
Expires December 2012
Todd Gutschow Clerk Four Year Term
Expires December 2010
Jeff Mangum Member Four Year Term
Expires December 2010
Penny Ranftle Member Four Year Term
Expires Dacember 2010
Administration
Donald A. Phillips, Ed.D.
Superintendent
John Collins, Ed.D
Deputy Superintendent
Willlam Chiment

Associate Superintendent

Mel Robertson, Ed.D
Assistant Superintendent

Dians Cantelli
Assistant Superintendent

Eric Lehew
Assistant Superintendent

Malliga Tholandi
Chief Business Official
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POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Elementary:
Kindergarten
Grades 1 through 3
Grades 4 through 6
Grades 7 and 8
Home and hospital
Special education

Elementary totals

High School:
Grades 8 through 12, regular classes
Home and hospital
Special education
Continuation education
High school totals

Classes for adults:
Concurrently enrolled
Not concurrently enrolled

ADA totals

Summer School

Elementary
High School

Revised
Second Period
Report

2,340.04
6,718.93
7,063.92
4,899.21
2.63
538.62

TABLE D-1

Revised
Annual Repont

21,563.35

2,345.65
6,728.06
7,069.00
4,898.74
3.00
540.89

9,939.99
2.55
330.37
25824

21,585.34

10,532.15

9,892.34
3.38
325.56
253.46

11.14
237.50

10,474.74

32,344.14

18.40
365.13

32,443.61

Hours of
Attendance

135,217
266,980

Average daily attendance is a measurement of the number of pupils attending classes of the district. The purpose of
attendance accounting from a fiscal standpoint is to provide the basis on which apportionments of state funds are made to
school districts. This schedule provides information regarding the attendance of students at various grade levels and in

different programs.

57



POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT TABLE D-2
SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Number Number
1986-87 of Days of Days
1982-83 Minutes 2007-08 Traditional  Multitrack
Grade Level Actual Minutes  Requirement Actual Minutes Calendar Calendar Status
Kindergarten 31,680 36,000 36,000 180 - Complied
Grade 1 47,149 50,400 54,260 180 - Complied
Grade 2 47,149 50,400 54,260 180 - Complied
Grade 3 47,149 50,400 54,260 180 - Complied
Grade 4 49,684 54,000 54,285 180 - Complied
Grade 5 49,684 54,000 54,285 180 - ~ Complied
Grade 6 60,703 54,000 60,722 180 - Complied
Grade 7 60,703 54,000 60,722 180 - Complied
Grade 8 60,703 54,000 60,722 180 - Complied
Grade 9 54,441 64,800 64,808 180 - Complied
Grade 10 54,441 64,800 64,808 180 - Complied
Grade 11 54,441 64,800 64,808 180 - Complied
Grade 12 54,441 64,800 64,808 180 - Complied

Districts, including basic aid districts, must maintain their instructional minutes at either the 1982-83 actual minutes or
the 1986-87 requirements, whichever is greater, as required by Education Code Section 46201. This schedule is
required of all districts, including basic aid districts.

The district has received incentive funding for increasing instructional time as provided by the Incentives for Longer

Instructional Day. This schedule presents information on the amount of instruction time offered by the district and
whether the district complied with the provisions of Education Code Sections 46200 through 46206.
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POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

TABLE D-3
SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL TRENDS AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
{Budget)

General Fund 2009 2008 2007 2006
Revenues and other financial sources 258,930,750 % 267,051,747 % 267,729,791 233,396,655
Expenditures, other uses and

transfers out 261,348,122 272,506,958 260,652,718 231,165,988
Change in fund balance (deficit) (2,417,372) (5,455,211) 7,077,073 2,230,667
Ending fund balance 17,837,319 & 20254691 $ 25,709,902 18,632,829
Available reserves 17222016 $ 19,639,334 $ 25,076,570 18,250,509
Available reserves as a percentage

of total outgo 6.6% 7.2% 9.6% 7.9%
Total long-term debt 778,819,153 % 792,491936 % 649,394 614 548,940,067
Average daily attendance at P-2 32,405 32,344 31,892 31,736

This schedule discloses the district's financial trends by displaying past years' data along with current year budget information.
These financial trend disclosures are used to evaluate the district's ability to continue as a geing concern for a reasonable period of

time.

The district's general fund balance has increased by $3,852,530 over the past three years. The fiscal year 2008-09
budget projects a decrease of $2,417,372. For a district this size, the state recommends available reserves of at least
3% of total general fund expenditures, other uses and transfers out.

Long-term debt has increased by $412,501,482 over the past three years.

Average daily attendance (ADA) has increased by 369 over the past three years.
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POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL AND BUDGET
REPORT WITH AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

June 30, 2008, annual financial and budget
report fund balances

Adjustments and reciassifications:
Increasing (decreasing) the fund balance:
Accounts receivable overstatement

Accounts payable overstatement

Net adjustments and reclassifications

June 30, 2008, audited financial statement fund balances

TABLE D-4
Special Reserve Capital Projects
Fund for Fund for
Capital Blended
Qutlay Component Units
9,776,103 § 137,844,361
(1,639,897) -
- 1,639,897
(1,639,897) 1,639,897
8,136,206 $ 139,484,258

This schedule provides the information necessary to reconcile the fund balances of all funds and the total liabilities balance
of the general long-term debt account group as reporied on the SACS report to the audited financia! statements. Funds

that required no adjustment are not presented.
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POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT TABLE D-5
SCHEDULE OF CHARTER SCHOOLS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

No charter schools are chartered by Poway Unified School District.

Included In
Charter Schools Audit?
None N/A

€1



POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT TABLE D-6
SCHEDULE OF EXCESS SICK LEAVE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

The following disclosure is made for excess sick leave as that term is defined in subdivision (c) of Education
Code Section 22170.5:

Is Excess Was Excess Is Excess
Sick Leave Sick Leave Sick Leave
Titles of Authorized By Found To Be Authorized in
Employees Exhibiting Employee's Accrued For Cantract Authorizing Teachers'
Excess Sick Leave Contract? Employee? Excess Sick Leave Contract?
None N/A N/A N/A N/A
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POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

TABLE D-7
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS Page 1 of 2
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
Federal Grantor/ Federal Pass-Through
Pass-Threugh Grantor/ CFDA Entity Identifying Federal
Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
Direct Program:

Disaster Grant 97.036 - $ 136,138
Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security ~ 136,138
U. S, DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
Direct Program:

Wildlife Restoration * 15.611 - 387
Total U. S. Department of the Interior 387
U. 8. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Direct Programs:

Alcohol Abuse Reduction 84.184A - 556,422

Character Education B4.215S - 7,753

Elementary and Secondary Counseling B4 215E - 397,300

Foreign Language Assistance 84.293B - 107,579

Impact Aid - P.L. 81.874 84.041 - 147,543
Total Direct Programs 1,216,597
Passed Through State Department of Education:

Adult Education 84.002 03925 109,952

Title | 84.010 03064 890,741

Special Education * 84.027 03379 4,722,008

Vocational Education 84.048 03922 38,257

Transitional Partnership 84.158 03410 186,642

Preschool * 84.173 03430 154,491

Early Intervention 84.181 03385 117,525

Title IV Drug Free 84.186 03453 98,052

Title | Even Start 84.213 03105 172,500

Title V Innovative Education 84,298 04110 17,989

Title Il Technology 84.318 04045 3,680

Title 1} 84.365 04203 245,050

Title 1l Teacher Quality 84.367 04305 625,048

Advanced Placement 84.369 04363 4,176
Total Passed Through State Department of Education 7,386,111
Total U. S. Deparment of Education 8,602,708
U. S, DEPARTMENT QF AGRICULTURE
Passed Through State Department of Education:

National School Lunch Program * 10.555 03396 1,710,594

Totat U. S. Department of Agriculture
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

* Indicates clustered program under OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement

The accompanying notes are an inlegral part of this schedule.
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POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Basis of P i

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of Poway
Unified School District and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information in this
schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit - Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this
schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the general purpose financial
statements.
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Other Independent Auditor's Reports
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WILKINSON HADLEY KING & CO. LLP
CPA's and Advisors
250 E Douglas Ave.
El Cajon, CA 92020
Ph (619) 447-6700 Fax (619) 447-6707

meﬁw l ith G \uditing Standard

Board of Trustees
Poway Unified Schoaol District
Poway, California 92064-2098

Members of the Board of Trustees:

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Poway Unified School District as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2008, which collectively comprise the Poway Unified School District's basic financial
statements and have issued our report thereon dated December 5, 2008. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States.

I | Gontrol Over Financial Reporti

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Poway Unified School District's intsrnal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Poway Unified School District's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Poway Unified School District's internal control over financial reporting.
A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detact misstatements
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that
adversely affects the Poway Unified School District's ability to initiate, authorize, record, process or report
financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there is more
than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the Poway Unified School District's financial statements that is
more than inconsequential will not be prevented by the Poway Unified School District's internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more
than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or
detected by the Poway Unified School District's internal control.

Our consideration of internal contro!l over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that we considered to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obfaining reasonable assurance about whether Poway Unified School District's financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
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This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the entity, the Board
of Trustees, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Wb Loty by, #6112

El Cajon, California
December 5, 2008
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WILKINSON HADLEY KING & CO. LLP
CPA's and Advisors
250 E Douglas Ave.
El Cajon, CA 92020
Ph (619) 447-6700 Fax (619) 447-6707

Board of Trustees
Poway Unified School District
Poway, California 92064-2098

Members of the Board of Trustees:

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Poway Unified School District with the types of compliance requirements
described in the U. 8. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance
Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2008.
Poway Unified School District's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's resuits
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements
of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the
responsibility of Poway Unified School District's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
Poway Unified School District's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Poway Unified
School District's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Poway Unified School District's compliance with
those requirements.

In our opinion, Poway Unified School District complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred
to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2008.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of Poway Unified School District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable
to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered Poway Unified School District's
internat control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internat control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Poway Unified School
District's internal control over compliance.
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A control deficiency in an entity's internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that
adversely affects the entity's ability to administer a federal program such that there is more than a remote
likelihood that noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is more than
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the entity's internal contral.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more
than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented or detected by the entity's internal control.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we considered to be material weaknesses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the entity, the Board

of Trustees, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

WM% Cing %o LLP

Ei Cajon, California
December 5, 2008
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WILKINSON HADLEY KING & CO.LLP
CPA's and Advisors
250 E Douglas Ave,
El Cajon, CA 92020
Ph (619) 447-6700 Fax (619) 447-6707

uditor's Report on State Comoli

Board of Trustees
Poway Unified School District
Poway, California 92064-2098

Members of the Board of Trustees:

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Poway Unified School District ("District") as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2008, and have issued our report thereon dated December 5, 2008. Qur audit was
made in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; and the State's audit guide, Standards and Procedures for Audits ol
California K-12 Local Education Agencies 2007-08, published by the Education Audit Appeals Panel.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

The District's management is responsibie for the District's compliance with laws and regulations. In connection
with the audit referred to above, we selected and tested transactions and records to determine the District's
compliance with the state laws and regulations applicable to the following items:

Procedures In Procedures

Description Audit Guide Performed
Attendance Accounting:

Attendance Reporting 8 Yes

Kindergarten Continuance 3 Yes

Independent Study 23 Yes

Continuation Education 10 Yes

Adult Education 9 Yes

Regional Occupational Centers and Programs 6 Not Applicable
Instructional Time:

School Districts 6 Yes

County Offices of Education 3 Not Applicable
Community Day Schools ] Not Applicable
Morgan-Hart Class Size Reduction Program 7 Yes
Instructional Materials:

General Requirerments i2 Yes

Grades K-8 Only 1 Yes

Grades 9-12 Only 1 Yes
Ratios of Administrative Employees to Teachers 1 Yes
Classroom Teacher Salaries 1 Yes
Early Retirement Incentive Program 4 Not Applicable
GANN Limit Calculation 1 Yes
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School Construction Funds:
School District Bonds
State School Facilities Funds
Excess Sick Leave
Notice of Right to Elect California State Teachers
Retirement System (CalSTRS) Membership
Proposition 20 Lottery Funds (Cardenas Textbook Act of 2000)
State Lottery Funds (California State Lottery Act of 1984)
California School Age Families Education (Cal-SAFE) Program
School Accountability Report Card
Mathematics and Reading Professional Development
Class Size Reduction Program (Including In Charter Schools):
General Requirements
Option One Classes
Option Two Classes
Only One School Serving Grades K-3
After School Education and Safety Program:
General Requirements
After School
Before School
Contemporaneous Records of Attendance, For Charter Schoals
Mode of Instruction, for Charter Schools

Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study, For Charter Schools

Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based
Instruction, For Charter Schools

Annual Instructional Minutes - Classroom Based, For Charter Schools

bW~ PWONN= [\VIE R A ]

= = php
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3
3

Yes
Yes
Yes

Yes
Yes
Yes
Not Applicable
Yes
Yes

Yes

Yes
Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Yes

Yes

Yes
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

The term "Not Applicable" is used above to mean either that the District did not offer the program during the

current fiscal year or that the program applies only to a different type of local education agency.

Based on our audit, we found that, for the items tested, Poway Unified School District complied with the state
laws and regulations referred to above, except as described in the Findings and Recommendations section of
this report. Further, based on our examination, for items not tested, nothing came to our attention to indicate

that the Poway Unified School District had not complied with the state laws and regulations.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees, management, State
Controller's Office, Department of Finance, Department of Education, and pass-through entities, and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

wm%@ua,m

El Cajon, California
December 5, 2008
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POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

A. Summary of Auditor's Results

1.

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:
One or more material weaknesses identified? Yes
One or more significant deficiencies identified that are
are not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes
Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? Yes
Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
One or more material weaknesses identified? Yes
One or more significant deficiencies identified that
are not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes
Type of auditer's report issued on compliance
for major programs: Ungualified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with section 510(a)
of Circular A-1337 Yes
Identification of major programs;
CFDA Number(s) N f |
84.184A Alcohol Abuse Reduction Grant
84.215E Elementary and Secondary Counseling Grant
10.555 National School Lunch Program
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
type A and type B programs: $313.495
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X Yes
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POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

3.

State Awards
Internal control over state programs:

One or more material weaknesses identified? Yes X No

One or more significant deficiencies identified that are
are not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes X None Reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance

for state programs: Ungualified

. Financial Statement Findings

None

. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None

. State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding 2008-1 (10000)
Attendance

Sriteria or Specific Requi |

Select a representative sample of classes and trace the monthly totals from the monthly report to the
data origination documentation. Verity the mathematical accuracy of the attendance registers,
scantron summaries, or other data arrays.

Conditi
In our review of attendance at Mt. Carmel High School we noted that the school required teachers to
keep attendance in their classroom and to verify the absances that are in the attendance
system. The reports that teachers were using only showed absences and were not a complete
record of attendance for the day. In addition, the teachers were not verifying the accuracy of what
was in the attendance system; consequently, they were signing their handwritten attendance books
which were not compared to the attendance system. In review of the handwritten attendance
books, dates were not clear and as such, we were unable to trace absences as noted in the
attendance books to the data which was recorded in the attendance system. In addition, one of the
five teachers selected was unable to provide any attendance records. The school did not have a
system in place to ensure that all attendance was being accounted for. We selected thirty absences
as documented by parent notes or phone calls to the attendance staff and noted all thirty had been
recorded properly in the attendance system.

In our review of attendance at Mesa Verde Middle School we noted that the school did not maintain
signed teacher rosters verifying accuracy of data entered into the attendance system. Teachers
entered the absences into the system; however, there is no support that the amounts entered were
verified.

Questioned Costs

None

72



POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Becommendation

We recommend the schools impiement procedures to require printing of teacher rosters that are
verified and signed weekly by all teachers. All records should be tracked and maintained by the
attendance staff for audit purposes.

Following the auditor's recommendation, the district held a workshop for all the site attendance
clerks, supervisors and district office attendance clerks where the importance of daily attendance
tosters, teacher signatures and other pertinent attendance regulations were addressed in detail.
This workshop was conducted by our auditor, P. Robert Wilkinson. The Deputy Superintendent
followed up with a detailed letter to the Principals stressing the importance of rosters and teacher
signatures.

Finding 2008-2 (71000)
Teacher Credantials

Criteri Specific Requi l
If any teacher, as selected for attendance testing, was assigned to teach a class in which more
than 20% of the pupils were English learners, 'determine whether the teacher was authorized to
instruct limited-English-proficient pupils pursuant to the provisions of Education Code Section
44253.3, 44253.4, or 44253.10.

condit
In our review of teacher credentials we noted one teacher out of twenty nine selected who did not
have an authorization to instruct limited-English-proficient pupils was assigned to teach a class that
had 33% limited-English-proficient pupils.

Questioned Costs

None

Recommendation

We recommend the district implement procedures requiring all teachers assigned to teach greater
than 20% limited-English-proficient pupils to be required to have the appropriate certification to do so.

We recommend that an individual at each school site review assignments and credentials to ensure
that all assignments are appropriate for each teachers credentials.

In following up with this finding, we discovered that the teacher noted had indeed completed the
course work to apply for the CLAD; however, she did not fill out the application form to the state.
She is ordering transcripts and will be completing the process this summer.

Finding 2008-3 (40000)
Morgan Hart Class Size Reduction

Criteria or Specific Raqui
Review the district's report of enroliment for the Morgan-Hart Class Size Reduction Program and
trace the data, after determining that it is mathematically correct, to supporting summaries.
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POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Condition
In our review of the districts report of enrolliment for the Morgan Hart Class Size Reduction program
we noted a clerical error which resulted in overstating 1 FYEE at Poway High School.

Questioned Costs
$213

Becommendation

We recommend the district amend their report of enroliment for the Morgan Hart Class Size Reduction
program. In addition, we recommend the district implement policies for careful review of all
applications to ensure accurate reporting.

We have amended our enrollment report for the Morgan Hart Class Size Reduction Program. We will
ensure that an audit of the calculations is done before the reports are submitted to the California
Department of Education.

Finding 2008-4 (40000)
After Schoo! Education and Safety Program - After School Component

tia or n

A. Determine whether the district established a policy regarding reasonable early daily release of
pupils from the program.

B. For schools selected determine whether elementary school pupils participated in the full day of
the after school program on every day during which pupils participated, and determine whether
pupils in middle schools attended the after school program a minimum of nine hours a week and
three days a week, except as consistent with the established early release policy.

Condition
A. The district did not establish a policy regarding reasonable early daily release of pupils from the
program.

B. Inreview of attendance sheets for Valley Elementary School, pupils participating in the program
were released early without documentation of the reason for early release. In review of
attendance sheets at Bernardo Heights Middle Schoo! and Black Mountain Middle School time
infout was not included on the attendance sheets. We were not able to determine if students
attended a minimum of nine hours per week and three days per week.

Questioned Costs
Days students served is questioned at the following school sites for the third quarter tested:
Bernardo Heights Middle School - 8,543 days
Black Mountain Middle School - 9,376 days
Valley Elementary School - 4,875 days
Total questionsed for third quarter tested - 23,794 days

Recommendation

We recommend the District establish a policy regarding reasonable early release of pupils from the
after school program. In addition, we recommend the District document the time in and out of the
program in order to determine if elementary students participated the full day of the program and to
determine if middle school students participated a minimumn of nine hours and three days a week. The
District should also document the reason for early release in order to ensure that it is within their
established policy regarding reasonable early daily release.
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
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Early release and late arrival was added to the registration application at the end of the 2007-08
school year. The Director of the ASES program is also drafting a policy and procedures for ASES
and this will be addressed. We also included early release/late arrival coding to be used when
student arrives late or leaves early.

Finding 2008-5 (40000)
After School Education and Safety Program - Before School Component

ri r

A. Determine whether the District established a policy regarding reasonable late daily arrival of
pupils to the program.

B. Determine whether the District operated the before school program for not less than one and
one half hours per regular school day.

C. Determine whether attendance by pupils for less than one-half of the daily program hours was
included in the report of students served. Determine whether elementary school pupils
participated in the full day of the before school program on every day which pupils participated,
and determine whether pupils in middle schools attended the before school program a minimum
of six hours a week and three days a week, except as consistent with the late arrival policy.

Condition
A. The District did not establish a policy regarding reasonable late daily arrival of pupils to the
program.

B. In our review of the schools schedule at Valley Elementary School we noted that the schedule
indicated that the program operated from 6:30 am to 8:00 am which meets the requirement;
however, in our review of attendance records the program actually operated from 6:30 am to
7:45 am which does not meet the requirement.

C. Inreview of attendance sheets for Valley Elementary School, Bernardo Heights Middle School
and Black Mountain Middle School there was no documentation of arrival time for the students.
We could not determine if students attended for more than one-half of the daily program hours,
if elementary students participated in the full day of the before school program, or if middle
schoo! students participated a minimum of six hours a week and three days a week.

Questioned Costs
Days students served is questioned at the following school sites for the third quarter tested:
Bernardo Heights Middle School - 10,769 days
Black Mountain Middle School - 7,222 days
Valley Elementary School - 2,372 days
Total questioned for third quarter tested - 20,363 days

Recommendation

We recommend the District establish a policy regarding reasonable late arrivai of pupiis to the before
school program. The district should establish policies to ensure all before school programs are
operating a minimum of one and one-half hours and that documentation on brochures and attendance
records are in agreement with each other, In addition, the district should document the time arrived
and released from the program in order to determine if students attended for at least one-half of the
program time, and if elementary students participated in the full program and middie school students
participated a minimum of six hours per week and three days per week, except as consistent with
the late arrival policy.
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

LEA's Response
Early release and late arrival was added to the registration application at the end of the 2007-08

school year. The Director of the ASES program is also drafting a policy and procedures for ASES

and this will be addressed. We also included early release/late arrival coding to be used when
a student arrives late or leaves early.
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POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Finding/Recommendation

Management's Explanation
Current Status i Not Implemented

Finding 2007-1
Compensated Absences

27 employees exceeded the maximum carryover of
vacation allowed by district policy without receiving
written approval.

We recommended the district implement procedures to
reduce vacation carryover for employees who exceeded
the maximum as allowed by district policy. In addition, we
recommended the district obtain written approval for
those employees who exceeded the maximum allowed.

Finding 2007-2
I-9 Employment Eligibibility Forms

The district was unable to locate |-9 forms for several
employees who were currently employed by the district.

We recommended the district implement procedures to
obtain and retain 1-9 forms in compliance with the
Department of Homeland Securities retention policies.

Finding 2007-3
Student Body Funds - Westview High School

Some cash fransmittal forms did not reflect preparer
and/or verification signatures for cash collected.

We recommended the district implement procedures
requiring appropriate signatures con the cash transmittal
form.

Finding 2007-4
Teacher Credentials

One out of twenty nine selected teachers did not have
authorization in  his credential to instruct
limited-English-proficient pupils and was assigned to
teach a class that had 35% limited-English-proficient

pupils.

We recommended that the district implement procedures
requiring all teachers assigned to teach greater than 20%
limited-English-proficient pupils to have the appropriate
certification.
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POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Management's Explanation

Finding/Recommendation Current Status If Not Implemented
Finding 2007-5

Attendance Reporting

10 out of 60 absences selected from phone logs at

Westview High School were not recorded in the

attendance system as absences.

We recommended the district amend the P2 and Annual

reports of attendance. In addition, we recommended the

district designate a centralized attendance clerk at the

school site to review teacher phone logs and recording

of absences. implemented
Finding 2007-6

Morgan Hant Class Size Reduction

Inconsistencies in the report used to prepare the Morgan

Hart Report of Enrollment resulted in an overstatement of

5 FYEE.

We recommended the district amend the Morgan Hart

Report of Enroliment. In addition, we recommended the

district implement procedures to review reports prior to

use in preparing data for submission to CDE. Implemented
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APPENDIX B
THE ECONOMY OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT

The School District’ sterritoryincludesthe City of Poway (the® City” ). Thefollowing economicdata
for the City is presented for information purposesonly. The Series C Bonds are not a debt or obligation of
the City, and property taxes for the payments of the Series C Bonds will only be levied on property within
the School District.

Population
Poway’s population as of January 1, 2008, was approximately 51,103 persons, representing
approximately 1.6% of the population of the County. The population of the City and the County from 1999

to 2008 is shown in the following table. Since 1999, Poway’s population has increased by approximately
8.6%, representing an annual compound growth rate of approximately 0.92%.

POPULATION OF POWAY AND SAN DIEGO COUNTY

1999-2008
City of Poway San Diego County
Annua Annua

Y ear Population % Change Population % Change
1999 47,050 —-% 2,750,992 —-%
2000 48,055 2.1% 2,805,935 2.0%
2001 48,981 1.9% 2,864,462 2.1%
2002 49,709 1.5% 2,921,390 2.0%
2003 50,034 0.7% 2,972,932 1.8%
2004 50,458 0.8% 3,011,244 1.3%
2005 50,477 0.0% 3,039,277 0.9%
2006 50,542 0.1% 3,066,320 0.9%
2007 50,862 0.6% 3,100,132 1.1%
2008 51,103 0.5% 3,146,274 1.5%

Note: California Department of Finance for January 1.



Employment

The following table summarizes wage and salary employment in the County from 2003 to 2007.
Services, retail trade, and manufacturing are the largest employment sectors in the County.

ANNUAL AVERAGE WAGE AND SALARY EMPLOYMENT

COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO
2003-2007

Aver age Annual Employment®

Industry 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Agriculture 11,200 11,100 10,700 10,900 10,800
Mining 300 400 400 500 400
Construction 80,200 87,700 90,800 92,700 87,200
Manufacturing 105,300 104,300 104,500 103,900 102,100
Transportation & Public Utilities 27,300 28,500 28,300 28,700 28,800
Wholesale Trade 41,600 41,900 43,600 45,100 45,500
Retail Trade 140,800 144,900 147,400 148,300 148,700
Finance, Insurance & Real Estate 72,100 74,900 76,200 76,900 74,000
Services 1,054,300 1,067,900 1,086,400 1,104,500 1,118,500
Government 217.300 214,300 215,100 217,900 222100
Total, All Industries 1,750,400 1,775,800 1,803,400 1,829,400 1,838,100

@ Employment is reported by place of work; it does not include persons involved in labor-management disputes. Figures are
rounded to the nearest hundred. Columns may not add to totals due to rounding.

Source: California Employment Development Department, based on March 2007 benchmark.

Thefollowing table summarizes civilian labor force, employment, and unemployment in the County
from 1999 to 2007. The unemployment rate in the County in 2007 was 4.6%; in contrast, the average
unemployment rate in Californiain 2007 was 5.4%.

CIVILIAN LABOR FORCE, EMPLOYMENT AND UNEMPLOYMENT
SAN DIEGO COUNTY
ANNUAL AVERAGES, 1999 THROUGH AUGUST 2008

Civilian Employed Unemployed
Labor Labor Labor Unemployment
Y ear Force Force® Force®? Rate®
1999 1,351,900 1,309,800 53,800 3.1%
2000 1,375,700 1,321,900 58,900 3.9%
2001 1,409,200 1,350,300 45,700 4.2%
2002 1,448,500 1,374,000 74,500 5.1%
2003 1,468,000 1,391,600 76,400 5.2%
2004 1,489,200 1,418,500 70,700 4.7%
2005 1,505,200 1,440,500 64,700 4.3%
2006 1,510,700 1,446,700 64,000 4.2%
2007 1,542,500 1,471,600 70,900 4.6%
2008* 1,580,100 1,472,400 107,700 6.8%

@ Includes persons involved in labor-management trade disputes.

@ Includes all persons without jobs who are actively seeking work.

®  The unemployment rate is computed from unrounded data; therefore, it may differ from rates computed from rounded
figuresinthistable.
Through October, 2008.

Source: California Employment Development Department, based on March 2007 benchmark.
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Major Employers
The largest employersin the City are as follows:

LARGEST EMPLOYERS
CITY OF POWAY

Firm Product/Service Employment
Poway Unified School District Education 3,493
GEICO Direct Insurance 1,800
Delta (Cohu) Supplier of test handling equipment 1,200
Select Build Construction services 1,200
First American Credco Credit reporting 750
Pomerado Hospital Medical facility 696
SY SCO Food Services of San Diego Food service 530
Hunter-Douglas Custom window treatment manufacturer 350
Walmart Retail store 350
City of Poway Government 321
Neal Electric Corporation Electrical contractor 305
Mitchell Repair Information Company  Electronic solutions/print publications 300
Pentair Electronic Packaging Electronic enclosure solutions 300
Benchmark Landscape Inc. Commercial landscape 286
Costco Warehouse store 265

Source: SANDAG; Weatherbase.com; DQNews; City of Poway, August, 2007.
Construction Activity

The level of construction activity in the City and the County as measured by total building permit
valuations and new residential dwelling unitsis shown in the following tables.

BUILDING PERMIT ACTIVITY
CITY OF POWAY
2003-2007
(in thousands)

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Valuation ($000):
Residentia $50,134 $50,946 $30,156 $25,551 $15,011
Non-residential 23,887 56,938 18,989 49,200 23,356
TOTAL $74,021 $107,884 $49,145 $74,551 $38,367

Residential Units:
Single family 82 100 46 26 24
Multiple family 84 _ 0 0 56 0
TOTAL 166 100 46 82 24

Source: Construction Industry Research Board.



BUILDING PERMIT ACTIVITY
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO
2003-2007
(in thousands)

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Valuation ($000):
Residential $3,683,986 $3,875,359 $3,562,702 $2,452,240 $1,852,379
Non-residential 1,169,577 1,288,135 1,381,792 1,614,134 1,416,824
TOTAL $4,853,563 $5,163,494 $4,944,494 $4,066,374 $3,269,203
Dwelling Units:
Single family 9,382 9,555 7,886 4,670 3,503
Multiple family 8,942 7,751 7,372 6,011 3,942
TOTAL 18,324 17,306 15,258 10,681 7,445

Source: Construction Industry Research Board.
Income

Total persona income in the County increased by approximately 58.1% between 1999 and 2007,
representing an average annual compound growth rate of approximately 5.22%. Per capitapersonal income
in the County grew by approximately 34.9% during this time, representing an average annual compound
growth of approximately 4.47%.

The following tables summarize personal income growth for the County from 1999 to 2007.

SAN DIEGO COUNTY
PERSONAL INCOME
1999-2007
(in thousands)

San Diego Annual
Y ear County Percent Change
1999 84,346,910 - %
2000 92,654,006 9.8%
2001 97,009,000 4.7%
2002 100,656,000 3.8%
2003 104,050,000 3.4%
2004 111,435,000 7.1%
2005 118,792,540 6.6%
2006 126,193,721 6.2%
2007 133,369,000 5.7%

Source: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis.



PER CAPITA PERSONAL INCOME

1999-2007
Y ear San Diego County California United States
1999 30,236 29,828 27,939
2000 32,803 32,463 29,845
2001 33,886 32,882 30,574
2002 34,719 32,803 30,810
2003 35,620 33,400 31,484
2004 37,965 35,440 33,050
2005 40,383 37,311 34,757
2006 42,801 39,871 36,714
2007 44,832 41,580 38,632

Source: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis.
Retail Sales

Taxable salesin the City and the County are shown below. Taxable salesin the City increased by
approximately 33.3% between 2003 and 2006 (2007 dataonly avail ablethrough second quarter). Thelargest
taxable sales sectors in the City are auto dealers and supplies, general merchandise, other retail stores,
building materials and eating and drinking places.

TAXABLE SALES
CITY OF POWAY
2003-2007
Taxable Sales ($000)
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Apparel Stores $ 3621 % s s s #
General Merchandise 116,512 149,787 92,192 222,740 106,370
Food Stores 26,465 26,692 13,057 29,064 14,152
Eating & Drinking Places 46,763 49,868 25,823 55,723 28,327
Home Furnishings & Appliances 2,501 6,612 3,944 10,027 4,604
Building Materials & Farm Implements 40,736 67,577 57,027 120,196 45,498
Auto Dealers & Auto Supplies 295,046 281,712 134,304 270,195 133,135
Service Stations 42,447 46,982 23,608 56,164 29,018
Other Retail Stores 117,686 236,040 _105,931* 199,281* 93,666"
Tota Retail Stores $691,777  $865270  $455,886 $963,390 $454,770
All Other Outlets 197,801 210,352 127,833 222,158 109,283

Total All Outlets $889,578 $1,075,622  $583,410 $1,185548  $564,053

" Totals as of second quarter of 2007.
# Sales omitted because their publication would result in the disclosure of confidential information.

Source: California Board of Equalization.
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TAXABLE SALES

COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO

2003-2007
Taxable Sales ($000)
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Apparel $1,466,233  $1,644,428 $ 798,962 $ 1,909,011 $ 925,449
General Merchandise 4,832,286 5,204,962 2,447,449 5,594,621 2,594,797
Specialty Stores 4,144,293 4,541,225 2,196,435 4,926,656 @
Food Stores 1,685,203 1,736,610 893,430 1,928,274 943,597
Eating & Drinking Places 3,757,136 4,407,726 2,087,500 4,521,392 2,348,997
Home Furnishings & Appliances 1,458,403 1,549,482 743,119 1,511,389 703,398
Building Materials & Farm 2,757,706 3,341,105 1,608,869 3,497,965 1,459,921 @
Implements
Auto Dedlers & Auto Supplies 6,201,830 6,513,646 3,311,869 3,174,427 3,234,545
Service Stations 2,361,860 2,804,631 1,492,921 3,589,505 1,831,868
Other Retail Stores 855,601 961,645 497,602 1,076,631 2,584,436
Total Retail Stores  $29,520,551  $32,345,460 $16,078,156 $34,619,067 $10,627,008
Business and Personal Services 2,040,077 2,146,781 1,072,902 2,302,057 1,096,368
All Other Outlets 9,303,350 9,978,097 5,222,043 10,914,390 5,560,224
Total All Outlets  $40,863,978 $44,470,338 $22,373,101 $47,835,514 $23,283,600

Totas as of second quarter of 2007.

) Asof first quarter of 2007 “ Specialty Stores’ and “Farm Implements’ dataisincluded in “Other Retail Stores.”

Source: California Board of Equalization.
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APPENDIX C
PROPOSED FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL

Upon delivery of the Bonds, Bowie, Arneson, Wiles & Giannone, Newport Beach, California, Bond
Counsel tothe Poway Unified School District, proposesto render their final approving opinionwith respect
to the Bonds in substantially the following form:

Board of Education of the
Poway Unified School District
13626 Twin Peaks Road
Poway, CA 92064-3034

Re: $3,698,553.90 General Obligation Bonds of School Facilities Improvement District
No. 2002-1 of the Poway Unified School District, 2002 Election, Series C

Final Opinion
L adies and Gentlemen:

We have acted as Bond Counsel for the Poway Unified School District (“ District”) acting for School
Facilities Improvement District No. 2002-1 of the Poway Unified School District (“Improvement District”),
in connection with the proceedings for the issuance and sale by the District of $3,698,553.90 principal
amount of General Obligation Bonds of School Facilities Improvement District No. 2002-1 of the Poway
Unified School District, 2002 Election, Series C (“Bonds’). The Bonds are being issued pursuant to the
Resol ution of the Board of Education of the District, adopted on October 13, 2008 (Resol ution No. 16-2009)
(“District Resolution™), pursuant to authorization provided in Resolution No. 08-228 of the County of San
Diego (“ County”) adopted on October 28, 2008 (“ County Resolution,” and with the District Resolution, the
“Bond Resolution™), which resol utions were adopted pursuant to California Education Code Section 15350
et seg. and in accordance with the statutory authority set forth in Education Code Sections 15266(b), and
Titlel, Division 1, Part 10, Chapters 1 and 2 of the California Education Code, commencing with Sections
15100 and 15300, respectively, and provisions of the California Constitution.

AsBond Counsel, we have examined copies certified to us as being true and compl ete copies of the
proceedings in connection with the issuance of the Bonds. In this connection, we have also examined such
certificates of public officials and officers of the District, including certificates asto factual matters, aswe
have deemed necessary to render this opinion.

Attention is called to the fact the we have not been requested to examine, and have not examined,
any documents or information relating to the District or the County other than the record of proceedings
hereinabovereferred to, and no opinionisexpressed asto any financial or other information, or the adequacy
thereof, which has been or may be supplied to any purchaser of the Bonds.

We have not been engaged or undertaken to review the accuracy, completeness or sufficiency of the
Official Statement or other offering materia relating to the Bonds (except to the extent, if any, stated in the
Official Statement) and we express no opinion relating thereto (excepting only matters set forth as our
opinion in the Official Statement).

The opinions expressed herein are based on an analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings and
court decisions. The opinionsmay be affected by actions or events occurring after the date hereof. We have
not undertaken to determine, or to inform any person, whether such actionsor events occur. Asto questions
of fact material to our opinions, we have relied upon the documents and matters referred to above, and we
have not undertaken by independent investigation to verify the authenticity of signatures or the accuracy of
the factual matters represented, warranted or certified therein. Furthermore, we have assumed compliance
with al covenants contained in the Bond Resolution and in certain other documents, including, without
limitation, covenants compliance with which is necessary to assure that future actions or events will not
cause the interest on the Bonds to be included in gross income for federal income tax purposes retroactive
to the date of original issuance of the Bonds.
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The Bond Resolution and other related documents refer to certain requirements and procedures
which may be changed and certain actions which may be taken, in circumstances and subject to terms and
conditions set forth in such documents, upon the advice or with an approving opinion of nationally
recognized bond counsel. No opinionisexpressed herein asto any Bond or the interest thereon if any such
change is made or action is taken upon the advice or approval of counsel other than ourselves.

Based on the foregoing, we are of the following opinions:

1
2.

The Bonds are valid and binding general obligations of the District.

All taxable property in the territory of the Improvement District is subject to ad valorem
taxation without limitation as to rate or amount (except as to certain classes of personal
property which istaxable at limited rates) to pay the Bonds. The County of San Diegois
required by law toincludeinitsannual tax levy the principal and interest coming due onthe
Bonds to the extent necessary funds are not provided from other sources.

Interest onthe Bondsis excluded from grossincome for federal income tax purposes under
Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and is exempt from State
of California personal incometaxes. Interest onthe Bondsisnot anitem of tax preference
for purposes of the federal alternative minimum taxes imposed on individuals and
corporations; although, it should be noted that, with respect to corporations, such interest
will beincluded as an adjustment in the cal cul ation of alternative minimum taxableincome
which may affect the alternative minimum tax liability of such corporations. We express
no opinion regarding other tax consequences arising with respect to the Bonds.

It is understood that the rights of the holders of the Bonds and the enforceability thereof may be
subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other similar laws affecting creditors
rightsheretofore or hereafter enacted to the extent constitutionally applicable and that their enforcement may
also be subject to exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases.

Very truly yours,



APPENDIX D

FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT

ThisCONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT (the“Disclosure Agreement”) is executed and
enteredinto asof January 1, 2009, by and between the Poway Unified School District (the* School District”),
acting on behalf of School Facilities Improvement District No. 2002-1 of the Poway Unified School District
(the*Improvement District”), and DolinkaGroup, LLC, aCalifornialimitedliability company, initscapacity
as Dissemination Agent (the “ Dissemination Agent”), under the Disclosure Agreement in connection with
the issuance of $3,698,553.90 aggregate principal amount General Obligation Bonds of School Facilities
Improvement District No. 2002-1 of the Poway Unified School District, 2002 Election, Series C (the” Series
C Bonds");

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Resol ution (Resolution No. 16-2009) of the Board of Education of the
School District adopted on October 13, 2008 (the “ School District Resolution”), and the Resolution of the
Board of Supervisors of San Diego County adopted on October 28, 2008 (the “County Resolution,” and
together with the School District Resol ution, the* Resol utions”), the School District has, through the County,
issued the Series C Bonds; and

WHEREAS, the Series C Bonds are payable from and secured by ad valorem taxes levied against
property within the Improvement District;

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual premises and covenants herein
contained, the parties hereto agree as follows:

Section 1. Purpose of the Disclosure Agreement. The Disclosure Agreement is being executed and
delivered by the School District for the benefit of the owners and beneficial owners of the Series C Bonds
and in order to assist the Participating Underwriter in complying with S.E.C. Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5).

Section 2. Definitions. Inaddition to the definitions set forth in the Resol utionswhich apply to any
capitalized term used in this Disclosure Agreement unless otherwise defined in this Section, the following
capitalized terms shall have the following meanings:

“Annual Report” shall mean any Annual Report provided by the School District pursuant to, and
described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Agreement.

“Annual Report Date” shall mean seven monthsnext following the end of the School District’ sfiscal
year, which fiscal year end, as of the date of this Disclosure Agreement, is June 30.

“Disclosure Representative” shall mean the Chief Financial Officer of the School District, or hisor
her designee, or such other officer or employee as the School District shall designate in writing to the
Dissemination Agent and the County of San Diego, acting asthe Paying Agent (or successor Paying Agent)
(the “Paying Agent”) from time to time.
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“Dissemination Agent” shall mean Dolinka Group, LLC, aCalifornialimited liability company or
any successor Dissemination Agent designated in writing by the School District and which hasfiled with the
School District awritten acceptance of such designation.

“Improvement District” shall mean the School Facilities Improvement District No. 2002-1 of the
School District.

“Listed Events’ shall mean any of the events listed in Section 5(a) of this Disclosure Agreement.
“National Repository” shall mean any Nationally Recognized Municipal Securities Information

Repository for purposes of the Rule. Information on the National Repositories as of a particular date is
available on the Internet at www.sec.gov/info/municipal/nrmsir.htm.

“Participating Underwriter” shall mean Stone & Youngberg LLC.
“Repository” shall mean each National Repository and each State Repository.

“Rule’ shall mean Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5) adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time.

“School District” shall mean Poway Unified School District, Poway, California.
“State Repository” shall mean any public or private repository or entity designated by the State of
California as a state repository for the purpose of the Rule and recognized as such by the Securities and

Exchange Commission. As of the date of this Disclosure Agreement, there is no State Repository.

Section 3. Provision of Annual Reports.

) The School District shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent to, not later than
the Annual Report Date, commencing February 1, 2010, provide to each Repository, the Paying
Agent and to the Participating Underwriter an Annual Report which is consistent with the
requirements of Section 4 of the Disclosure Agreement. Not later than fifteen (15) Business Days
prior to said date, the School District shall provide the Annual Report to the Dissemination Agent.
The Annual Report may be submitted as a single document or as separate documents comprising a
package, and may include by reference other information as provided in Section 4 of this Disclosure
Agreement; provided that the audited financial statements of the School District may be submitted
separately fromthe balance of the Annual Report and later than the date required abovefor thefiling
of the Annual Report if not available by that date. If the School District’s fiscal year changes, it
shall give notice of such change in the same manner asfor aListed Event under Section 5(c). If the
Dissemination Agent has not received a copy of the Annual Report on or before 15 business days
prior to February 1 in any year, the Dissemination Agent shall notify the School District of such
failureto receive the Annual Report. The School District shall provide awritten certification with
each Annual Report furnished to the Dissemination Agent to the effect that such Annual Report
constitutes the Annual Report required to be furnished by it hereunder. The Dissemination Agent
may conclusively rely upon such certification of the School District and shall have no duty or
obligation to review such Annual Report. The Annual Report may be provided in el ectronic format
to each Repository and the Participating Underwriter and may be provided through the services of
a “central post office” or equivalent system or entity, e.g. Electronic Municipal Market Access
(EMMA), approved by the Securitiesand Exchange Commission. For example, any filing under this
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Continuing Disclosure Agreement may be made solely by transmitting such filing to the Texas
Municipa Advisory Council (the“MAC") as provided at http://www.disclosureusa.org unless the
United States Securities and Exchange Commission has withdrawn the interpretive advice in its
letter to the MAC dated September 7, 2004.

(b) If the School Districtisunableto provideto the Repositoriesand to the Participating
Underwriter an Annual Report by the date required in subsection (a), the Dissemination Agent shall
send a notice to the Repositories and the appropriate State Repository, if any, in substantially the
form attached as Exhibit A.

(© The Dissemination Agent shall:

() determine each year prior to the date for providing the Annual Report the
name and address of each National Repository and each State Repository, if any;

(i) provide any Annual Report received by it to each Repository, the Paying
Agent and the Participating Underwriter as provided herein; and

(iii)  if theDissemination Agent isother thanthe School District and to the extent
it can confirm such filing of the Annual Report, file areport with the School District, the
Paying Agent and the Participating Underwriter certifying that the Annual Report has been
provided pursuant to this Disclosure Agreement, stating the date it was provided and listing
all the Repositoriesto which it was provided.

Section 4. Content of Annual Reports. The School District’'s Annual Report shall contain or
incorporate by reference the following:

) Audited Financial Statements of the School District prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles as promulgated to apply to government entitiesfrom time
to time by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. If audited financial statements are not
available at the time required for filing, unaudited financial statements shall be submitted with the
Annual Report and audited financial statements shall be submitted once available.

(b) The following information regarding the Series C Bonds, any parity bonds and any
refunding bonds issued by the Improvement District:

() The School District’s approved annual budget for the then-current fiscal
year;

(i) Assessed value of taxable property in the Improvement District as shown
on the most recent equalized assessment roll;

(iii) Principal amount and accreted value of Series C Bonds, any parity bonds
and any general obligation refunding bonds issued on behalf of the Improvement District
outstanding as of a date within 45 days preceding the date of the Annual Report;

(iv) Balanceinthe Debt Service Fund as of adate within 45 days preceding the
date of the Annual Report;
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(V) Balance in the Improvement Fund, and each account or subaccount
thereunder, if any, as of adate within 45 days preceding the date of the Annual Report, and
of any other fund related to the Series C Bonds not referenced in clauses (i), (ii), (iii) or (iv)
hereof;

(vi) A statement as to whether or not the County includes the tax levy for
payment of the Series C Bonds in its Teeter Plan and if not, information regarding the
amount of theannual ad val oremtaxesleviedinthelmprovement District, amount collected,
delinquent amounts and percent delinquent for the most recent fiscal year; and

(vii)  Top ten property ownersin the Improvement District for the then-current
fiscal year, as measured by secured assessed valuation, the amount of their respective
taxable value and their percentage of total secured assessed value, if material.

(© In addition to any of the information expressly required to be provided under
paragraphs (a) and (b) of this Section, the School District shall provide such further information, if
any, as may be necessary to make the statements required under Section 4(b), in the light of the
circumstances under which they are made, not misleading.

Any or al of the items listed above may be included by specific reference to other
documents, including official statements of debt issues of the School District or related public
entities, which have been submitted to each of the Repositories or the Securities and Exchange
Commission. If thedocument included by referenceisafinal official statement, it must beavailable
from the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. The School District shall clearly identify each
such other document so included by reference.

Section 5. Reporting of Significant Events.

€)] Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5, the School District shall give, or cause
to be given, notice of the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Series C
Bonds and any refunding bonds, if material:
() Principal and interest payment delinguencies,
(i) Non-payment related defaults;
(iii) Unschedul ed drawson debt servicereservesreflecting financial difficulties;
(iv) Unschedul ed drawson credit enhancementsreflectingfinancial difficulties;

(v) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;

(vi) Adverse tax opinions or events affecting the tax-exempt status of the
security;

(vii)  Modificationsto rights of security holders;

(viii)  Contingent or unscheduled bond calls;
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(ix) Defeasances,

) Release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the
securities; and

(xi) Rating changes.

(b) The Dissemination Agent shall, within five business days of obtaining actual
knowledge of the occurrence of any of the Listed Events, contact the Disclosure Representative,
inform such person of the event and request that the School District promptly notify the
Dissemination Agent in writing whether or not to report the event pursuant to subsection (e). For
purposes of this Disclosure Agreement, “actual knowledge” of the occurrence of the Listed Events
described under clauses (ii), (iii), (vi), (x) and (xi) above shall mean actual knowledge by an officer
at the corporate trust office of the Dissemination Agent. The Dissemination Agent shall have no
responsibility for determining the materiality of any of the Listed Events.

(© As soon as practicable based on the time needed to discover the occurrence of an
event, to assess its materiality and to prepare and disseminate the applicable notice, if the School
District has determined that the occurrence of a Listed Event would be material under applicable
federal securitieslaw, the School District shall promptly notify the Dissemination Agent inwriting.
Such notice shall instruct the Dissemination Agent to report the occurrence pursuant to
subsection (€). The School District shall provide the Dissemination Agent with aform of notice of
such event in a format suitable for reporting to the National Repository or to the Municipal
Securities Rulemaking Board and each State Repository, if any.

(d) If the School District determinesthat the Listed Event would not be material under
applicable federal securities law, the School District shall so notify the Dissemination Agent in
writing and instruct the Dissemination Agent not to report the occurrence pursuant to subsection (€).

(e If the Dissemination Agent has been instructed by the School District to report the
occurrence of a Listed Event, the Dissemination Agent shall file anotice of such occurrence with
the National Repository or the Municipa Securities Rulemaking Board and each State Repository,
if any, and shall provide a copy of such notice to the Participating Underwriter. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, notice of Listed Events described in subsections (a)(viii) and (ix) need not be given
under this subsection any earlier than the notice (if any) of the underlying event is given to owners
of affected Series C Bonds pursuant to the Resolutions.

Section 6. Termination of Reporting Obligation. All of the School District’ sobligationshereunder
shall terminate upon the earliest to occur of (i) the legal defeasance of the Series C Bonds, (ii) prior
redemption of the Series C Bonds or (iii) payment in full of all the Series C Bonds. If such determination
occurs prior to the final maturity of the Series C Bonds, the School District shall give notice of such
termination in the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(e).

Section 7. Dissemination Agent. The School District may, from time to time, appoint or engage a
Dissemination Agent to assist in carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure Agreement and may
discharge any such Agent, with or without appointing a successor Dissemination Agent. The initial
Dissemination Agent shall be DolinkaGroup, LLC. TheDissemination Agent may resign by providingthirty
days written notice to the District and to the Paying Agent (if the Paying Agent is not the Dissemination
Agent). The Dissemination Agent shall have no duty to prepare the Annual Report nor shal the
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Dissemination Agent be responsible for filing any Annual Report not provided to it by the School District
in atimely manner and in aform suitable for filing.

Section 8. Amendment Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of thisDisclosure Agreement,
the School District and the Dissemination Agent may amend this Disclosure Agreement (and the
Dissemination Agent shall agree to any amendment so requested by the School District, so long as such
amendment does not adversely affect therightsor obligationsof the Dissemination Agent), and any provision
of this Disclosure Agreement may be waived, provided that the following conditions are satisfied:

€) if the amendment or waiver relates to the provisions of Sections 3(a), 4 or 5(a), it
may only be made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a changein legal
requirements, changein law, or changein the identity, nature, or status of an obligated person with
respect to the Series C Bonds, or type of business conducted;

(b) the undertakingsherein, asproposed to beamended or waived, would, intheopinion
of nationally recognized bond counsel, have complied with the requirements of the Rule at the time
of the primary offering of the Series C Bonds, after taking into account any amendments or
interpretations of the Rule, aswell as any change in circumstances; and

(© the proposed amendment or waiver either (i) isapproved by owners of the SeriesC
Bondsinthemanner provided in the Resol utionsfor amendmentsto the Resol utionswith the consent
of owners, or (ii) does not, in the opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, materially impair
the interests of the owners or beneficial owners of the Series C Bonds.

If theannual financial information or operating datato be provided inthe Annual Report isamended
pursuant to the provisions hereof, thefirst annual financial information filed pursuant hereto containing the
amended operating data or financial information shall explain, in narrative form, the reasons for the
amendment and the impact of the change in the type of operating data or financial information being
provided.

If an amendment is made to the undertaking specifying the accounting principlesto be followed in
preparing financial statements, the annual financial information for the year in which the change is made
shall present acomparison between the financial statements or information prepared on the basis of the new
accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of the former accounting principles. The comparison
shall include a qualitative discussion of the differences in the accounting principles and the impact of the
change in the accounting principles on the presentation of the financial information in order to provide
information to investorsto enable them to eval uate the ability of the School District to meet its obligations.
To the extent reasonably feasible, the comparison shall be quantitative. A notice of the change in the
accounting principles shall be sent to the Repositories in the same manner as for a Listed Event under
Section 5(e).

Section 9. Additional Information. Nothing in this Disclosure Agreement shall be deemed to
prevent the School District from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set
forthinthisDisclosure Agreement or any other means of communication, or including any other information
in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of aListed Event, in addition to that whichisrequired by this
Disclosure Agreement. If the School District chooses to include any information in any Annual Report or
notice of occurrence of a Listed Event in addition to that which is specifically required by this Disclosure
Agreement, the School District shall have no obligation under this Disclosure Agreement to update such
information or include it in any future Annual Report or notice of occurrence of aListed Event.
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Section 10. Default. Inthe event of afailure of the School District or the Dissemination Agent to
comply with any provision of this Disclosure Agreement, the Paying Agent and any owner or beneficia
owner of the Series C Bonds may, take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking
mandate or specific performance by court order, to cause the School District or the Dissemination Agent to
comply with its obligations under this Disclosure Agreement. A default under this Disclosure Agreement
shall not be deemed an Event of Default under the Resolutions, and the sole remedy under this Disclosure
Agreement in the event of any failure of the School District or the Dissemination Agent to comply with this
Disclosure Agreement shall be an action to compel performance.

Section 11. Duties, Immunities and Liabilities of the Dissemination Agent. The Dissemination
Agent shall have only such duties hereunder asare specifically set forthin this Disclosure Agreement. This
Disclosure Agreement does not apply to any other securities issued or to be issued by the School District.
The Paying Agent shall have no obligation to make any disclosure concerning the Series C Bonds, the School
District or any other matter, provided that no provision of this Disclosure Agreement shall limit the duties
or obligations of the Paying Agent under the Resolutions. The Dissemination Agent shall have no
responsibility for the preparation, review, form or content of any Annual Report or any notice of a Listed
Event. Thefact that the Paying Agent has or may have any banking, fiduciary or other relationship with the
School District or any other party, apart from the relationship created by the Resolutions, shall not be
construed to mean that the Paying Agent has knowledge or notice of any event or condition relating to the
Series C Bonds or the School District except in its respective capacities under such agreements. No
provision of this Disclosure Agreement shall require or be construed to require the Dissemination Agent to
interpret or provide an opinion concerning any information disclosed hereunder. Information disclosed
hereunder by the Dissemination Agent may contain such disclaimer language concerning the Dissemination
Agent’ s responsibilities hereunder with respect thereto as the Dissemination Agent may deem appropriate.
The Dissemination Agent may conclusively rely on the determination of the School District as to the
materiality of any event for purposesof Section 5 hereof. The Dissemination Agent makesno representation
asto the sufficiency of this Disclosure Agreement for purposes of the Rule. The Dissemination Agent shall
be paid compensation by the School District for its services provided hereunder in accordance with its
schedule of fees, as amended from timeto time, and all expenses, legal fees and advances made or incurred
by the Dissemination Agent in the performance of its duties hereunder. The School District’s obligations
under this Section shall survive the termination of this Disclosure Agreement.

Section 12. Beneficiaries. TheParticipating Underwriter and theownersand beneficial ownersfrom
timeto time of the Series C Bonds shall be third party beneficiaries under this Disclosure Agreement. This
Disclosure Agreement shall inure solely to the benefit of the School District, the Paying Agent, the
Dissemination Agent, the Participating Underwriter and owners and beneficial owners from time to time of
the Series C Bonds, and shall create no rightsin any other person or entity.

Section 13. Notices. Any noticeor communicationsto or anong any of the partiestothisDisclosure
Agreement shall be given to all of the following and may be given as follows:
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If to the School Poway Unified School District
District: 13626 Twin Peaks Road
Poway, California 92064-3098
Telephone: (858) 679-2552
Telecopier: (858) 513-0967
Attention: Deputy Superintendent, Business Support Services

If tothe Dolinka Group, LLC

Dissemination Agent: 20 Pacifica, Suite 900
Irvine, California 92618
Telephone: (949) 250-8300
Telecopier: (949) 250-8301

If tothe Stone & Youngberg LLC
Participating One Ferry Building
Underwriter: San Francisco, California 94111

Attention: Municipal Research Department
Telephone: (415) 445-2332
Telecopier: (415) 445-2395

Section 14. Future Determination of Obligated Persons. In the event the Securities Exchange
Commission amends, clarifies or supplementsthe Rulein such amanner that requires any landowner within
the Improvement District to be an obligated person as defined in the Rule, nothing contained herein shall be
construed to require the School District to meeting the continuing disclosure requirements of the Rule with
respect to such obligated person and nothing in this Disclosure Agreement shall be deemed to obligate the
School District to disclose information concerning any owner of land within the School District except as
required as part of the information required to be disclosed by the School District pursuant to Section 4 and
Section 5 hereof.

Section 15. Severability. In case any one or more of the provisions contained herein shall for any
reason be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality or
unenforceability shall not affect any other provision hereof.

Section 16. State of CaliforniaLaw Governs. The validity, interpretation and performance of this
Disclosure Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California.

Section 17. Counterparts. ThisDisclosure Agreement may beexecutedin several counterparts, each
of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Disclosure Agreement as of the
date first above written.

POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

By:

Authorized Officer

DOLINKA GROUP, LLC,
as Dissemination Agent

By:

Authorized Officer
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EXHIBIT A

NOTICE TO THE NATIONAL REPOSITORY OR THE MUNICIPAL SECURITIES
RULEMAKING BOARD AND STATE REPOSITORY, IF ANY,
OF FAILURE TO FILE SEMI-ANNUAL REPORT

Name of Issuer: School Facilities Improvement District No. 2002-1 of the Poway Unified School
District

Name of Bond Issue: General Obligation Bonds of School Facilities Improvement District No. 2002-1
of the Poway Unified School District, 2002 Election, Series C

Date of Issuance: January 27, 2009

NOTICE ISHEREBY GIVEN that the Poway Unified School District (the “ School District”) has
not provided an Annual Report with respect to the above-named Bonds as required by the Continuing
Disclosure Agreement, dated as of January 1, 2009, by and between the School District and Dolinka Group,
LLC, as Dissemination Agent. [The School District anticipates that the Annual Report will be filed by

]

Dated: 20

Dolinka Group, LLC, as Dissemination Agent,
on behalf of the School District

cc: Poway Unified School District
Stone & Youngberg LLC
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APPENDIX E
BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM

The following description of the procedures and record keeping with respect to beneficial
ownership interests in the Series C Bonds, payment of Accreted Value of the Series C Bonds to Direct
Participants, Indirect Participants or Beneficial Owners (as such terms are defined below) of the Series C
Bonds, confirmation and transfer of beneficial ownership interests in the Series C Bonds and other Bond-
related transactions by and between DTC, Direct Participants, Indirect Participantsand Beneficial Owners
of the Series C Bonds is based solely on information furnished by DTC to the School District which the
School District believesto be reliable, but the School District and the Underwriter do not and cannot make
any independent representations concerning these matters and do not take responsibility for the accuracy
or completeness thereof. Neither the DTC, Direct Participants, Indirect Participants nor the Beneficial
Owners should rely on the foregoing information with respect to such matters, but should instead confirm
the same with DTC or the DTC Participants, as the case may be.

The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, New York, will act as securities
depository for the SeriesC Bonds. The Series C Bondswill beissued asfully-registered securitiesregistered
in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC's partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an
authorized representative of DTC. One fully-registered Series C Bond will be issued for each maturity of
the Series C Bonds, each in the aggregate principal amount of such maturity, and will be deposited with
DTC.

DTC, theworld' slargest securitiesdepository, isalimited-purposetrust company organized
under the New Y ork Banking Law, a*banking organization” within the meaning of the New Y ork Banking
Law, amember of the Federal Reserve System, a“ clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New Y ork
Uniform Commercial Code, and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues
of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issuesand money market instruments(from
over 100 countries) that DTC' s participants (“ Direct Participants’) deposit with DTC. DTC asofacilitates
the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited
securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants
accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants
includeboth U.S. and non-U.S. securitiesbrokersand deal ers, banks, trust compani es, clearing corporations,
and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing
Corporation (“DTCC"). DTCC isthe holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation
and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation all of which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by
the usersof itsregulated subsidiaries. Accesstothe DTC systemisalso availableto otherssuch asboth U.S.
and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies and clearing corporations that clear
through or maintain acustodial relationship with aDirect Participant, either directly or indirectly (“ Indirect
Participants’). DTC has Standard & Poor’s highest rating: AAA. The DTC Rules applicable to its
Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can
be found at www.dtcc.com and www.dtc.org.

Purchases of Series C Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct
Participants, which will receive a credit for the Series C Bonds on DTC' srecords. The ownership interest
of each actual purchaser of each Series C Bond (“Beneficial Owner”) isin turn to be recorded on the Direct
and Indirect Participants’ records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of
their purchase. Beneficial Ownersare, however, expected to receivewritten confirmations providing details
of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant
through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the
Series C Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants
acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their
ownershipinterestsinthe Series C Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry systemfor the Series
C Bonds is discontinued.

Tofacilitate subsequent transfers, all Series C Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with
DTC areregistered inthe name of DTC’ s partnership nominee, Cede & Co. or such other name asrequested
by an authorized representative of DTC. Thedeposit of the Series C Bondswith DTC and their registration
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in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership.
DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Series C Bonds, DTC' srecords reflect only
theidentity of the Direct Participantsto whose accounts such Series C Bondsare credited, which may or may
not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct or Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping
account of their holdings on behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct
Participantsto Indirect Participants, and by Direct Parti cipantsand Indirect Partici pantsto Beneficial Owners
will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may
be in effect from time to time. Beneficial Owners of Series C Bonds may wish to take certain steps to
augment the transmission to them of notices of significant events with respect to the Series C Bonds, such
astenders, defaults, and proposed amendments to the Series C Bonds documents. For example, Beneficial
Owners of the Series C Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Series C Bonds for their
benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit noticesto Beneficial Owners. Inthealternative, Beneficial Owners
may wish to provide their names and addresses to the Paying Agent and request that copies of notices be
provided directly to them.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor such other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with
respect to the Series C Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC's MM
Procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the School District as soon as
possible after therecord date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’ s consenting or voting rightsto those
Direct Participants to whose accounts the Series C Bonds are credited on the record date (identified in a
listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Payments Accreted Va ue of the Series C Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., or such other
nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC' s practice isto credit Direct
Participants accounts upon DTC' s receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the School
District or the Paying Agent, on payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shownon DTC's
records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and
customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or
registered in “street name,” and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, the Paying
Agent or the School District, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from
timeto time. Payment of Accreted Vaueto Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an
authorized representative of DTC) istheresponsibility of the Paying Agent, disbursement of such payments
to Direct Participantswill betheresponsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such paymentsto the Beneficial
Ownerswill be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants.

DTC may discontinue providing its service as depository with respect to the Series C Bonds
a any time by giving reasonable notice to the School District or the Paying Agent. Under such
circumstances, in the event that a successor depository is not obtained, Bond certificates are required to be
printed and delivered.

The School District may decideto discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers
through DTC (or a successor securities depository). In that event, the Series C Bond certificates will be
printed and delivered to DTC.

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC' s book-entry system has been
obtained from sources that the School District believes to be reliable, but the School District takes no
responsibility for the accuracy thereof.



Discontinuance of DTC Services

In the event that (a) DTC determines not to continue to act as securities depository for the
Series C Bonds, or (b) the School District determines that DTC shall no longer act and delivers a written
certificateto the Paying Agent to that effect, thenthe School District will discontinuethe Book-Entry System
with DTC for the Series C Bonds. If the School District determinesto replace DTC with another qualified
securitiesdepository, the School District will prepareor direct the preparation of anew single separate, fully-
registered Bond for each maturity of the Series C Bonds registered in the name of such successor or
substitute securitiesdepository asare not inconsi stent with thetermsof the Resol ution. If the School District
failstoidentify another qualified securitiesdepository to replace theincumbent securities depository for the
Series C Bonds, then the Series C Bonds shall no longer be restricted to being registered in the 2009 Bond
registration booksin the name of the incumbent securities depository or its nominee, but shall beregistered
in whatever name or names the incumbent securities depository or its nominee transferring or exchanging
the Series C Bonds shall designate.

Intheevent that the Book-Entry Systemisdiscontinued, thefoll owing provisionswould also
apply: (i) the Series C Bonds will be made available in physical form, (ii) Accreted Value of the Series C
Bonds will be payable upon surrender thereof at the trust office of the Paying Agent identified in the
Resolution, and (iii) the Series C Bondswill betransferable and exchangeabl e as provided in the Resol ution.

The School District and the Paying Agent do not have any responsibility or obligation to
DTC Participants, to the persons for whom they act as nominees, to Beneficial Owners, or to any other
person who is not shown on the registration books as being an owner of the Series C Bonds, with respect to
(i) the accuracy of any records maintained by DTC or any DTC Participants; (ii) the payment by DTC or
any DTC Participant of any amount in respect of the Accreted Value of the Series C Bonds; (iii) the delivery
of any noticewhich is permitted or required to be given to registered owners under the Resolution; (iv) any
consent given or other actiontaken by DTC asregistered owner; or (V) any other matter arising with respect
to the Series C Bonds or the Resolution. The School District and the Paying Agent cannot and do not give
any assurances that DTC, DTC Participants or others will distribute payments of Accreted Value of the
SeriesC Bonds paid to DTC or itsnominee, astheregistered owner, or any noticesto the Beneficial Owners
or that they will do so on a timely basis or will serve and act in a manner described in this Official
Satement. The School District and the Paying Agent are not responsible or liable for the failure of DTC
or any DTC Participant to make any payment or give any notice to a Beneficial Owner in respect to the
Series C Bonds or any error or delay relating thereto.
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APPENDIX F

CAPITAL APPRECIATION BONDS
ACCRETED VALUE TABLE
(Values Per $5,000 M aturity Value)

CAB Bond CAB Bond
08/01/2015 08/01/2016
Date 4.65% 4,70%
1/27/09 $3,706.65 $3,527.15
2/1/09 3,708.55 3,529.00
8/1/09 3,794.80 3,611.90
2/1/10 3,883.00 3,696.80
8/1/10 3,973.30 3,783.65
2/1/11 4,065.65 3,872.60
8/1/11 4,160.20 3,963.60
2/1/12 4,256.90 4,056.75
8/1/12 4,355.90 4,152.05
2/1/13 4,457.15 4,249.65
8/1/13 4,560.80 4,349.50
2/1/14 4,666.85 4,451.75
8/1/14 4,775.35 4,556.35
2/1/15 4,886.35 4,663.40
8/1/15 5,000.00 4,773.00
2/1/16 - 4,885.15
8/1/16 - 5,000.00
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